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SECTION 1
APPLICANT DESCRIPTION

1. Provide the legal name(s) and address(es)of the applicant(s)
Note: The term “applicant” for this purpose includes any person or individual
with a ten percent or greater financial interest in the partnership or corporation
or other comparable legal entity.

The legal name of the applicant is Northwest Kidney Centers (“NKC”’) dba NKC Renton Kidney
Center (“NKC Renton”). NKC proposes to expand its existing 34 station NKC Renton by four
stations. Upon project completion, NKC Renton will have 38 stations.

2. Identify the legal structure of the applicant (LLC, PLLC, etc.) and provide the UBI
number.

NKC is a Washington not-for-profit 501(c)(3) corporation. NKC’s UBI number is 600 006 964.

3. Provide the name, title, address, telephone number, and email address of the contact
person for this application.

Questions regarding this application should be addressed to:

Michael Kellogg
Senior Director, Facility Planning, Management & Plant Operations
Northwest Kidney Centers
12901 20™ Avenue South
SeaTac, WA 98168
Tel: 206-720-8505
Michael.Kellogg@nwkidney.org

Liz McNamara, MN, RN
VP, Patient Care Services
Administration
Northwest Kidney Centers
12901 20" Avenue South
SeaTac, WA 98168
Tel: 206-720-8937
Liz.McNamara@nwkidney.org


mailto:Michael.Kellogg@nwkidney.org

4. Provide the name, title, address, telephone number, and email address of the
consultant authorized to speak on your behalf related to the screening of this
application (if any).

The consultant authorized to speak on behalf of the screening related to this application is:

Lori Aoyama
Health Facilities Planning & Development
120 1% Avenue West, Suite 100
Seattle, WA 98119
(206) 441-0971
(206) 441-4823 (fax)
Email: healthfac@healthfacilitiesplanning.com

5. Provide an organizational chart that clearly identifies the business structure of the
applicant(s).

NKC is governed by a volunteer Board of Trustees comprised of medical, civic, patient and
business leaders from the communities we serve. The Board has appointed an Executive
Committee that meets monthly to review, approve, and monitor operating policies, performance
benchmarks, and major capital expenditures for all of its programs and facilities.

An organizational chart depicting the Board structure is shown in Exhibit 1. An organizational
chart showing the Operational (staff) structure is shown in Exhibit 2.

6. Identify all healthcare facilities owned, operated by, or managed by the applicant.
This should include all facilities in Washington State as well as out-of-state facilities,
and should identify the license/accreditation status of each facility. The following
identifying information should be included:

e Facility Name(s)

Facility Location

Facility CMS Certification Number

Facility Accreditation Status

Operational date of most recent CN approval or exemption

A listing of each of the facilities owned and operated by NKC is included in Exhibit 3. NKC
does not own or operates any facility outside of Washington State.



SECTION 2
PROJECT DESCRIPTION

1. Provide the name and address of the existing facility, if applicable.
The name of the existing facility is NKC Renton. The address of NKC Renton is:
602 Oakesdale Ave SW
Renton, WA 98057

2. Provide the name and address of the proposed facility. If an address is not yet
assigned, provide the county parcel number and the approximate timeline for
assignment of the address.

No new facility is proposed. This question is not applicable.

3. Provide a detailed project description of the proposed project.

NKC is proposing to add four stations to the existing NKC Renton, located in the King 9
Dialysis Planning Area (King 9). Upon project completion, NKC Renton will have a total of 38
stations. In addition, NKC Renton currently provides an isolation station, a bed station, and it

offers home dialysis training. These services/programs will continue with the increased station
capacity.

4. Identify any affiliates for this project, as defined in WAC 246-310-800(1).

Per WAC 246-310-800 (1) "Affiliate" or "affiliated" means:

(a) Having at least a ten percent but less than one hundred percent ownership in a kidney
dialysis facility;

(b) Having at least a ten percent but less than one hundred percent financial interest in a
kidney dialysis facility; or

(c) Three years or more operational management responsibilities for a kidney dialysis
facility.

There are no affiliates associated with NKC Renton.


http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-800

5. With the understanding that the review of a Certificate of Need application typically
takes 6-9 months, provide an estimated timeline for project implementation, below:

As outlined in WAC 246-310-806, the concurrent review timeline for the Non Special
Circumstances Cycle 1 indicates that decisions will be rendered by February 2023. Assuming
that a timely decision is rendered, NKC anticipates that the project will be undertaken and made
operational in the timeline depicted in Table 1.

Table 1

NKC Renton Timeline
Event Month/Year
Assumed Completion of CN February 28, 2023
Review/Decision Rendered
Design Complete April 1, 2023
Construction Commenced May 31, 2023
Construction Completed June 23, 2023
Facility Prepared for Survey August 1, 2023
Additional Stations Operational September 1, 2023

Source: Applicant

6. Identify the Month/Year the facility is expected to be operational as defined in WAC
246-310-800(12).

WAC 246-310-800 (12) defines operational as:

“Operational"” means the date when the kidney dialysis facility provides its first dialysis
treatment in newly approved certificate of need stations, including relocated stations

As noted in Table 1, and assuming a timely certificate of need (CN) decision, this date is
September 1, 2023.

7. Provide a detailed description of the services represented by this project. For
existing facilities, this should include a discussion of existing services and how these
would or would not change as a result of the project. Services can include but are
not limited to: in-center hemodialysis, home hemodialysis training, peritoneal
dialysis training, a late shift (after 5:00 pm), etc.

NKC Renton provides the following services:

= Qutpatient maintenance hemodialysis.

= JIsolation in a private room.

= A bed for patients who are unable to dialyze in an upright position.
= Home peritoneal and home hemodialysis training.


http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-800
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-800

= Back up support treatments for both home hemodialysis and home peritoneal dialysis

patients.

= Hemodialysis services for visitors.
= Shifts beginning after 5:00 PM.

This CN request will not change the services listed above.

8. Fill out the table belw identifying the current (if applicable) and proposed
configuration of dialysis stations. Note — an exempt isolation station defined under
WAC 246-310-800(9) would not be counted in the methodology, but would be
included in the total count of certified in-center stations.

As requested, Table 2 provides the current and proposed station configuration.

Table 2

NKC Renton Kidney Center
Current and Proposed Station Configuration

Before After
CMS Stations CMS Stations

Certified Counted in the Certified Counted in the

Stations Methodology Stations Methodology
General Use In-center 32 32 36 36
Stations
Permanent Bed 1 1 1 1
Stations
Exempt Isolation 0 0 0 0
Station
Isolation Station 1 1 1 1
Total Stations 34 34 38 38

Source: Applicant




9.

Provide a general description of the types of patients to be served by the facility at
project completion.

NKC Renton serves the following patient populations:

10.

Stable outpatient maintenance hemodialysis patients.

Capability of support for patients whose medical condition requires isolation in a private
room.

Patients whose medical condition requires treatment in a bed.

Training for home hemodialysis and home peritoneal dialysis patients.

Home hemodialysis patients who require occasional facility backup treatments.

Home peritoneal dialysis patients who require clinic support.

Visiting hemodialysis patients.

Stable institutionalized hemodialysis patients transported for outpatient treatments.
Patients who work or go to school during the day and require treatments that begin after
5:00 PM in the evening.

Provide a copy of the letter of intent that was already submitted according to WAC
246-310-080.

A copy of the letter of intent is included in Exhibit 4.

11.

Provide single-line drawings (approximately to scale) of the facility, both before and
after project completion. Reference WAC 246-310-800(11) for the definition of
maximum treatment area square footage. Ensure that stations are clearly labeled
with their square footage identified, and specifically identify future expansion
stations (if applicable).

A single line drawing, with the requested information, is included in Exhibit 5. The requested
square footage information is included in Table 3


http://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-080
http://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-080
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-800

Table 3
NKC Renton
Actual Square Footage and Maximum Allowable Treatment Area Square Footage,
At Project Completion (38 stations)

Category Square Footage
Actual Square Footage

Treatment Floor Space- Stations Actual
In-center Dialysis Station (36 stations x 80 sq ft) 2,880
Isolation Stations (1 station x 132 sq ft) 132
Permanent Bed Station (1 station x 100 sq ft) 100
Future Stations (0) 0
Sub-Total Treatment Floor Space 3,112
Other Treatment Floor Space 3,427
Total Treatment Floor Space 6,539
Non Incenter Floor Space (home training, lobby,
waiting, toilets, reception, support, water rooms 13,287
etc.)
Total Square Footage 19,826

Maximum Allowable Treatment Area Square Footage Calculation

Maximum Treatment Area Square Footage

In-Center (stations) x 150 5,400
Permanent bed station (1 station) and Isolation 400
stations (1 station) x 200

Future Stations 0
Total Station Space per MTASF 5,800
Other Treatment Floor Space @75% of Station 4350
Space per MTASF ’
Total 10,150

Source: Applicant

12. Provide the gross and net square feet of this facility. Treatment area and non-
treatment area should be identified separately (see explanation above re: maximum
treatment area square footage).

The gross and net square footage of NKC Renton are 21,600 and 19,826, respectively.



13. Confirm that the facility will be certified by Medicare and Medicaid. If this
application proposes the expansion of an existing facility, provide the existing
facility’s Medicare and Medicaid numbers.

NKC Renton is already Medicare and Medicaid certified. The existing provider numbers are:

Medicare Number: 50-2508
Medicaid Number: 1046242



SECTION 3
A. Need (WAC 246-310-210)

A. Need (WAC 246-310-210)

WAC 246-310-210 provides general criteria for an applicant to demonstrate need for
healthcare facilities or services. WAC 246-310-800 through WAC 246-310-833 provide
specific criteria for kidney disease treatment center applications. Documentation provided
in this section must demonstrate that the proposed facility will be needed, available, and
accessible to the community it proposes to serve. Some of the questions below only apply to
existing facilities proposing to expand. If this does not apply to your project, so state.

1. List all other dialysis facilities currently operating in the planning area, as defined in
WAC 246-310-800(15).

NKC Renton is located in ESRD King County Planning Area #9. The only other dialysis facility
located in this Planning Area is DaVita Renton.

2. Provide utilization data for the facilities listed above, according to the most recent
Northwest Renal Network / Comagine ESRD Network 16 modality report. Based
on the standards in WAC 246-310-812(5) and (6), demonstrate that all facilities in
the planning area either:

a) have met the utilization standard for the planning area;
b) have been in operation for three or more years; or
¢) have not met the timeline represented in their Certificate of Need application.

As noted in Table 4, data from Northwest Renal Network shows that DaVita Renton is operating
below the 4.5 minimum utilization threshold specified in WAC 246-310-812 (5). The data used
to make this determination is the most recent data available as of the letter of intent submission
date: for Cycle 1 2022, the Certificate of Need Program modified the timeline and delayed the
LOI and application due dates by one month, making this data point March 31,2022.

Table 4
King 9 Dialysis Planning Area Providers
Stations, Patients and Patients per Stations as of March 31, 2022

3/31/2022 . 3/31/2022
- Number of | Number of Patients .
Facility . Patients/
Stations Per Quarterly In- Station
Center Data
NKC Renton 34 160 4.71
DaVita Renton 7 15 2.14
Total 41

Source: Northwest Renal Network Modality Reports, 12/31/2021


http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-210
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-210
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-815
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-812

However, DaVita Renton provided its first treatment on September 21, 2016, and based on WAC
its operational timeframe allows for the submittal of new applications as the facility has been in
operation for more than three years'.

3. Complete the methodology outlined in WAC 246-310-812. For reference, copies of

the ESRD Methodology for every planning area are available on our website. Please
note, under WAC 246-310-812(1), applications for new stations may only address
projected station need in the planning area where the facility is to be located, unless
there is no existing facility in an adjacent planning area. If this application includes
an adjacent planning area, station need projections for each planning area must be
calculated separately.

Step (4a)
Determine the Type of Regression Analysis to be Used

Determine the type of regression analysis to be used to project resident in-center station
need by calculating the annual growth rate in the planning area using the end-of-year
number of resident in-center patients for each of the previous six consecutive years,
concluding with the base year.

(i) If the planning area has experienced less than six percent growth in any of the
previous five annual changes calculations, use linear regression to project station need,
or

(ii) If the planning area has experienced six percent or greater growth in each of the
previous five annual changes, use nonlinear (exponential) regression to project station
need.

Table 5 details the year end number of in-center hemodialysis patients in King 9. As Table 5
demonstrates, growth over each previous five annual calculations has not exceeded 6%. As such,

a linear regression is to be used to project station need.

Table 5

King 9 Dialysis Planning Area Year-End Resident In-Center Hemodialysis Patients and

Annual Rate of Change from Prior Year 2016 — 2021
Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Number of Patients 206 210 231 222 220 219
Rate of Change from Prior Year N/A 1.94% 10.00% | -3.90%. | -0.90%. | -0.45%

Source: Certificate of Need Program King 9 Methodology, Revised

!'Source for the operational date is the March 8, 2022 order on Judicial Review, p. 10



http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-812
https://www.doh.wa.gov/LicensesPermitsandCertificates/FacilitiesNewReneworUpdate/CertificateofNeed/NeedMethodologies
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-812

Project the number of residents in-center patients in the projection year using the
regression type determined in (a) of this subsection. When performing the regression

Step (4b)
Project the Number of Resident In-Center Patients

analysis use the previous five consecutive years of end-of-year data concluding with the
base year. For example, if the base year is 2015, use end-of-year data for 2011 through
to 2015 to perform the regression analysis.

Per WAC, the projection year for dialysis station need is defined as the fifth year after the base
year. The base year is defined as the most recent calendar year for which December 31 data is
available as of the letter of intent submission period from the Northwest Renal Network's
Modality Report. In this case, the base year is 2021, and the projection year is 2026.
Accordingly, Table 6 details the number of projected in-center patients in King 9 in the years
2022-2026 using a linear regression.

Table 6

Projected Year-End Resident In-Center Hemodialysis Patients
Linear Projection

Year

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Number of Patients

222.50

223.20

223.90

224.60

225.30

Source: Certificate of Need Program King 9 Methodology, Revised

Determine the number of dialysis stations needed to serve resident in-center patients in the
planning area in the projection year by dividing the result of (b) of this subsection by the

Step (4¢)
Determine the Number of Dialysis Stations Needed

appropriate resident in-center patient per station number from subsection (3) of this section.

In order to assure access, fractional numbers are rounded up to the nearest whole number.

For example, 5.1 would be rounded to 6.0. Rounding to a whole number is only allowed for
determining the number of stations needed.

Per WAC, the projection year is 2026. For King 9, the appropriate resident in-center patient per

station number is 4.8. Assuming 225.30 patients, 47 stations are calculated as needed in 2026.



Step (4d)
Determine Net Station Need

To determine the net station, need for a planning area, subtract the number calculated in (c)

of this subsection from the total number of certificate of need approved stations located in

the planning area. This number does not include the one department recognized exempt
isolation station defined in WAC 246-310-800(9).

Table 7 demonstrates that there are currently 41 CN-approved and/or operational stations in King

9. Subtracting the existing stations from the 2026 need identifies a net station need of 6.

Table 7
Analysis of Current Supply vs. Net Station Need
Stations

Current Supply:

NKC — Renton 34
DaVita Renton 7
Total Supply 41
2026 Projected Need 47
Net Station Need 6

Source: Certificate of Need Program King 9 Methodology, Revised
4. For existing facilities, provide the facility’s historical utilization for the last three
full calendar years.
Table 8 provides the requested information for the last three full fiscal years ending June 30.
Table 8

NKC Renton Kidney Center
Historical Utilization, FYE2020-2022

FYE2022 (10
FYE2020 FYE2021 months
annualized)
Total in-center stations as
of last day of period 34 34 34
Total in-center patients as
of last day of period 172 178 167
Total in-center treatments 26,501 26,591 24,694
Total home patients as of
last day of period 33 44 33
Total home treatments 6,019 6,093 7,824
Total Patients 207 222 222
Total Treatments 32,145 32,684 32,517

Source: Applicant



5. Provide projected utilization of the proposed facility for the first three full years of
operation. For existing facilities, also provide the intervening years between
historical and projected. Include all assumptions used to make these projections.

Table 9 provides the requested information for the first three full fiscal years ending June 30 as
well as the intervening years.

NKC Renton Kidney Center

Table 9

Projected Utilization, FYE2023-2027

FYE2023 | FYE2024 | FYE2025 FYE2026 FYE2027

Total in-center stations 34 38 38 38 38
Total in-center patients

(Year End) 171 175 179 183 187
Total in-center 25240 | 25732 26,420 27.011 27.601
treatments

Total home patients 59 64 67 69 72
Total home treatments 8,450 8,788 9,139 9,505 9,885
Total Patients 230 239 246 252 259
Total Treatments 33,689 34,519 35,560 36,516 37,486

Source: Applicant

6. For existing facilities, provide patient origin zip code data for the most recent full
calendar year of operation.

Patient origin data is included in Exhibit 6.

7. Identify any factors in the planning area that could restrict patient access to dialysis
services. WAC 246-310-210(1), (2).

As noted in response to Question #3, the methodology outlined in WAC 246-310-812 projects
need for an additional 6 stations in King 9, and NKC is proposing to add 4 stations through
expansion of an existing facility.

While DaVita Renton has some idle capacity, NKC is at the target occupancy level set forth in
rule. Adding stations now, with minimal disruption and cost will assure that patients will not

have to travel outside of the service area for dialysis or dialyze at times that are not convenient or
accessible for them.

In addition, as noted in response to Question #9 below, NKC is committed to providing services
to all dialysis patients regardless of race, color, ethnic origin, religious belief, sex, age, or lack of
ability to pay.


http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-210

8. Identify how this project will be available and accessible to low-income persons,
racial and ethnic minorities, women, mentally handicapped persons, and other
under-served groups. WAC 246-310-210(2)

NKC has a long-established history of developing and providing services that meet the dialysis
needs of the communities it serves. NKC Renton, as with all other NKC facilities, is committed
to providing services to all patients regardless of race, color, ethnic origin, religious belief, sex,
age, or lack of ability to pay.

Copies of the admission policies and procedures, non-discrimination policy and the charity care
policy for the existing NKC Renton are included in Exhibit 7.

9. If this project proposes either a partial or full relocation of an existing facility,
provide a detailed discussion of the limitations of the current site consistent with
WAC 246-310-210(2).

This project does not propose any (partial or full) relocation. This question is not applicable.

10. If this project proposes either a partial or full relocation of an existing facility,
provide a detailed discussion of the benefits associated with relocation consistent
with WAC 246-310-210(2).

This project does not propose any (partial or full) relocation. This question is not applicable.

11. Provide a copy of the following policies:
e Admissions policy
Charity care or financial assistance policy
Patient Rights and Responsibilities policy
Non-discrimination policy
Any other policies directly associated with patient access (example, involuntary
discharge)

Copies of the requested policies are included in Exhibit 7.


http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-210
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-210
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-210

SECTION 4
B. Financial Feasibility (WAC 246-310-220)

Financial feasibility of a dialysis project is based on the criteria in WAC 246-310-
220 and WAC 246-310-815.

1. Provide documentation that demonstrates the immediate and long-range capital and
operating costs of the project can be met. This should include but is not limited to:

Utilization projections. These should be consistent with the projections provided
under the Need section. Include all assumptions.

Pro Forma financial projections for at least the first three full calendar years of
operation. Include all assumptions.

For existing facilities proposing a station addition, provide historical revenue
and expense statements, including the current year. Ensure these are in the
same format as the pro forma projections. For incomplete years, identify
whether the data is annualized.

The requested pro forma financial information is included in Exhibit 8.

2. Provide the following agreements/contracts:

Management agreement
Operating agreement
Medical director agreement
Development agreement
Joint Venture agreement

Note: all agreements above must be valid through at least the first three full years
following completion or have a clause with automatic renewals. Any agreements in
draft form must include a document signed by both entities committing to execute
the agreement as submitted following CN approval.

NKC Renton does not have a management agreement, operating agreement, development
agreement or a joint venture agreement. A copy of the medical director agreement is included in

Exhibit 9.


http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-220
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-220
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-220
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-815

3. Provide documentation of site control. This could include either a deed to the site or
a lease agreement for the site. If a lease agreement is provided, the terms must be for
at least five years following project completion.

Included in Exhibit 10 is a copy of the unofficial deed to the site documenting that NKC owns
the property. Included in Exhibit 11 is also documentation from the King County Assessor’s
Office demonstrating that NKC’s ownership.

4. Provide county assessor information and zoning information for the site. If zoning
information for the site is unclear, provide documentation or letter from the
municipal authorities showing the proposed project is allowable at the identified
site.

NKC Renton has been open since 1986 and operating in its current location since 2011 with all
local municipal and state approvals. The additional stations will be set up in existing space.
Included in Exhibit 11 is documentation from the King County Assessor’s Office regarding the
zoning for the site.

5. Complete the table below with the estimated capital expenditure associated with this
project. Capital expenditure for the purposes of dialysis applications is defined
under WAC 246-310-800(3). If you have other line items not listed below, include
the definition of the line item. Include all assumptions used to create the capital
expenditure estimate.

The capital expenditures for the proposed two station addition are included in Table 10:


http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-310-803

Table 10
NKC Renton Kidney Center
Estimated Capital Expenditure

Item Cost

a. Land Purchase

b. Utilities to Lot Line

c. Land Improvements

d. Building Purchase

e. Residual Value of Replaced Facility

f. Building Construction $210,000
g. Fixed Equipment (not already included in the $57,200
construction contract)

h. Movable Equipment $85,087
i. Architect and Engineering Fees $1,000

j. Consulting Fees
k. Site Preparation
1. Supervision and Inspection of Site
m. Any Costs Associated with Securing the Sources of
Financing (include interim interest during construction)
1. Land
2. Building
3. Equipment
4. Other
n. Washington Sales Tax? $35,385

Total Estimated Capital Expenditure $388,969
Source: Applicant

6. Identify the entity responsible for the estimated capital costs identified above. If
more than one entity is responsible, provide breakdown of percentages and amounts
for all.

The construction costs and architectural fee cost estimates were provided by NKC’s contractor,
Aldrich and Associates. The equipment (fixed and moveable) costs were based on NKC’s
experience purchasing dialysis equipment over the past decades and fully account for recent cost
increases.

7. Provide a non-binding contractor’s estimate for the construction costs for the
project.

A non-binding contractor’s estimate is included in Exhibit 12.

2 As the CN Program is likely aware, there is no sales tax on dialysis machines.



8. Provide a detailed narrative regarding how the project would or would not impact
costs and charges for services. WAC 246-310-220.

This project will have no impact on the costs and charges for services as NKC’s charges for
services are not determined by capital expenditures. The pro forma operating assumptions and
statement, which include the impact of the depreciation expense on operations, is included in
Exhibit 8.

9. Provide documentation that the costs of the project, including any construction
costs, will not result in an unreasonable impact on the costs and charges for health
services in the planning area. WAC 246-310-220.

This project will have no impact on the costs and charges for services. The capital costs for this
project will not negatively impact payers or patients. NKC’s charges for services are not
influenced by capital investments. The pro forma operating assumptions and statement, which
include the impact of the depreciation expense on operations, is included in Exhibit 8.

In addition, WAC 246-310-815 (Financial Feasibility) provides a ‘test’ on the impact of costs

and charges for health care services by limiting the cost of the project to less than the maximum

floor treatment space. As noted in Table 2, NKC’s project expansion is less than the maximum
floor treatment space and therefore, the project does not have an unreasonable impact on the
costs and charges of health care services.

10. Provide the historical and projected payer mix by revenue and by patients using the

example table below. If “other” is a category, define what is included in “other.”

NKC Renton’s current payer mix is detailed in Table 11. No change in payer mix is assumed for

this project.

Table 11
NKC Renton Kidney Center
Current and Projected Payer Mix

Percentage | Percentage
Payer Mix by Net by Patient
Revenue
Self Pay 0.4% 0.5%
Medicare 60.7% 73.9%
Medicaid 10.1% 17.6%
Commercial 28.8% 8.0%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

Source: Applicant



11. If this project anticipates changes in payer mix percentages from historical to
project, provide a brief explanation of why the changes are anticipated and any
underlying assumptions.

The current and projected payer mix is detailed in Table 11.

12. Provide a listing of all new equipment proposed for this project. The list should
include estimated costs for the equipment. If no new equipment is required,
explain.

Table 12 details the proposed equipment for this project.
Table 12

NKC Renton Kidney Center
Proposed Equipment List

Quantity Item Cost
Proposed Moveable Equipment List
4 Dialysis machines $53,000
4 Treatment recliners $14,000
4 Patient televisions $2,000
4 Patient television brackets $2,000
4 Patient pillow speakers $360
4 Oxygen flowmeters $360
2 Mobile PCs $12,735
2 Rolling stools $382
2 Rolling waste receptacles $250
Total $85,087
Proposed Fixed Equipment List
Water treatment - Upgrade RO & loop
material $49,000
2 Patient station boxes $1,000
Low voltage systems - TV, nurse call $7,200
Total $57,200

Source: Applicant
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13. Identify the source(s) of financing (loan, grant, gifts, etc.) and provide supporting
documentation from the source. Examples of supporting documentation include: a
letter from the applicant’s CFO committing to pay for the project or draft terms
from a financial institution.

NKC will use reserves to fund this project. Included in Exhibit 13 is a letter from Julie Peterson,
Interim CFO documenting the intent of NKC to use reserves for the project.

14. If this project will be debt financed through a financial institution, provide a
repayment schedule showing interest and principal amounts for each year over
which the debt will be amortized. WAC 246-310-220

No financing is required for this project. This question is not applicable.

15. Provide the applicant’s audited financial statements covering at least the most
recent three years. WAC 246-310-220

The requested financial statements are included in Appendix 1.
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SECTION 5
C. Structure and Process (Quality) of Care (WAC 246-310-230)

1. Provide a table that shows FTEs [full time equivalents] by category for the proposed
facility. If the facility is currently in operation, include at least the last three full
years of operation, the current year, and the first three full years of operation
following project completion. There should be no gaps in years. All staff categories

should be defined.

Table 13 details the historic, current and projected staffing by fiscal year (ending June 30).

Table 13
Current and Proposed Total Staffing — NKC Renton
Historical Projected
Avg. Salary FYE FYE FYE FYE FYE FYE FYE FYE
(Current) 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
Clinical Nurse $51.78 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Manager
Hemo Dialysis $23.60 26.0 26.0 26.0 260 | 260 | 260 | 27.0 | 27.0
Technician
Nurse Supervisor $48.10 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Nurse (RN) $48.10 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0
Unit
Coordinator/Rec $17.13 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
eptionist
Shared Staffing
RN- Home
Training (PD & $54.55 4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2
HH)
Facility/
Technical
$22.39 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Systems
Specialist
MSW $36.77 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Dietician $37.86 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Total N/A 474 49.4 49.4 49.4 49.4 49.4 50.4 50.4

Source: Applicant

2. Provide the assumptions used to project the number and types of FTEs identified
for this project.

The staffing in Table 13 is based on current staff to patient ratios. No changes in these ratios are

proposed.
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3. Identify the salaries, wages, and employee benefits for each FTE category.

The average hourly wage by FTE category is detailed in Table 9. Employee benefits are assumed
to be approximately 27% of the salaries and wages line item.

4. Provide the name and professional license number of the current or proposed
medical director. If not already disclosed under 210(1) identify if the medical
director is an employee or under contract.

The Medical Director for NKC Renton is Frank Fung, MD. Dr. Fung’s license number is
MDO00035164. Dr. Fung is a contracted medical director. A copy of the medical director
agreement is included in Exhibit 9.

5. Identify key staff, if known. (nurse manager, clinical director, etc.)

A listing of key staff is detailed in Exhibit 14. Shelley Bromstrup is the Clinical Director and
Interim Nurse Manager. Jenny Fernandez, RN and Caroline Sabino, RN are the Interim Nurse
Supervisors.

6. For existing facilities, provide names and professional license numbers for current
credentialed staff.

The requested information is provided in Exhibit 14.

7. Describe your methods for staff recruitment and retention. If any barriers to staff
recruitment exist in the planning area, provide a detailed description of your plan to
staff this project.

NKC is attentive to current challenges to recruit and retain staff, and while we have always been
proactive in efforts to assure sufficient and quality staff; we acknowledge that the expansion of
Renton versus the construction of a new facility will eliminate unnecessary duplication of key
staff.

In terms of our success in staffing, NKC offers a competitive wage and benefit package as well
as numerous other recruitment and retention strategies. Other strategies include:

= To ensure that our wages and benefits remain competitive, NKC conducts frequent
market surveys to benchmark compensation.

= NKC remains active on various job boards including but not limited to indeed.com,
nursing associations, Health e-careers, and other local resources.

= NKC also has agreements with colleges and universities throughout the Puget Sound area
to both recruit staft as well as to serve as a clinical rotation site.

= NKC staff participate, at least monthly, in job fairs in and around the Puget Sound area.

=  NKUC also offers a substantial tuition reimbursement program for existing staff. Typically,
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in an average year, 15-20 employees take advantage of this program. Primarily, dialysis
technician staff use this program to become registered nurses.

= NKC human resources staff are active in various boards and councils that focus on
sharing of recruitment and retention strategies.

= NKC human resources staff also work with agency personnel as needed for the use of
temporary filling of staff positions.

=  NKOC has a highly successful employee referral program that incentivizes current
employees to refer colleagues from outside the organization for open positions.

= Asneeded, NKC utilizes outside recruiters to fill challenging positions.

In addition to the above, NKC also maintains a roster of per diem staff that can rotate between

facilities. NKC Renton is close to other facilities (NKC Rainier Beach, NKC SeaTac), which
does promote sharing of staff.

8. Provide a listing of proposed ancillary and support agreements for the facility. For
existing facilities, provide a listing of the vendors.

Ancillary and support services currently in place at NKC Renton are detailed in Table 14.

Table 14
NKC Renton
Ancillary and Support Services
Service Vendor
IT/Network Engineering GCI Northpoint
Copier leases and support Copiers NW
Janitorial Services Citywide
Lab Services Ascend

Source: Applicant

All other services are provided by NKC, through our Corporate Administrative Office shared
services. See Table 15 for additional information.

9. For existing facilities, provide a listing of ancillary and support service vendors
already in place.

Table 14 details the existing ancillary and support service vendors already in place at NKC
Renton.

10. For new facilities, provide a listing of ancillary and support services that will be
established.

NKC Renton is not a new facility. This question is not applicable.
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11. Provide a listing of ancillary and support services that would be provided on site
and those provided through a parent corporation off site.

The requested information is detailed in Table 15.

Table 15
Ancillary and Support Services for NKC Renton
Service Offered Onsite/Offsite
Administration Off site
Community Relations Off site
Human Resources Off site
Informatics Nurses Off site
Information Systems Off site
Material Management Off site
Medical Staff Credentialing Off site
Nutrition Services On site
Patient Education On site
Patient Financial Counseling On site
Pharmacy On and Offsite
Plant Operations On site
Public Relations Off site
Technical Services On site
Visitor Dialysis On site
Water Purification Specialists On site

Source: Applicant

12. Identify whether any of the existing ancillary or support agreements are expected to
change as a result of this project.

No changes to existing ancillary or support agreements are anticipated as a result of this project.
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13. If the dialysis center is currently operating, provide a listing of healthcare facilities
with which the dialysis center has working relationships.

Table 16 details the health care entities that NKC has working relationships with.

NKC’s Working Relationships with Healthcare Facilities

Table 16

How existing

=Polyclinic, The (and The Polyclinic
Madison Center)

=Rainier Nephrology

=Seattle Nephrology

=South Seattle Nephrology Associates

= Transplant and Nephrology NW

= University of Washington Medical
Center

=Valley Medical Center Nephrology
Services

=Virginia Mason Federal Way

Clallam and
Snohomish Counties.

Status of . .
. . . relationship will
Category Examples/Providers Existing
. . be expanded to
Relationship A
support continuity
Hospitals =MHS Auburn Regional Medical NKC has existing NKC’s existing
Center referral relationships relationships will be
=CHI / Highline Medical Center with all of the continued for the
=CHI / St. Francis Hospital hospitals listed. expanded NKC
=Evergreen Hospital Medical Center Renton.
=Harborview Medical Center
=MultiCare Tacoma General
=Northwest Hospital
=(Qverlake Hospital Medical Center
=Swedish Edmonds
=Swedish Issaquah
=Swedish Cherry Hill
=Swedish Medical Center
=University of Washington
=Valley Medical Center
=Virginia Mason Medical Center
Clinics/Nephrology | =Cascade Kidney Specialists NKC has existing NKC’s existing
Groups (Sample) = CHI Franciscan Nephrology relationships with all | relationships will be
Associates of the physician continued for the
=Eastside Nephrology groups listed as well | expanded NKC
=Harborview Medical Center as other groups Renton.
=MultiCare Nephrology located in King,
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Category

Examples/Providers

Status of
Existing
Relationship

How existing
relationship will
be expanded to

support continuity

Community partners
working to cure
kidney disease, slow
the onset of kidney
disease, which
collaborate to help
educate and support
our patients or help
support our system

= American Diabetes Association —
Washington Chapter

=Kidney Research Institute

=National Kidney Foundation —
Washington Chapter

=Seattle King County Dental Society
and Project Access Northwest /
Access to Dental Program

=Northwest Healthcare Response
Network (15 counties in Western
Washington Healthcare
Emergency Services Coalition)

= Arcora Foundation — Partnership to
improve oral health.

=* AARTH - Diabetes education.

=Washington State Hospital
Association.

=Northwest Kidney Care Alliance —
CMS Demonstration program to
coordinate care for ESRD
beneficiaries

=Lifecenters NW — organ procurement
program

NKC has existing
relationships the
entities listed to
collaborate and

education patients,

staff and clinicians.

NKC’s existing
relationships will be
continued for the
expanded NKC
Renton.

Other not for profit
dialysis providers. A
copy of the mutual
aid plan is included
in Exhibit 15.

=  Puget Sound Kidney Centers
(which now includes Olympic
Peninsula Kidney Centers)

= Seattle Children’s Hospital

NKC has existing
relationships with the
other not for profit
dialysis providers.

NKC’s existing
relationships will be
continued for the
expanded NKC
Renton.

Source: Applicant

14. For a new facility, provide a listing of healthcare facilities that the dialysis center
would establish working relationships.

NKC Renton is an existing facility. This question is not applicable.

15. Provide a copy of the existing or proposed transfer agreement with a local hospital.

A copy of NKC'’s existing transfer agreement is included in Exhibit 16.

16. Clarify whether any of the existing working relationships would change as a result

of this project.

No change to any existing working relationships will result from this project.
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17. Fully describe any history in the last three calendar years of the applicant
concerning the actions noted in Certificate of Need rules and regulations WAC 246-
310-230(5)(a). If there is such history, provide documentation that the proposed
project will be operated in a manner that ensures safe and adequate care to the
public to be served and in conformance with applicable federal and state
requirements. This could include a corporate integrity agreement or plan of
correction.

NKC has no history with respect to the actions noted in CN regulation WAC 246-310-230(5) (a).

18. Identify whether any facility or practitioner associated with this application has a
history of the actions listed below. If so, provide evidence that the proposed or
existing facility can and will be operated in a manner that ensures safe and adequate
care to the public and conforms to applicable federal and state requirements. WAC
246-310-230(3) and (5).

e A criminal conviction which is reasonably related to the applicant’s
competency to exercise responsibility for the ownership or operation of a
healthcare facility; or

e A revocation of a license to operate a healthcare facility; or

e A revocation of a license to practice as a health professional; or

e Decertification as a provider of services in the Medicare or Medicaid
program because of a failure to comply with applicable federal conditions
of participation.

NKC has no history with respect to the actions noted in CN regulation WAC 246-310-230(3) and
).

19. Provide documentation that the proposed project will promote continuity in the
provision of health care services in the planning area, and not result in an
unwarranted fragmentation of services. WAC 246-310-230.

NKC has operated outpatient dialysis services since 1962 (the very first in the Country); growing
from 9 patients to over 1,700 today. NKC has, and continues to be, committed to providing
optimal health, quality of life and independence for people with kidney disease. Further, to the
direct benefit of our patients, NKC has experienced firsthand, that fragmentation is reduced or
eliminated, when services are highly coordinated.

NKC strives to provide services that deliver dialysis care that is coordinated via multiple entities
including, but not limited to, physicians, other health care providers (nursing homes, assisted
living facilities), home health care, hospitals, etc. as dialysis patients frequently have multiple
providers and entities from which they receive services. For example, for nursing home or
assisted living patients, NKC will report any care needs or issues identified during dialysis (as
well as inform the patient’s physician, if appropriate). As patients are admitted and discharged
from the hospital, NKC staff follow their care needs to ensure that the facility is prepared to
provide dialysis to these patients upon discharge from the hospital.
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NKC Renton has been providing outpatient dialysis services in the King 9 Dialysis Planning
Area since 1986. Growth has continued, and today it operates above the 4.5 utilization standard
contained in WAC 246-310-812. NKC Renton’s current occupancy means that patients do not
always have timely access to services, or to the dialysis time of their choosing. The additional
stations will assure that our commitment to the community to provide timely access and high
quality remains.

Because of our longevity and our commitment to patient centered care, NKC enjoys long-
standing established relationships with area health care providers, including but not limited to
hospitals, physicians, nursing homes, assisted living facilities and adult family homes. In
addition, NKC has mechanisms in place to assure that coordination of services is in place and
fragmentation is avoided.

NKC Renton through its Nurse Manager, Dietician, Social Worker and Admitting and Patient
Services staff, routinely coordinate and communicate with the patients’ physicians, families or
other relevant care providers for any changes that might impact their care.

NKC Renton has all of the ancillary and support agreements and a comprehensive array of in-
house services already in place that help to assure that continuity of care is in place for patients.

20. Provide documentation that the proposed project will have an appropriate
relationship to the service area's existing health care system as required in WAC 26-
310-230.

NKC operates all existing programs in conformance with applicable federal and state laws, rules
and regulations.

Table 16 provides examples of NKC’s existing working relationships with area health care
providers. Table 16 also includes a brief description of its existing relationships with the health
care entities noted and a description of how these relationships will be expanded related to the
proposed project. Exhibit 16 includes our transfer agreement with Swedish Hospital.
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SECTION 6

D. Cost Containment (WAC 246-310-240)

1. Identify all alternatives considered prior to submitting this project.

NKC considered several options prior to submitting this application, including:

* Do nothing
= Establish a new 6 station facility
= Add two, four or six stations to NKC Renton

2. Provide a comparison of the project with alternatives rejected by the applicant.
Include the rationale for considering this project to be superior to the rejected
alternatives. Factors to consider can include, but are not limited to: patient access
to healthcare services, capital cost, legal restrictions, staffing impacts, quality of
care, and cost or operation efficiency.

Table 17 provides a comparison of the options considered. As Table 17 notes, given the
relatively small number of stations needed in the planning area, the most cost-efficient option is
to expand the existing NKC Renton facility. Doing nothing does not assure access to dialysis

services for residents of King 9.

Table 17

Advantages and Disadvantages

No Action

Establish new 6 station facility

Add 2, 4 or 6 stations to NKC
Renton

Patient Access to

Patient access
negatively
impacted by having
fewer stations

Access improved with new station

Access improved with new station

Health Care available and . . .
Services patients, providers capacity and location capacity
and payers that
prefer NKC are left
without an option
Most costly option; significantly
Capital Costs No capital cost - |more expensive than expansion of Least costly alternative-
existing NKC Renton
Requires additional staff and Requires additional staff; 4 station
Staffing Impact None- higher staffing costs per patient alternative is most efficient from

because of small size of facility

staffing perspective
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Add 2, 4 or 6 stations to NKC

No Action Establish new 6 station facility
Renton
Not affected as NKC provides the
Not affected as NKC provides the | same high quality of care at all of its
Quality of Care Not affected- | same high quality of care at all of | facilities. Not affected by selected
its facilities. option; PSKC provides the same high
quality at all its facilities
Cost or . 4 station addition results in the most
. Much less efficient to operate . .
Operational No effect . . o operational efficiency of the
. given small size of facility ! . .
Efficiency expansion options considered.
Legal None Certificate of Need review Certificate of Need review required

required

Source: Applicant

3. For existing facilities, identify your closest two facilities as required in WAC 246-

310-827(3)(a).

The two closest facilities to NKC Renton Kidney Center are:

= NKC SeaTac Kidney Center and
=  NKC Kent Kidney Center

4. For new facilities, identify your closest three facilities as required in WAC 246-310-

827(3)(b).

NKC Renton is not a new facility. Therefore, this question is not applicable.

5. Do any other applications you submitted under this concurrent review cycle rely on
the same facilities listed in response to questions 3 or 4? If yes, identify the
applications. WAC 246-310-827(3)(c). (Note: A maximum of two applications can
rely on the same three facilities.)

This is the only application submitted under this concurrent review cycle. Therefore, this question
is not applicable.

6. Identify whether any aspects of the facility’s design could lead to operational
efficiency. This could include but is not limited to: LEED building, water filtration,
or the methods for construction, etc. WAC 246-310-240(2) and (3).

This project only proposes minor remodeling for the proposed station addition.
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Exhibit 1
Board Organizational Chart
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Exhibit 2
Operations Organizational Chart
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Facilities & Programs - Medical Directors/Clinical Directors/Nurse Managers/Supervisors

Auburn Bellevue Broadway Burien

P. Mukherjee MD A. Dooley MD M. Rivara MD A. Anderson MD

S. Bromstrup RN T Mackness RN J. Hood RN S. Bromstrup RN
J. Sutton RN ) RN L. Mamalias RN

Hospital
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S. Watnick MD
T. Wellington RN
Everett Federal Way Federal Way Fife D. Aiken RN

East West
M. Shannon MD A. Pesenson MD
H. Pham MD M. Javed MD
T. Mackness RN S. Bromstrup RN
C. Abero RN S. Bromstrup RN S. Bromstrup RN R. Becker RN
' L. Lay RN A. Mihulata RN )
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S. Bromstrup RN
A. Cooper RN

HOME
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Kent Kirkland IJ.a!(:hcl\:lt[\){ Port Angeles Rainier Beach K. Treit MD
A. Brockenbrough MD : C. Cryst MD M. Tekeste MD J. Hood RN
A. Alem MD T. Mackness RN
S. Bromstrup RN T. Mackness RN
RN T. Mackness RN B. Hesselgrave

S. Bromstrup RN J. Omri RN
RN H. Rim RN RN

A. Thayer RN
G. Cutrell RN

SeaTac Snoqualmie
Renton Scribner D. Hu MD Seattle Ridge

F. Fung MD B. Shannon MD S Br.omstrup RN M. Sutters MD L. Li MD

S. Bromstrup RN T. Mackness RN E .Beauchemin RN J. Hood RN D. Marcella RN

RN Y. Liu RN ' R. Fateiger RN RN
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Tech Services
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Laura Brock MSW

Clinical Director
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Services
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Quality Officer
Krystle Harrington

Employee Health

Beth Shanaman RD

Katrina Collins RN

Shelley Bromstrup

S. Watnick MD
T. Wellington RN
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D. Aiken RN

Clinical Director

Tosha Mackness
Clinical Director
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RN
J. Sutton RN A. Cooper RN
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RN
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Federal Way East A. Pesenson MD
H. Pham MD R. Becker RN
L. Lay RN
Scribner Lake City Everett
B. Shannon MD J.Joh MD A. Pamarthy MD
Y. Liu RN B. Hesselgrave RN C. Abero RN
Bellevue Port Angeles Kirkland
A. Dooley MD C. Cryst MD A. Alem MD
RN H. Rim RN C. Abero RN - interim

Debra Marcella
Clinical Director

Snoqualmie Ridge
L. Li MD

RN

SeaTac

Jayson Hood

Clinical Director

D. Hu MD
E. Beauchemin RN

Seattle
M. Sutters M

R. Fateiger RN

Broadway

Tracy Wellington
Clinical Director

M. Rivara MD
L. Mamalias RN

Rainier Beach
M. Tekestel MD

RN

Debra Marcella

Social Work
Manager
Sauntia Griffin

Facility Systems
Specialists
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Technical
Services

Supervisor
Rene Herradura

PROGRAMS
R. Winrow MD
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J. Hood RN
J. Omri RN
A. Thayer RN

G. Cutrell RN
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Exhibit 3
Northwest Kidney Centers
List of Facilities
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Northwest Kidney Centers

FEIN: 91-6057438

Medicare

Medicaid

Facility DBA Physical Address Phone Number Provider No.| Provider NPI Number |Stations o e%nal Accredited?
(CCN) No. Operational
NKC Auburn Kidney Center :\igtr‘:“'; v‘\’,j\";;o"';ghway N 253-804-8323 502520 | 1046062 | 1881789006 | 14 1/13/1997 Yes
NKC Bellevue Kidney Center é‘lﬁ:\,'ui,lifﬂ e 425-454-0067 502505 | 1043279 | 1215022876 | 18 | 8/31/1981 Yes
NKC Broadway Kidney Center 700 Broadway 206-292-2705 502556 | 2002409 | 1700025038 | 15 6/1/2009 Yes
Seattle, WA 98122-4302
NKC Burien Kidney Center 3\,2:2; fg;h Ave. South, SeaTac |,46-923-3562 502523 | 1043110 | 1164515797 | 21 | 10/14/2019 Yes
NKC Elliott Bay Kidney Center gggt::"ﬁ:’?glszuzite 240 206-292-2515 502511 1046176 | 1912091497 7 9/5/1991 Yes
NKC Enumclaw Kidney Center g::n?;(;ﬁv\?\;:\gvseoiz-gng 360-825-2050 502570 2029785 | 1811241656 10 3/4/2013 Yes
NKC Everett Kidney Center 1010 Southeas! oerett Mall Way, Ste 104 1425-906-5370 502603 1801404124 9 9/14/2020 Yes
NKC Federal Way East Kidney Center ;:’:’:::;I‘"’“‘;::’”x:“;:;::ay S 253-943-6262 502593 | 2107282 | 1083132799 | 16 | 3/12/2018 Yes
NKC Federal Way West Campus 201 So. sv?fvt'hv?;’e;;aos3““e 110 253-943-6312 502594 | 2123772 | 1861981177 7 7/23/2018 Yes
NKC Fife Kidney Center ﬁi(::lvzf\t;;:;iet East, Suite 100 253-943-6335 50-2597 | 2132329 | 1063901379 10 1/11/2019 Yes
NKC Kent Kidney Center i:ﬁtl,sv::t:sg‘;-ssoozz 253-850-6810 502553 | 2000431 | 1164675112 | 28 | 12/16/2008 Yes
NKC Kent / Panther Lake Kidney Center Il(:g:’,l“?: 9233;2_ ?:lr:v?ltaddress by city) Facility not open 11 No
NKC Kirkland Kidney Center ;:rif:n:fvbi";gos;;‘fggo7 425-821-8785 502516 | 1046175 | 1912090531 | 26 | 3/3/2014 Yes
NKC Lake City Kidney Center i:f:‘;o'i'étsrie;!‘megs 155 206-365-0775 502536 | 1046444 | 1972696581 | 20 1/25/2002 Yes
NKC Port Angeles Kidney Center 809 Georgiana Street 360-565-1435 502510 | 1046099 | 1891880332 | 10 5/1/2000 Yes
Port Angeles, WA 98362
NKC Rainier Beach Kidney Center c\f: 192‘;‘12‘ Trenton Street, Seattle, |,,6.720-8807 502601 | 2156824 | 1932757093 19 1/13/2020 Yes
NKC Renton Kidney Center :gitoora‘!“x:a;:s":' sw 425-251-0647 502508 1046242 | 1922193564 34 10/31/2011 Yes
NKC Scribner Kidney Center ;::’gl': x’:;';' 153“3it(est?t5e # clarificationy | 206-363-5090 502507 | 1045981 | 1861587750 | 22 8/1/1983 Yes
NKC SeaTac Kidney Center ;Z:.:_’:cf'w;";;tig';a' Blvd S, #301 206-901-8700 502509 | 1043264 | 1205921616 | *43 | 11/5/2007 Yes
NKC Seattle Kidney Center 548 - 15th Avenue 206-720-3940 502500 | 1043799 | 1346242542 | 31 6/1/2009 |38 Yes

Seattle, WA 98122




NKC Snoqualmie Ridge Kidney Center

Snoaualmie, WA 98065

Medicare Medicaid Date
Facility DBA Physical Address Phone Number Provider No.| Provider NPI Number |Stations Ty Accredited?
Operational
_ (CCN) No.
35131 SE Douglas St, Suite 113 425-396-7090 502540 | 1044252 | 1447345921 9 1/13/2003 Yes

* 35 stations in operation 8 stations
being constructed

NKC is accreditted by ACHC whom has CMS Deeming Authority for Renal Diaylsis:

About ACHC

Accreditation Commission for Health Care {(ACHC) is a nonprofit accreditation organization that has stood as
a symbol of quality and excellence since 1986. ACHC has CMS Deeming Authority for Home Health,
Hospice, Renal Dialysis, DMEPOS, and Home Infusion Therapy, and a quality management system that is
IS0 9001:2015 certified.
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Exhibit 4
Letter of Intent
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s NORTHWEST

= Kidney Centers

May 31, 2022

Eric Hernandez, Program Manager
Certificate of Need Program
Department of Health

PO Box 47852

Olympia, WA 98504-7852

Dear Mr. Hernandez:

This Letter of Intent is Northwest Kidney Centers to add 4 stations to its existing
NKC Renton Kidney Center, located in the King 9 Dialysis Planning Area. In
accordance with WAC 246-310-080, the following information is provided:

1. A Description of the Extent of Services Proposed:

NKC proposes to add 4 stations to NKC Renton Kidney Center; upon project
completion, NKC Renton will have a total of 38 stations.

2. Estimated Cost of the Proposed Project:

The estimated capital expenditure is $429,261.

3. Description of the Service Area:
Per WAC 246-310-280, the service area is the King 9 Dialysis Planning Area.

Sincerely,

<’/2[L ) AR

Rebecca Fox,
President &Chief Executive Officer

| 700 Broadway Seattle, WA 98122 // Tel: 206-292-2771 // www.nwkidney.org 41
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NKC Renton Kidney Center

Patients by Zip Code

Number | % of
Zip Code of Total
Patients
98058 34 19.1%
98178 25 14.0%
98056 24 13.5%
98059 21 11.8%
98055 19 10.7%
98057 18 10.1%
98030 10 5.6%
98031 9 5.1%
98188 5 2.8%
98118 5 2.8%
98032 5 2.8%
98168 3 1.7%
Total 178 100.0%
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em NORTHWEST

=F Kidney Centers

Human Resources Policy/HRP-N508

Nondiscrimination

Policy:

Northwest Kidney Centers is committed to a work environment in which all
individuals are treated with respect and dignity. Each individual has the
right to work in a professional atmosphere that promotes equal employment
opportunities and prohibits discriminatory practices, including harassment.
Therefore, Northwest Kidney Centers expects that all relationships among
persons in the workplace will be professional and free of bias, prejudice and
harassment.

It is Northwest Kidney Centers’ policy that employees will not be subjected
to unlawful discrimination based on race, color, sex, sexual orientation,
religion, age, marital status, national origin, the presence of any sensory,
mental or physical disability, veteran’s status or any other bases prohibited
by applicable federal, state or local laws.

Procedure:

Employees should report any practice that appears to be inconsistent with
this policy to the Vice President of Human Resources. Employees with
questions about their rights and responsibilities with regard to applicable
laws should contact the Human Resources Department.

Printed 11/27/2012 HRP-N508 Page 1 ofAT



em NORTHWEST

=F Kidney Centers

Administration/General

Patient Rights and Responsibilities

Application:

This policy applies to all patients dialyzing at the Northwest Kidney Centers
(NKQC).

Policy:

Northwest Kidney Centers inform patients (or their representatives) of their
rights (including their privacy rights) and protects and provides for the
exercise of those rights. v451

All NKC patients have a right to be informed of their responsibilities, the
rules and expectations of the facility regarding patient conduct and
respectful communication. v464

A new NKC patient receives education on patient rights and responsibilities
within the patient’s first six treatments. The patient also agrees that their
visitors will follow NKC rules. The education is delivered in the form of
verbal discussion and the Patient Rights and Patient Responsibilities
documents. The patient is given a copy for future reference.

The social worker reviews the rights and responsibilities with the patient
annually during annual comprehensive assessment. The Patient Rights and
Patient Responsibilities documents are provided to the patient at each
annual assessment.

NKC staff discuss patient rights and responsibilities as needed with patients
and staff, to encourage and support open communication, respectful
language and behavior and patient/staff safety.

NKC staff will document within the electronic medical record that patients
have been informed of their rights and responsibilities. Vv451

Each NKC dialysis facility prominently displays a copy of the patient’s rights
in the facility, including the current State agency and ESRD network mailing
addresses and telephone complaint numbers, in a location where it can be
easily seen and read by patients. v470

ADM-P12077 Page 1 of48



hem. NORTHWEST

=F Kidney Centers

Patient Accounts/Patient Funding Sources

Charity

Policy:
It is the policy of the Northwest Kidney Centers to provide charitable
allowances to patients who are eligible and who are in compliance with

NKC’s Financial Agreement. See Patient Compliance Policy.

Eligibility is defined as qualifying for funding from DSHS (Medicaid) and KDP
(Kidney Disease Program).

Revised 4/30/2018 Page 1 of 1
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=F Kidney Centers

Financial Services/Patient Accounts

Patient Compliance

Policy:
It is the policy that all patients be in compliance with NKC’s financial
agreement. To be in compliance, the patient must:

1. Pay or agree to pay for all services arranged or furnished by NKC.

2. Maintain all reasonable medical insurance for which the patient is
eligible.

3. Furnish NKC with accurate and complete financial information whenever
requested.

4. Assign all benefits from medical insurance policies providing for
payment to NKC, and to forward promptly to NKC all payments by the
insurance company or others made directly to the patient for services
arranged or furnished by NKC.

5. Sign both the financial and personal payment agreements.

Revised 4/30/2018 Page 1 of 1
50
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Northwest Kidney Centers

Renton Certificate of Need Proforma Historic Historic Historic Annualized Pre-Implementation 2 Months 10 Months Implementation Projected
6/30/2022 Full Year Full Year 10 Months 12 Months Future 12 Months  Partial Year  Partial Year Full Year Full Year
6/30/2020 6/30/2021 4/30/2022 6/30/2022 6/30/2023 Jul-Aug Sep-Jun 6/30/2024  6/30/2025
Total Stations (end of the year - excludes CON-exempt iso station) 34 34 34 34 34 34 38 38 38
Total Shifts 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Total Chronic Capacity (end of period) 204 204 204 204 204 204 228 228 228
Total Chronic Patients (end of year) 172 178 167 167 171 171 175 175 179
% of Capacity 84.3% 87.3% 81.9% 81.9% 83.8% 83.8% 76.8% 76.8% 78.5%
Avg Annual Chronic Patients (avg of beginning & end of period) 182 176 162 162 171 171 175 173 179
% of Capacity 89.0% 86.0% 79.4% 79.4% 83.8% 83.8% 76.8% 75.9% 78.5%
Total Chronic Treatments (In Center) 26,501 26,591 20,578 24,694 25,240 4,207 21,525 25,732 26,420
Est Ave Treatments per Pt 12.2 124 12.3 12.3 12.3 12.3 12.3 12.3 12.3
In Center Patients per Station 5.34 5.24 4.91 4.91 5.03 5.03 4.61 4.61 4.71
Total Home Patients (end of year) 35 44 55 55 59 62 62 64 67
Total Home Treatments 5,644 6,093 6,520 7,824 8450 1465 7323 8,788 9,139
Home Hemo Equiv Treatments/Patient/Month 13.4 11.5 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.4 11.4
Total Patients 207 222 222 222 230 233 237 239 246
Total Treatments 32,145 32,684 27,098 32,517 33,689 5,671 28,848 34,519 35,560
Revenue
Net Patient Revenue 9,469,823 9,199,322 6,093,749 7,312,499 7,576,037 1,275,341 6,487,344 7,762,684 7,996,628
Bad Debt (19,130) (30,442) (33,242) (39,890) (41,328) (6,957) (35,389) (42,346) (43,622)
Charitable Care (44,044) (80,506) (75,279) (90,335) (93,591) (15,755) (80,142) (95,897) (98,787)
Total Net Patient Revenue 9,406,650 9,088,374 5,985,228 7,182,273 7,441,118 1,252,629 6,371,813 7,624,441 7,854,219
Interest Income 2,064 454 670 804 833 140 713 854 879
Total Net Revenue 9,408,714 9,088,828 5,985,898 7,183,078 7,441,951 1,252,769 6,372,526 7,625,295 7,855,099
Expenses
Salaries & Wages 3,145,014 2,748,049 2,369,877 2,843,853 2,946,343 495,984 2,522,947 3,018,931 3,109,913
Employee Benefits, Taxes & Non-Base 848,868 768,901 644,088 772,905 800,760 134,799 685,689 820,488 845,215
Total Salaries, Wages & Benefits 3,993,882 3,516,950 3,013,965 3,616,758 3,747,104 630,783 3,208,637 3,839,419 3,955,128
Medical Supplies 719,778 775,526 615,800 738,960 765,592 128,879 655,575 784,453 808,094
Medical Director 117,000 117,000 97,500 117,000 117,000 19,500 97,500 117,000 117,000
Other Medical (i.e., Lab Tests) 118,201 116,471 98,651 118,381 122,648 20,646 105,023 125,669 129,457
Pharmacy Drugs & Supplies 771,191 699,767 571,112 685,334 710,033 119,526 608,000 727,526 749,451
Utilities 179,644 184,265 155,818 186,981 193,720 32,611 165,882 198,493 204,475
Other Purchased Services 176,149 172,936 155,784 186,940 193,678 32,603 165,846 198,449 204,430
Other Direct Expenses 132,500 98,087 94,045 112,854 116,922 19,682 100,120 119,802 123,413
Depreciation 646,919 667,444 352,177 422,612 393,360 61,225 306,124 367,348 341,337
Interest 78,516 86,136 134,421 161,305 167,118 28,132 143,103 171,236 176,396
Total Other Operating Expenses 2,939,898 2,917,631 2,275,307 2,730,369 2,780,070 462,805 2,347,172 2,809,977 2,854,053
Total Direct Expenses 6,933,779 6,434,581 5,289,273 6,347,127 6,527,173 1,093,588 5,555,808 6,649,396 6,809,181
Pre-G&A Excess Revenue Over Expense 2,474,934 2,654,247 696,626 835,951 914,778 159,181 816,718 975,899 1,045,918
G&A Allocation 808,874 750,639 617,031 740,437 761,440 127,575 648,124 775,699 794,339
Excess Revenue Over Expense 1,666,060 1,903,608 79,595 95,514 153,337 31,606 168,594 200,201 251,579

Assumptions

Benefits include: 401K Plan, EAP Program, Employer FICA, Health Benefit, Life/AD&D/LTD Insurance, Unemployment Comp, WA FLI/MLI, Worker's Comp & Other Benefits

Medical Supplies include: Medical Supplies & Water Disposable Supplies

Pharmacy Drugs & Supplies include: Admin IV Pharmacy, Pharmacy Supplies, ESA Expense & Calcimimetics

Utilities include: Contaminate Waste, Disposal, Electricity, Gas & Water utilities

Other Purchased Services Include: Cable TV, Freight, Laundry Service, Water Service, Repairs & Maintenance & Other Purchased Services

Other Direct Expenses Include: Bldg & Plant, Ergo, Food, Housekeeping & Machine Repair Parts (Supplies), Minor Equipment, Non Medical Supplies, Office Supplies, Employee Activities, Gifts in Kind, Mileage,
Staff Training, Taxes/Licenses/Non-Facility Rent, Facility Rent (We own Renton as of FY19)

Projected

Full Year
6/30/2026
38

6
228

183
80.3%
183
80.3%

27,011
12.3
4.82

69
9,505
1.4

252
36,516

8,211,606

(44,795)

(101,443)
8,065,368
903
8,066,272

3,193,518
867,938
4,061,456
829,819
117,000
132,937
769,599
209,972
209,926
126,730
315,326
181,138
2,892,447
6,953,903

1,112,369

811,221
301,147

Increased depreciation to include 20 year depreciation on estimated 4 station increase capital buildout costs. Existing depreciation estimated on useful lives for major depreciation categories with assumption that no major purchases

needed between 2023-2027.
Projected 8% increase in home treatments for FY23, then 3% for each year thereafter.

Projected
Full Year
6/30/2027
38
6
228

187
82.0%
187
82.0%

27,601
123
4.92

72
9,885
11.4

259
37,486

8,429,872

(45,986)

(104,139)
8,279,748
927
8,280,675

3,278,402
891,008
4,169,410
851,876
117,000
136,470
790,055
215,553
215,505
130,099
289,315
185,953
2,931,826
7,101,237

1,179,438

828,409
351,029
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MEDICAL DIRECTOR AGREEMENT

This MEDICAL DIRECTOR AGREEMENT (this “Agreement™), between Northwest
Kidney Centers, a Washington nonprofit corporation (“NKC™) and Frank Fung, MD (“Doctor™),
is for the provision of medical dircctor services.

RECITALS

NKC operates dialysis centers and related kidney treatment programa throughout the
Puget Sound area, including in particular the facility and/or program described in the attached
Exhibit A (the “Program™), which require the services of a medical director.

AGREEMENT
Now, therefare. the parties agree as follows:
L MEDICAL DIRECTOR SERVICES

1.1  Appointment. NKC hereby appoints Doctor as medical director of the Program,
and Doctor accepts such appointment, all on the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Doctor
shall assume and discharge al! responsibilities hercunder on an ethical and professional basis
consistent with the policies and objectives of the NKC, the requirements of Doctor’s professional

sacieties, and all applicable laws and regulatious.

1.2  Responsibilitics. Doctor’s primary task shall be to assure that at all times the
Program is providing quality patient care in a safe, comfortable setting while ensuring cfficiency
and a high level of patient satisfaction. Doctor shall devote his/her best efforts to serving as
Medical Director of the Program, including, but not limited to, performing: (a) those services
customarily performed by medical directors of dialysis facilities; (b) the duties set forth in the
attached Exhibit A; and (c) such other duties as NKC may reasonably request from time to time.
Doctor shall report to NKC"s Chi¢f Medical Officer.

1.3  Private Practice. Doctor may provide professional services outside the scope of
this Agreement to the extent consistent with the satisfactory discharge of Doctor’s
responsibilities set forth in this Agreement.

1.4 " Absences. If Doctor will be absent for an extended period of time, Doctor shall
give prior notice to the Chief Medical Officer and arrange for competent and qualified services
of another physician (the “Covering Medical Director”) acceptable to NKC to discharge all
Doctor’s duties to NKC’s satisfaction. Doctor acknowledges and agrees that all obligations
under this Agreement (except Section 9) shall be binding on the Covering Medical Director to
the same extent as if the Covering Medical Directar werc a party hercto and Doctor agrees to
ensure compliance of the Covering Medical Director with such terms; and that NKC may requirc
such physician to execute a document acknowledging such obligations before such physician

DWT 28270643vL 0001795-000282
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may serve aa the Covering Medical Director. Doctor ig responsible for paying any and all
compensation to the Covering Medical Director for performance of duties under this Agreement.

15  Expenditures and Contracting. Doctor shall be involved in detcrmining
expenditures and reviowing agreements of NKC and/or the Program as provided m Exhjhit A,
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agrezment, Doctor shall have no authority to make
any expenditure ot enter into any agreement on behalf of or in the name of NKC or the Program,
without NKC’s express advance written approval.

2. QUALIFICATIONS

21  Qualifications. Doctor shall maintain the following qualifications, nonc of which
may at any time be restricted, suspended, revoked or unrenewed: () licensure to practice
medicine in the State of Washington and good standing with the Washington Statc Quality
Assurance Commission; (b) a Fedcral DEA number; (c) membership on NKC’s active medical
staff with appropriate clinical privileges; (d) participation in and qualification for reimbursement
from the Medicare program and the Washington Medicaid program; and (e) insurance coverage
as required in Sectiog 6 below. In addition, except to the extent otherwise agreed in writing by
NKC’s Chief Executive Officer, Doctor shall maintain a substantial (as determined by NKC in
its reasonable discretion) clinical practice as a nephrologist at all times during the term of this
Agreement. Upon NKC'’s request, Doctor shall provide evidence satisfactory to NKC of
Doctor"s compliance with this section. Doctor shall immediatgly notify NKC if Doctor Jacks amy
of the above qualifications; if Doctor’s medical staff membership or privileges at any other
health care facility are revoked, terminated, restricted, suspended or unrenewed; or if Doctor
ceases to maintain a substantial clinical practice as a nephrologist.

2.2  Medical Staff Activities. Doctor shall attend staff conferences and shall comply
with the procedures, rules and regulations of NKC’s Medical Staff. Doctor shall perform such
teaching and similar duties as are in accordance with the education program of NKC's staff and
employees and consistent with ESRD program requirements.

3 SPACE, UTILITIES, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT AND PERSONNEL

NKC shall, within annual budgctary allowanccs, provide space, utilitics, supplies and
equipment necessary for Doctor to perform Doctor’s duties as Medical Director. Doctor will not
use any such space, utilities, supplies, equipment or personnel at any time for the private practice
of medicine.

4. COMPENSATION

Doctor’s entire compensation under this Agreement is set forth in the attached Exhibit B.
Doctor acknowlcdges that Doctor is an independent conteactor and not an employee;
accordingly. Doctor’s compensation is not subject to withholding for income taxes, Social
Security, or any other withholding deductions. Doctor is not entitled to any employee benefits
normally established for NK.C personnel, except liability coverage to the limits established by

2
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NKC for liabilities incurred while acting within the scope of dutics as medical director under this
Agrecment. The parties agrec that all compensation to be paid over the term of this Agreement
doces not cxceed fair market value, is not determined in a manner that takes into account the
volume ot value of refexrals or other business that might be generated between Doctor and NKC,
except as permitted by law, and does not require the limitation or withholding of items or
services from patients in violation of any federal, state or local law. Doctor’s compensation may
be prospectively adjusted by NK.C at the beginning of a contract year based on the Doctor’s
performance, experience, changes in market conditions or other factors NKC decms appropriate.

5. TERM AND TERMINATION

5.1 Term. The tenn of this Agreement, unlcss earlicr tenninated, is one (1) year.
commencing on the date sct forth at the end of this Agreement. This Agreement shall
automatically rcnew for additional one-year term(s) unless carlier renninared as provided herein
or by notice of nonrenewal at least thirty (30) days before an anniversary of the commencement
date.

52  Automatic Termination. This Agreement shall terminate automatically and
without notice upon (a) the Doctor’s death; (b) conviction, including a plea of noin contendere,
of any felony or of any crime involving moral turpitude by either party.

53 Tcrmination for Material Breach. Either party may terminate this Agreement
in the even( of a material breach of this Agreement by the other party. The non-breaching party
shall send the breaching party notice describing the breach with reasonable specificity, including
any steps that must be taken to cure such breach. If the breaching party fails to cure such breach
to the reasonable satisfaction of the other party within thirty (30) days after receipt of such
notice, this Agrecment shall immediately terminatc at the end of such 30-day period.

54  Termination for Cause. Either party may terminate this Agrecment for cause
and without notice oxcept that termination under subsections (d) and (c) below shall require
thirty (30) days notice. Cause for termination shall inctude but not be limited to: (a) dishonesty,
profossional misconduct, or misappropriation of funds by the other party; (b) the failure of
Doctor to maintain any of the qualifications described in Scction 2.1 above or to maintain a
clinical practice as a nephrologist as required by Section 2,1 above; (¢) the conduct of the otber
party is such that termination is necessary in the party’s reasonable judgment to protect patient
health or safety; (d) the Doctor’s privileges are either teominated or suspended for a period more
than thirty (30) days by the medical staff or management of a health care facility wherc the
Doctor has privileges; or (e) good cauge as defined in law or in equity.

5.5 Resignation of Doctor. In the event Doctor wishes to resign from Doctor’s
position as Medical Director of the Program during the term of this Agreement, Doctor may
submit a written request to NKC. The decision whether or not to consent to Doctor’s resignation
shall be made by NKC in its sole and absolute discretion. In the event NKC consents to Doctor’s
resignation, this Agreement shall terminate as of the effective date specified in such consent, and

3
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NKC's obligation to compensate Doctor under Section 4 and Exhibit B hereto shall termipate as
of that date.

5.6  Effect of Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement Doctor shall not in
any way interfere with the assumption by a successor physician of any of Doctor’s duties under
this Agreement; Doctor shall deliver to NKC all records necessary for the conduct of the
business of NKC and the Program, and all other NKC property in Doctor’s possession; and each
Pprovision requiring continuing performance shall survive termination of this Agreement,
including but not limited to Sections 6, 7, 8, and 9. Termination of this Agreement shall not
entitle Doctor to any rights of appeal or hearing under NKC’s medical staff bylaws or otherwise.
If the Agreement is terminated other than at the cxpiration of a term, the parties shall not enter
into a new arrangement for the scrvices that are the subject of this Agreement before the
expiration of the then current term.

6. INSURANCE

6.1  Doctor’s Responsibility. Doctor shall maintain and provide proof of medical
malpractice and public liability insurance coverage with minfowum limits of one million doltars
($1,000,000) per occurrence and five million dollars ($5,000,000) in the aggregate as approved
by NKC. The amount shall be reviewed ftom time to time by NKC and may be revised by NKC
on a uniform basis with medical directors of other programs and/or facilities operated by NKC.
If Doctor’s policy is on 2 “claims made” basis duning this Agreement, the requirements of this
section shall survive termination of this Agreement and shall continue for four years thereafier.
In lieu of continued coverage, Doctor may provide a “tail” policy in a form approved by NKC
covering the period for which Doctor served as medical director under this Agreement.

6.2 NKC’s Responsibility. NKC provides professional and gencral liability
coverage for its employees, which includes independent contractars such ag medical divectors
and advisors while working within the scope of their assigned duties. NKC shall maintain
professional and general liability insurance eoverage for Doctor while acting within the scope of
his duties as Medical Director under this Agcecment, with minimum limits of one million dollars
($1,000,000) per occurrence and five million dollars ($5,000,000) in the aggregate. If NKC's
policy is on a “claims made™ basis during this Agreement, NKC shall provide continucd
professional and general liability coverage for Doctor for five years after termination of this
Agceement.

7. REPORTS AND RECORDS

7.1  Ownership of Reports and Records. It is agreed that all reports and records
rclative to the Program and NKC are the property of the NKC and are to be considered and
treated as the NK.C'’s records.

7.2  Mhaintenance of and Access to Books and Records. Upon the written request of
the Secretary of Health and Human Services or the Comptroller General or any of their duly

4
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authorized representatives, Doctor shall make available those coatracts, books, documents, and
records neccssary to verify the nature and extent of the costs of providing sexvices under this
Agrcement. Such inspection shall be available up to four (4) years after the rendering of such
services. If Doctor carries out any of the duties of this Agreement through a subcontract with a
value of $10,000 or more over a 12-month period with a related individual or organization,
Doctor shall include this requirement in any such subcontract. This section is included pursuant
to and is governed by the requirements of Public Law 96-499, Section 952 (Section 1861(v)(1)
of the Social Security Act) and the regulations promulgated thereunder. No attorney-client,
accountant-client, or other legal privilege will be decemed to have been waived by Doctor or

NKC by virtue of this Agreement.
8. CONFIDENTIALITY

Doctor shall not, directly or indirectly, divulge, disclose or commupicate to any person or
entity, any nonpublic, confidential information with regard to this Agrecment, or the operational,
financial, contractual, or other affairs of NKC or the Program, except as may be required by law.
As used in this Scction 8, confidential information shall include nonpublic information about the
financial performance, strategic plans, cost and expense dats, trade secrets, payor, supplier or
patient contracts, partnership asrangerments, manuals, policies and procedures, patient lists, and
similar data of NKC or the Program. Confidential information shalf not include any information
in the public domain or any information that becomes part of the public domain through no faul¢
of the Doctor. The terms of this section shall survive any termination or expiration of thia

Agreement.
9. COVENANTS

Doctor agrees that, as a consequence of Doctor’s performance of this Agreement, Doctor
will gain confidential knowlcdge, which is proprictary to NKC, including the rclationships that
Doctor will develop with NKC patients. Accordingly, Doctor shall comply with the following
covenants, which the parties consider to be fair, reasonable and integral to NKC’s protection:

9.1 Noncompetition. During the terra of this Agreement for a period of two (2) years
following its termination, Doctor will not, directly or indirectly, by himself or herself or in
conjunction with anry other person, serve as medical director of, nor be an officer, dircctor,
shareholder, partner, member, owner, part owner (through equity or debt), employee, advisor or
consultant of any kidney dialysis center or other program, center or entity offering dialysis
services of any kind operating or intending to operate within thirty (30) miles of any dialysis
center or treatment program opcrated by NKC.

B

9.2  Nonsolicitation. During the period described in Section 9.). above, Doctor will
not, for his ar her own benefit or the benefit of others, directly or indirectly, (a) solicit any
business from any person ot entity that has or has had a business relationship with NKC, ot
disrupt or attempt to disrupt, any relationship, contractual or otherwise, between NKC and any
such person or entity, including aay patient, payor, physician, provider, managed care

S
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organization, or supplier; or (b) induce, or attempt to induce, any employee of NKC to terminate
his or her association with NKC.

9.3  Remedies. The parties agree that any breach or any threatened breach of any
covenant in this Scetjon 9 will cause irreparable injury to NKC and that the remcdy at law will
be inadequate. Therefore, in the cvent of any actual or threatcned breach of any provision of this
Section 9, NKC shall be cntitled to any or all of the followmg remedies: (2) preliminary and
permanent injunctions restraining such actual or threatened breach; (b) reasonable attomeys® fees
to enforce this Agrecraent; (c) damages; and (d) any and all other remcdics provided for at law or
in equity. The remedies under this section are cumulative, are in addition to any othays given
under this Agreement, by law or in equity, and may be enforced successively or concurrently at
NKC'’s option.

94  Priority of Patient Care. Nothing in thcse covenants shall be deemcd to prohibit
Doctor from exercising his or her medical judgment concerning the medical treatment of his or
her patienws in any manner whatsoever in any location whatsoever, and shall not be deemed to
require the referral of any such patient to any facility of NKC.

9.5  Divisibility. The parties agree that the covenants in this Section 9, including the
scope of the restricted activitics and the duration and geographic extent of such restrictions, are
fair and reasonably necegsary for the protection of the legitimate intcrests of NKC, in light of all
of the facts and circumstances of the relationship between the parties. If any court or other
tribunal of competent jurisdiction finds that this Section 9 is excessively broad and declines to
enforce any provision of this Section 9, the covenants lerein shall be deemed to be modified to
testrict the activitics of Doctor to the maximurm extent enforceable by law and in equity.

10. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

10.1 Mecdiation. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, in the event the
parties are unable to resolve a dispute relating to the terms of this Agrecment through good faith
cfforts, the partics shall submit such dispute to mediation before a mutually agreeable mediator
or if such peyson cannot be agreed upon within five (5) business days, to that mediator
dcsignated by the Seattle office of Judicial Dispute Resolution, L.L.C. In the event that Judicial
Dispute Resolution, L.L.C. no longer operates in Scattle, the mediatar shall be choscn by the
Presiding Judge (or designee) of the Superior Court of the State of Washington for King County.
When the mediator cannot be mutually agreed upon, the party sceking mediation shall apply to
Judicial Dispute Resolution, L.L.C. or the court within thirty (30) days of the date it learns, ot
reasonably should have learued, of the disputc and shall request mediation within forty (40) days.
The mediator’s fees shall be shared equally by the parties.

10.2  Arbitration. If such dispute is not resolved through mediation, the partics agree
to submit the dispute to binding arbitration before a mutnally agreeable arbitrator. If the parties
are unable to agree upon an arbitrator within ten (10) business days of the initial demand to
arbitrate the dispute, then the arbitrator may be designated by the Seattle Office of Judicial
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Dispute Resolution or any similar service mutually acceptable to the parties. If the Seattle Office
Judicial Disputc Resolution is no longer operating, and no mutual acceptable service is
identified, either party may pctition for the appointment of an arbitrator by the presiding judge of
the Superior Caurt of King County in and for the State of Washington.

The arbitrator shall not be bound by the Civil Rules or the Rules of Bvideoce but shall
have the authority to control thc conduct and timing of the proceedings, and may permit or deny
discovery as he or she doems appropriate. The decision of the arbitrator shall be binding on the
parties and enforceable by the courts of the Statc of Washington. Bach party shall bear its own
attorneys’ fees and share equally in the costs of arbitration, unless the arbitrator, in his or her
discretion, awards arbitration costs and attorneys’ fees to the substantialty prevailing party.

10.3 Violations of Selected Covenants. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreemcent, disputes relating to any breach or allcged breach of the covenants set forth in
Section 9 shall not be subject to thc mediation or arbitration provisions sct forth in Scetions 10.1
and 10.2 above. The parties may seek relief from any court for disputes involving such matters.

11. GENERAL PROVISIONS

11.1 Relationship of Partfes. In the performance of the professional work and
responsibilities for medical services assumed by Doctor under this Agreement, it is mutually
undcrstood and agreed that Doctor is an independent nephrologist.  Doctor shall exercise
medical judgment as a nephrologist, free of any direction or control of the NKC, in a manner
consistent with currently approved methods and practices of the profession and in compliance
with the standards and policies of the NKC’s Medical Staff. In administrative matters, it is
mutually understood and agreed that Doctor shall cause the Program to comply with all business
and adroinistrative policies prescribed by the NKC.

11.2 Nonassignzbility. This Agreement is personal to Doctor and Doctor shall not
assign or delegate rights and duties under this Agreement, except as expressly provided in

Section 1.4.

11.3 Notices. Any notice given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be served
personally or by depositing same in the United States mail, registered or certified, retum reccipt
requested, postege prepaid and addressed to the intended party set forth below, or to such other
addrcss as a party may bave fummished to the other as a place for the service of notice. Any
notice so mailed shall be dcemed to have becn given upon personal delivery or three (3) days
after the time the samc is deposited in the United States mail.

NKC: President & CEO
Northwest Kidney Centers
700 Broadway
Seattle, WA 98122

7
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Doctor:

11.4 No Requirement to Refer or Limit Services. Nothing in thia Agreement shall
be interpreted as requiring either party to make refcrrals of any items or services to the other, or
to limit or withhold items or services from patients, in violation of any federal, statc or local law.

115 Compliance with Applicable Laws. At all times during the tenn of this
Agreement, each of the partics shall perform their respective obligations hereunder in accordance
with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

11.6 Tax Exemption. This Agrcement shall be amended by the partics as NKC deems
necessary to protect its tax-exempt status.

11.7 Maodifications for Prospective Legal Events. If any federal, state or local law or
regulation, now existing or enacted or promulgated after the effective date of this Agreement is
interpreted by judicial decision, a regulatory agency or legal counsel to either patty in such a
manner as to indicate that a provision of this Agreement may be in violation of such law or
regulation, the parties shall amend this Agreement as necessary. To the maximum extent
possible, any such amendment shall preserve the underlying economic and financial
arrangements between the parties.

11.8 Miscellanenus. This Agreement (along with the exhibits attached hereto, which
are incorporated herein by this reference) constitutes the entire agreement between the parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior offers and negotiations, oral and
written. This Agreement may not be amended or modified in any respect whatsoever except by
an {nsoument in writing signed by the parties hereto. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be
deemcd to have becn made unless and until such waiver shall have been reduced to writing and
signed by the party to be bound. No waiver of any default undcr this Agreement shall constitutc
or opcrate as a waiver of any subscquent default hercunder. All terms of this Agreement shall be
binding upon and imure to the benefit of the parties’ respective successors and permitted assigns.
]f one or more of the provisions of this Agreement for any reason is held to be invalid, illegal or
unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any
other provisions of hereof, but this Agrcement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or
unenforceable provisions had not been contained herein,

8
DWT 28270643v} 0001795-000282

61



19/19/2016 13 27 4256441881

PAGE 89/11

Effective as of the first day of January 2017 wlien signed by both the Chief Medical
Officer and the Chief Executive Officer of NKC.

DOCTOR: NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS,
a Washmgxo corporation

IS

> By:
= Its Chicf Medical Offcer
Signahwe ‘
I By: .
_Pronk Fung Tix Plesidlent/Chicf/Bxecutive Officer

N ELOL ANALUT

Frank Fung, MD
WA License No. MD00035164
Insurance Carrier: Valley Medical Center Risk Management - VMCSP $1M/$3M

9
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Exhibit A to Medical Dircctor Agrcement

Facility Medical Director Responsibilities
NKC Renton Kiduey Center
See enclosed Exhibit frora NKC Policies

10
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em NORTHWEST

=F Kidney Centers

Administration/General

Facility Medical Director
Responsibilities

Application:
This policy applies to all NKC Medical Directors

Policy:
Exhibit A to Medical Director Agreement
1. DEFINITION OF THE TERM, “FACILITY MEDICAL DIRECTOR"”

The “Facility” as used in the Agreement means the dialysis facility RENTON
KIDNEY CENTER operated by the Northwest Kidney Centers. The “Medical
Director” is the nephrologist responsible for the delivery of patient care and
outcomes at the facility. The Medical Director is accountable to the
Operations Committee (the “facility governing body,” as defined in the
Conditions for Coverage) for the quality of medical care provided to
patients.

2. QUALIFICATIONS

The facility Medical Director must be a member of the NKC medical staff.
Per the federal Conditions for Coverage (42 C.F.R. § 494.140(a)V682, the
Medical Director must have completed a Board-approved training program
in nephrology and maintain current Board Certification in Nephrology, or
have been granted exception approval by the Secretary of DHHS (V683).
The Medical Director must have 12 months experience providing care to
patients receiving dialysis.

3. RESPONSIBILITIES

The Medical Director responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the
following:

Quality Assessment and Performance Improvement Programs

Printed 5/19/2017 ADM-F12074 Page 1 of6é



Northwest Kidney Centers
Administration/General/Facility Medical Director Responsibilities

1. The Medical Director shall ensure that the facility develops,
implements, maintains and evaluates an effective, data driven
Quality Assessment and Performance Improvement program
(“QA/PI program”) with participation by the professional members
of the inter-disciplinary team. The Medical Director is the chair of
the facility’s inter-disciplinary team and shall collaborate closely
with the Clinical Director in directing the QA/PI program.

2. The QA/PI program must reflect the complexity of the facility’s
organization and services and must focus on indicators related to
improved health outcomes and the prevention and reduction of
medical errors. The facility must maintain and demonstrate
evidence of its QA/PI program for review by CMS.

3. The QA/PI program, as defined in 42 C.F.R. § 494.110, must
include, but not be limited to, an ongoing program that achieves
measurable improvement in health outcomes and a reduction of
medical errors, using indicators or performance measures
associated with improved health outcomes and reduction of errors.

4. The Medical Director shall ensure that the facility measures,
analyzes and tracks quality indicators and other aspects of
performance that reflect processes of care and facility operations.
Components of the facility’s Quality Assessment program shall
include, but are not limited to, the following:

a. Adequacy of dialysis

b. Nutritional status

c. Mineral metabolism and renal bone disease
d. Anemia management

e. Vascular access

f. Medical injuries and medical errors identification: The Medical
Director shall review and monitor all Quality Improvement
Reports (QIRs), analyze trends and identify areas that need
remediation.

g. Patient satisfaction and grievances

Printed 5/19/2017 ADM-F12074 Page 2 of66



Northwest Kidney Centers
Administration/General/Facility Medical Director Responsibilities

h. Infection control: The facility shall analyze and document
incidence of infections, develop action plans to minimize
infection transmission and promote immunization, and take
actions to reduce future incidents.

5. The Medical Director shall ensure that the facility continuously
monitors performance, take actions that result in performance
improvements, and track performance to ensure that improvements
are sustained over time.

6. The Medical Director, in conjunction with the facility’s inter-
disciplinary team, shall set the priorities for the facility’s
Performance Improvement program considering prevalence and
severity of identified problems from the facility’s Quality
Assessment and giving priority to improvement activities that affect
clinical outcomes or patient safety.

7. The Medical Director is responsible for ensuring that the facility
correct any immediate problems that threaten the health and safety
of patients.

8. The Performance Improvement program goals and progress shall be
reviewed monthly by the inter-disciplinary team, and shall be
reported to the Operations Committee, per policy.

9. The Medical Director shall consult with attending physicians as
needed to achieve Performance Improvement program goals.

Staff Education/Training/Performance

1. The Medical Director shall ensure ongoing educational opportunities
are available and/or provided to the facility staff about care,
practices, and clinical topics. The Medical Director shall serve as a
medical consultant to facility staff and management.

2. The Medical Director shall ensure that education programs and in-
services, as delegated by the Medical Director to the NKC Clinical
Director of Education and Education Department, meet the needs of
the facility staff to ensure they demonstrate ongoing performance
and skill competencies.

Policies and Procedures

Printed 5/19/2017 ADM-F12074 Page 3 of66



Northwest Kidney Centers
Administration/General/Facility Medical Director Responsibilities

1. The Medical Director shall implement the development, periodic
review and approval of a “patient care policies and procedures
manual” for the facility, which manual shall be prepared by those
individuals designated by the Operations Committee.

2. The Medical Director shall ensure that all policies and procedures
related to patient care, infection control, and safety are adhered to
by the facility’s patient care staff and the attending physicians and
their extenders.

3. The Medical Director shall ensure that all policies and procedures
relating to patient admissions, transfers or discharges (as specified
in 42 C.F.R. § 494.180(f)) are adhered to by the facility’s patient
care staff and the attending nephrologist.

Direction of Professional Services in Emergencies

1. In a crisis or emergency, the Medical Director shall assure or cause
to be provided clinical management for patients whose attending
nephrologist cannot be reached for orders, but in all other instances
shall not interfere with the therapeutic autonomy of the attending
physician, per Medical Staff Bylaws.

Water Quality/Equipment/Environment/Safet

1. The Medical Director shall have knowledge and understanding of the
components of the facility’s water treatment system and how they
relate to ANSI/AAMI RD52:2004.

2. The Medical Director shall ensure that the water and equipment
used for facility’s dialysis meets the requirements found at
ANSI/AAMI RD52:2004.

3. The Medical Director shall monitor the quality of the facility’s water
and dialysate. He/she shall review all water systems testing (in
particular, for chlorine, chloramines, endotoxin and bacteria. Any
levels that deviate from the standard must have a corrective action
plan developed by the Medical Director and Facility System
Specialist.

4. The Medical Director shall ensure that all equipment used in the
facility for direct patient care is maintained in accordance with
manufacturers standards.

Printed 5/19/2017 ADM-F12074 Page 4 of6d



Northwest Kidney Centers
Administration/General/Facility Medical Director Responsibilities

5. The Medical Director shall ensure a sanitary environment in the
facility and monitor the transmission of infectious agents within the
facility.

6. The Medical Director shall ensure that facility staff demonstrate
compliance with infection control practices and report any issues to
the appropriate individuals, per policy.

Medical Leadership

1. The Medical Director shall proactively consult with nephrologists
and other physicians who provide care for patients in the facility
and serves as the representative of NKC to such physicians.

2. The Medical Director shall support the facility Clinical Director, who
is responsible for ensuring that each patient in the facility is
provided with an individualized and comprehensive assessment of
needs from which the patient’s plan of care is developed in the
timelines specified per policy. It is the responsibility of the
Operations Committee (not the Medical Director) to ensure medical
staff compliance with the facility’s comprehensive patient
assessment and plan of care policy.

3. The Medical Director shall participate as a member of the NKC
Medical Director team and attend monthly Medical Director
meetings.

4. The Medical Director is expected to attend medical staff meetings
and participate in NKC medical staff activities.

5. The Medical Director is required to submit a monthly log of hours
spent on medical director duties, due by the 10th day of the
following month. Compensation for the month is paid upon receipt
of the log.

6. As time allows, the Medical Director is encouraged to provide
leadership for clinical issues/improvements that affect the entire
organization (e.g., develop new protocols, revise standing orders,
change the electronic medical record, improve intake practices, and
oversee new programs for patients).

Printed 5/19/2017 ADM-F12074 Page 5 of66



Northwest Kidney Centers
Administration/General/Facility Medical Director Responsibilities

7. NKC encourages the Medical Director to attend continuing education
related to the medical director role. One meeting a year is funded
by NKC, with the advance permission of the CEO.

Community Links

1. The Medical Director serves as the facility’s medical representative
to other medical staff, patients and their family or caregivers (or
both), and the general public.

2. The Medical Director is asked to participate, as time allows, in
public events associated with the facility.

4. REPORTING AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITIES

1. The Medical Director is directly accountable to and reports to the NKC
Chief Medical Officer, who supervises his/her performance and
provides annual reviews.

2. The Medical Director is responsible to the Operations Committee in the
fulfillment of the responsibilities outlined for the Medical Director in the
Conditions for Coverage.

3. The Medical Director regularly collaborates with the:
e Facility’s Clinical Director
e Facility’s Nurse Manager
e Facility clinical staff including inter-disciplinary team members
e CMO
e Vice President of Clinical Operations
e Vice President of Administrative Operations
e President/CEO

e Other Medical Directors
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Exhibit B

Medical Director Compensation and Log

1. The compensation from NKC to Dactar is § 115,000 per year, payable in
equal monthly installments.

2, On or before the 10* day of each mouth, Doctor will submit a signed

medical director log documenting the hours be/she spent during the previous
month on medical director duties. Doctor is not entitled to payment from NKC

unless and until he/she submits the complered medical disector log for the
previous month.

-~
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AMENDMENT TO
MEDICAL DIRECTOR AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT TO THE MEDICAL DIRECTOR AGREEMENT (“Amendment”) is
entered into this 1% day of October, 2018, by and between Northwest Kidney Centers, a Washington
nonprofit corporation (“NKC™), and Frank Fung M.D. (“Doctor”).

RECITALS

NKC and Doctor entered into that certain Medical Director Agreement dated the 1% day of
January 2017 (“Agreement”); and

NKC and Doctor have agreed to amend the Agreement after arms-length negotiation and after
determining that such amendment is in the best interest of the community served by NKC.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and other consideration contained
in this Amendment and the Agreement, the delivery and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the

parties agree as follows:

1. Replacement of Exhibit B. The Agreement shall be amended by deleting, in its entirety,
Exhibit B, Medical Director Compensation, and substituting the following:

Exhibit B
Medical Director Compensation and Log

1. The compensation from NKC to Doctor is One Hundred Seventeen Thousand
($ 117,000) per year, payable in equal monthly installments.

2. On or before the 10™ day of each month, Doctor will submit a signed medical
director log documenting the hours and activities he/she spent during the previous month
on medical director duties. Doctor is not entitled to payment from NKC unless and until
he/she submits the completed medical director log for the previous month.

2. Conflict or Inconsistency. Except as specifically modified in this Amendment, all terms
and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. In the event of any conflict or
inconsistency between any of the provisions of the Agreement and any of the provisions of this
Amendment, the provisions of this Amendment shall control.

F. Fung MD - Oct 2018 Comp Amendment 72



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment is effective as of the date and year first written
above, when executed by Doctor and both the Chief Medical Officer and the President/Chief Executive

Officer of NKC.

DOCTOR NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS,
a Washington nonprofit corporation

, By: w "7/5"':774
\ \ Its Chief Medical Officer
By: Q'Ja '7

Its Preffdent/Chief Exgéﬂt'ive Officer

F. Fung MD - Oct 2018 Comp Amendment 73



Exhibit 10
Unofficial Deed from King County Assessor’s Office for NKC Renton Site
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Instrument Number: 20190829001316 Document:D Rec: $108.50 Page-1 of 6
Excise Docs: 3007740 Selling Price: $5,370,000.00 Tax Amount: $95,591.00 Record Date:8/29/2019 4:14 PM
Electronically Recorded King County, WA

_—- — ——mamm . .

Recordlng Requested By
FIRST AMERICAN TITLE

Natlonal Commercral Serwces

AFTER RECORDING, RETURN TO:

- - L —_

Davis Wright Tremaine LLP
920 Fifth Avenue, Suite 3300
Seattle, WA 98104

Attn: Elisabeth Woare

Qeff243-5 D

GRANTOR: CFGI

GRANTEE: NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

ABBREV.LEGAL: LOT 1, CITY OF RENTON BLA NO. LUA19-000117, REC. NO.
2019081490000
(Complete Legal on Exhibit A)

TAX PARCEL NO.: 9188000152

AL

CFGI OAKESDALE LLC, a Delaware himite
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency:
hereby bargains, sells, and conveys to NORTHWEST INE
nonprofit corporation (“Grantee™), all of Grantor’s interest ir‘and to the real estate situated in the
City of Renton, King County, Washington, and legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto
and incorporated herein by this reference, and SUBJECT TO those certain permitted exceptions
set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

DATED as of August 26, 2019.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

Bargain and Sale Deed
103163559.1 0064545-00014



Instrument Number: 20190829001316 Document:D Rec: $108.50 Page-2 of 6
Record Date:8/29/2019 4:14 PM King County, WA

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned executed this Bargain and Sale Deed as of
the date first written above.

GRANTOR:

CFGI OAKESDALE LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Scott Silvers
Authorized Signatory

Bargain and Sale Deed | Signature Page
103163559.1 0064545-00014



Instrument Number: 20190829001316 Document:D Rec: $108.50 Page-3 of 6
Record Date:8/29/2019 4:14 PM King County, WA

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF MU \k)

This record was acknowledged before me on thlS ] day of August, 2019, by Scott
Silvers as Authorized Signatory of CFGI OAKESDALE LLC, a Delaware limited liability

Notary Public for the State of New /7 k

My commission expires: %( Z

“MARISOL SANCHEZ
Notary Public - State of New York
NO. 01SA6210787

SR

Bargain and Sale Deed Acknowledgement
103163559.1 0064545-00014
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Instrument Number: 20190829001316 Document:D Rec: $108.50 Page-4 of 6
Record Date:8/29/2019 4:14 PM King County, WA

Exhibit A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

LOT 1, CITY OF RENTON SHORT PLAT NO LUA-98-074-SHPL,
RECORDED SEPTEMBER 10, 1998 UNDER RECORDING NUMBER
9809109004, IN KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON. WITH THE EXCEPTION
OF THE FOLLOWING; COMMENCING AT THE MOST NORTHERLY
CORNER OF SAID LOT 1, THENCE SOUTH 0°00'00" WEST, FOR A
DISTANCE OF 46.92 FEET ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID
LOT 3: THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID BOUNDARY LINE, SOUTH
48°16'15" WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 220.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH
41°50'41" EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 279.88 FEET; THENCE SOUTH
48°09'19" WEST FOR‘A DISTANCE OF 31.86 FEET; THENCE SOUTH
63°3236" WEST FOR DISTANCE OF 106.54 FEET TO THE
MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF LOT 2 OF SAID SHORT PLAT; THENCE
CONTINUE SOUTH 63°3236" WEST ALONG THE NORTHERLY
BOUNDARY OF SAID LO )R A DISTANCE OF 47.51 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 48°09'19" WEST, ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF LOT 2 FOR
A DISTANCE OF 47.56 FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID LOT 2
BOUNDARY, NORTH 41°5822" WEST. FOR A DISTANCE OF 317.72 FEET
TO POINT ALONG THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID LOT I;
THENCE ALONG THE SAID WES BOUNDARY OF LOT 1 THE
FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANEES, NORTH 37°0223" EAST FOR A
DISTANCE OF 18.78 FEET; THENCE" NORTH 20°23'07" EAST
FOR A DISTANCE OF 290.71 FEET; THENGE NORTH 90°00'00" EAST FOR
A DISTANCE OF 274.741 FEET TO THE PO F BEGINNING.

HT

Bargain and Sale Deed Exhibit A
103163559.1 0064545-00014



Instrument Number: 20190829001316 Document:D Rec: $108.50 Page-5S of 6
Record Date:8/29/2019 4:14 PM King County, WA

Exhibit B
PERMITTED EXCEPTIONS

1. Dedications and easements as contained and/or delineated on the face of the City of
Renton Short Plat No. LUA-98-074-SHPL recorded September 10, 1998 as Recording
No. 9809109004, in King County, Washington.

2. Dedications and easements as contained and/or delineated on the face of the Plat of

Washington Technical Center recorded November 30, 1982 as Volume 122 of Plats,
Pages 98 through 102, in King County, Washington.

3. Easement, including terms and provisions contained therein:
Recording Date: ~ January 12, 1970
Recording Information:’~ 6607884

In Favor of: City of Renton

For:

Aftects: s.described therein.

4. Easement, including terms and proviSions contained therein:

Recording Date:

Recording Information:

In Favor of: f ower & Light Company, a Washington
corporati

For; underground+electric transmission and/or distribution
systorn s

Affects: (Lot 1) as described therein.

5. Easement, including terms and provisions contain

C 1n:
Recording Date: May 28, 1999
Recording Information: 9905283540
In Favor of: City of Renton
For: native-growth protection
Affects: (Lot 1) as described therein.
6. Easement, including terms and provisions contained therein:
Recording Date: January 25, 2000
Recording Information: 20000125001314
In Favor of: City of Renton
For: public utility
Affects: as described therein.
Bargain and Sale Deed | Exhibit B
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Instrument Number: 20190829001316 Document:D Rec: $108.50 Page-6 of 6
Record Date:8/29/2019 4:14 PM King County, WA

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Covenants, conditions, restrictions and/or easements:

Recorded: May 28, 1999
Recording No.: 9905283541

Said instrument purportedly amended and supersedes instrument recorded September 10,
1998 under Recording No. 9809100433,

The Terms, Provisions and Easement(s) contained in the document entitled “Common
Area Cost-Sharing Agreement for Blackriver Corporate Park (Phase III, IV-A, IV-B, V,

VI, VII AND VIII)” recorded July 23, 1990 as Recording No. 9007230853 of Official
Records.

T'he terms, provisions and easement(s) contained in the document entitled "Agreement”

recorded July 22, 1992 Recordmg No. 9207222432 of Official Records.

The terms, provisions and‘€asement(s) contained in the document entitled "Agreement”
recorded October 08, 1998 as:Recording No. 9810080005 of Official Records.

doarhy

Ahy question that may arise du
River.

(Affects Lot 1)

Right of the State of Washington in and

described which lies below the line of ordi
(Affects Lot 1)

Rights of the general public to the unrestricted use.of all the waters of a navigable body of
water not only for the primary purpose of navigation, but also for corollary purposes;
including (but not limited to) fishing, boating, bathing, swimming, water skiing and other
related recreational purposes, as those waters may afféct the tidelands, shorelands or
adjoining uplands and whether the level of the water has been raised naturally or
artificially to a maintained or fluctuating level, all as further defined by the decisional law

of this state. (Affects all of the premises subject to such submergence)
(Aftfects Lot 1)

Charges for King County Sewage Treatment Capacity Charge, as authorized under RCW
35.58 and King County Code 28.84.050. Said charges apply to property connected to the
King County Sewer Service area on or after February 1, 1990.

[End of Exceptions]

Bargain and Sale Deed g Exhibit B
103163559.1 0064545-00014
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King County Assessor Information

81



m King County

— LS Home Howdol... Services AboutKing County Departments

King County Department of Assessments

Setting values, serving the community, and promoting fairness and equity.

You're in: Assessor >> Look up Property Info >> eReal Property

Department
of Reference
Assessments Links:
201 South King County Tax
Jackson Links
Street, Room ADVERTISEMENT —
%ﬂle WA Property Tax Advisor
98104 ¢ New Search
* Property Tax Bill Washington State
Office Hours: ¢ Map This Property Department of
Mon - Fri o Glossary of Terms Revenue (External
8:30 a.m. to « Area Report link)
4:30 p.m. « Print Property Detail
TEL: 206- ° L Washington State
296-7300 Board of Tax
FAX: 206- Appeals (External
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A Name NW KIDNEY CENTERS Levy Code 2100 Board of
Send Appeals/Equalization
ﬁ Site Address ggg SC;AKESDALE AVE SW Property Type c Appeals/Equalization
Plat Block / Building Number Districts Report
Geo Area 70-10 - Listricts neport
Plat Lot / Unit Number POR TRACT B
Spec Area Quarter-Section-Township- NE-24-23-4 iMap
P OAKESDALE CENTER - Range .
roperty Name BLDG A
Recorder's Office
Legal Description
WASHINGTON TECHNICAL CENTER PARCEL "A" CITY OF RENTON BOUNDARY LINE ADJUSTMENT NO LND-30- Scanned images of
0412 RECORDING NO 20190814900004 (BEING A PORTION OF NE QTR SE QTR STR 13-23-04 AND NW QTR NE surveys and other
QTR STR 24-23-04) TAXABLE PORTION map documents
PLat Block:
Plat Lot: POR TRACT B Scanned images of
plats
Noti iling date:
Lawo 0ATA bt minedte
ADVERTISEMENT
Highest & Best Use As If Vacant COMMERCIAL Percentage Unusable
SERVICE L NO
Highest & Best Use As PRESENT USE Restrictive Size Shape NO
Improved -
Present Use Office Park Zoning co
Land SqFt 101,038 Water WATER DISTRICT
Acres 2.32 s PUBLIC
Road Access PUBLIC
Parking ADEQUATE
Street Surface PAVED
Views Waterfront
Rainier Waterfront Location
Territorial Waterfront Footage 0
Olympics Lot Depth Factor 0
Cascades Waterfront Bank
Seattle Skyline Tide/Shore
Puget Sound Waterfront Restricted Access
Lake Washington Waterfront Access Rights NO
Lake Sammamish Poor Quality NO
Lake/River/Creek Proximity Influence NO
Other View
D N
Historic Site Topography
Current Use (none) Traffic Noise
Nbr Bldg Sites Airport Noise
Adjacent to Golf Fairway NO Power Lines NO
Adjacent to Greenbelt NO Other Nuisances NO
Other Designation NO Problems
Deed Restrictions NO Water Problems NO
Development Rights Purchased |NO Transportation Concurrency NO
Easements NO Other Problems NO
Native Growth Protection NO Environmental
Easement
DNR Lease NO NO
i i Deli i Percentage
Type Source study Affected
Wetland JURISDICTION [N 15
BUILDING
Building Number 1
Building Description 2';%2 Kidney Dialysis | Cjick the camera to see more pictures.

Picture of Building 1

Number Of Buildings
Aggregated

1
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Predominant Use z\giD)ICAL OFFICE gllick the camera _t?see more pictures.
loor plan of Building 1
Shape Long Rect or Irreg @
Construction Class MASONRY
Building Quality AVERAGE
Stories 1
Building Gross Sq Ft 21,663
Building Net Sq Ft 21,663
Year Built 2001
Eff. Year 2001
Percentage Complete 100
Heating System PACKAGE UNIT
Sprinklers Yes
Elevators
) Of Building Number: 1
| Section Number Section Use | Description |Stories | Height | Floor Number ‘Gross Sq Ft ‘ Net Sq Ft ‘
[1 MEDICAL OFFICE (341) | [1 [16 |1 |21663 21663 |
TAX ROLL HISTORY
Account v;':::‘ J::r (Y):‘ai: Iéz‘;’; Land Imps Total D:IeI:’rs Ti);l;le Tla:-il;le T??t:lle V::e
Value ($) | Value ($) | Value ($) ($) |Value ($) | Value ($) | Value ($) |Reason
9188000152012022 2023 2100 {589,100 [0 589,100 |0 589,100 |0 589,100
918800015292 2022 2023 2100 |2,088,400 (3,315,600 5,404,000 |0 2,088,400 |3,315,600 | 5,404,000
918800015201 2021 2022 2100 {539,000 [0 539,000 |0 539,000 |0 539,000
918800015292 2021 2022 2100 |1,911,100 (2,489,400 4,400,500 |0 0 0 0 NP
918800015201/2020 2021 2100 {489,000 [0 489,000 |0 489,000 |0 489,000
918800015292 2020 2021 2100 |1,733,800 (2,889,800 4,623,600 |0 0 0 0 NP
918800015201/2019  |2020 2100 |1,373,100 (0 1,373,100 |0 1,373,100 |0 1,373,100
918800015292 (2019 {2020 2100 {373,800 2,212,400 |2,586,200 |0 0 0 0 EX
918800015201/2018 |2019 2100 |1,590,300 (5,967,600 7,557,900 |0 1,590,300 | 5,967,600 | 7,557,900
918800015292 /2018 |2019 2100 {315,000 (2,355,400 2,670,400 |0 315,000 2,355,400 2,670,400
9188000152012017 |2018 2100 |2,961,400 (3,111,400 6,072,800 |0 2,961,400 |3,111,400 (6,072,800
918800015292 (2017  |2018 2100 {315,000 2,029,200 |2,344,200 |0 0 0 0 EX
9188000152012016 |2017 2100 |2,961,400 (2,926,000 5,887,400 |0 2,961,400 (2,926,000 | 5,887,400
918800015292 2016|2017 2100 {315,000 (1,908,400 |2,223,400 |0 0 0 0 EX
918800015201 2015 |2016 2100 |2,961,400 (2,798,000 |5,759,400 |0 2,961,400 |2,798,000 |5,759,400
918800015292 2015 |2016 2100 {315,000 (1,824,900 2,139,900 |0 0 0 0 NP
918800015201/2014 |2015 2100 |3,462,400 (2,714,500 6,176,900 |0 3,462,400 (2,714,500 |6,176,900
918800015292 2014|2015 2100 {368,300 (1,770,400 2,138,700 |0 0 0 0 EX
918800015201/2013  |2014 2100 |3,462,400 (2,968,600 6,431,000 |0 3,462,400 (2,968,600 6,431,000 |NP
918800015292 2013 |2014 2100 |368,300 (1,936,100 2,304,400 |0 0 0 0 NP
918800015201/2012 |2013 2100 |3,258,700 (2,932,300 6,191,000 |0 3,258,700 (2,932,300 6,191,000 |NP
918800015292 2012 |2013 2100 |346,600 (1,912,500 2,259,100 |0 0 0 0 NP
918800015201 2011 2012 2100 |3,605,300 |4,874,000 (8,479,300 |0 3,605,300 |4,874,000 |8,479,300
918800015201/2010 |2011 2100 |3,605,300 (4,344,700 7,950,000 |0 3,605,300 (4,344,700 |7,950,000
918800015201/2009 2010 2100 |3,605,300 (5,299,400 8,904,700 |0 3,605,300 |5,299,400 | 8,904,700
918800015201 /2008 |2009 2100 |3,380,000 (5,372,900 |8,752,900 |0 3,380,000 |5,372,900 | 8,752,900
918800015201 2007 {2008 2110 |2,253,300 |6,499,500 (8,752,800 |0 2,253,300 (6,499,500 (8,752,800
918800015201 /2006 |2007 2110 |2,253,300 (5,964,100 8,217,400 |0 2,253,300 |5,964,100 |8,217,400
918800015201 /2005 2006 2110 |2,253,300 (3,735,000 5,988,300 |0 2,253,300 (3,735,000 | 5,988,300
918800015201 /2004 |2005 2110 |2,253,300 (3,735,000 5,988,300 |0 2,253,300 |3,735,000 | 5,988,300
918800015201/2003 |2004 2110 |2,253,300 |3,501,700 |5,755,000 |0 2,253,300 3,501,700 | 5,755,000
918800015201|2002 {2003 2110 (1,126,600 |3,844,000 |4,970,600 (0 1,126,600 | 3,844,000 | 4,970,600
918800015201|2001 2002 2110 (1,126,600 |3,600,735 |4,727,335 (750,000/1,126,600 3,600,735 (4,727,335
918800015201|2000 {2001 2110 (1,126,600 |0 1,126,600 (0 1,126,600 |0 1,126,600
918800015201|1999 {2000 2110 (1,126,600 |0 1,126,600 (0 1,126,600 |0 1,126,600
918800015201|1998 |1999 2110 (1,126,600 |0 1,126,600 (0 1,126,600 |0 1,126,600
918800015201|1997  |1998 2110 |0 0 0 0 627,700 |0 627,700
SALES HISTORY
NE:;i::r R;ﬁ:ﬂi;g Dogl;r‘r;ent Sale Price Seller Name Buyer Name | Instrument Res:slin
CFGI NORTHWEST Bargain and
3007740 |20190829001316 | 8/26/2019 |$5,370,000.00 |OAKESDALE KIDNEY Sales Deed None
LLC CENTERS
kLOTT LEsLE |SFC! Trustees'
2875569 |20170707000498 |6/28/2017 |$0.00 M Eﬁé(ESDALE Deed Foreclosure
2167769 |20051108001407 | 11/812005 [$32,500,000.00 [RIVERTECH | DK RVER Woarany  |None
LLC Deed
REVIEW HISTORY

|Tax Year| Review Number| Review Type I Appealed Value | Hearing Date [ Settlement Value [ Decision | Status ]

[2011 1002016

|Loca| Appeal I$8,479,300

812312011

57,950,000

|REVISE [Completed |
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PERMIT HISTORY

Permit " P Permit Issuing |Reviewed
Number Permit Description Type |Issue Date Value |Jurisdiction| Date
E22000557 | SEQ# 7026058. LOAD BANK, 2/3/2022 |$300 RENTON
E20003532 |Adding Existing RTU unit to existing 300KW 8/17/2020 |$12,000 |RENTON  |7/8/2021
Generator.,
E20002192 |Installing Occupancy Switch for existing light 5/27/2020 |$1,000  |[RENTON  |7/2/2020

fixture inside new storage room.,

NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS STE A.
ADDITION OF TWO (2) WALLS AND A
B20001293 | DOOR WITHIN AN EXISTING 1-HOUR FIRE |Remodel |4/27/2020 |$4,700 RENTON 7/2/2020
RATED STORAGE ROOM. 53 SQ FT IN A
21950 SQ FT BUILDING.,

MARKET READY SUITE 202. ELECTRICAL
E19004718 |FOR FIRE ALARM UNDER PERMIT 9/13/2019 |$2,860 RENTON 7/2/12020
F19004716.,

MARKET READY SUITE 100. ELECTRICAL

E19004715 | E5R ALARM PERMIT UNDER F19004714.,

9/13/2019 |$2,860 RENTON 7/2/12020

MARKET READY SUITE 202. NON-
STRUCTURAL TENANT IMPROVEMENT.
WORK INCLUDES NON-STRUCTURAL
B19004259 | DEMOLITION; NEW PARTITIONS DOORS ~ |Remodel|9/12/2019 |$40,000 |RENTON 7/2/12020
SIDELIGHTS CASWORK AND FINISHES.
3441 SQ OF A 13537 SQ FT OFFICE
BUILDING.,

MARKET READY SUITE 100. NON-
STRUCTURAL TENANT IMPROVEMENT.
WORK INCLUDES NON-STRUCTURAL
B19004258 | DEMOLITION; NEW PARTITIONS DOORS ~ |Remodel|9/12/2019 |$40,000 |RENTON 7/2/12020
SIDELIGHTS CASWORK AND FINISHES.
3756 SQ OF A 13537 SQ FT OFFICE
BUILDING.,

A (Nonresidential Alteration) project installing
E19003256 |(Temporary Service). Additional Info (). Work 6/17/2019 |$350 RENTON 7/17/12019
Site Location (),

A (Nonresidential Alteration) project installing
E18005669 | (Adding or Altering Branch Circuits). 10/11/2018 |$3,680 RENTON 7/17/2019
Additional Info (). Work Site Location (),

A (Nonresidential Alteration) project installing
E18002590 | (Adding or Altering Branch Circuits). 5/16/2018 |$300 RENTON 7/17/2019
Additional Info (). Work Site Location (),

A (Nonresidential Alteration) project installing
E18000405 |(Security system). Additional Info (). Work 1/24/2018 |$600 RENTON 5/9/2018
Site Location (),

A (Nonresidential Alteration) project installing
E17001830 | (Adding or Altering Branch Circuits). 4/24/2017 |$350 RENTON 5/31/2017
Additional Info (). Work Site Location (),

A (Nonresidential Alteration) project installing
E17001723 | (Nurse Call). Additional Info (). Work Site 4/14/2017 |$500 RENTON 5/31/2017
Location (),

A (Nonresidential Alteration) project installing
E16004646 | (Security system). Additional Info (). Work 8/18/2016 |$500 RENTON 4/4/2017
Site Location (),

KIEL MORTGAGE STE B103 - REVISE
M15000121 | DUCTWORK FOR TENANT Remodel | 1/9/2015  |$4,000 RENTON
IMPROVEMENT,

E14006633 | KIEL MORTGAGE STE B103 - LOW

VOLTAGE VOICE AND DATA CABLING, | Remode!|12/20/2014/30 RENTON

A (Nonresidential Alteration) project installing
E14006622 |(Adding or Altering Branch Circuits). Remodel [12/24/2014 |$8,000 RENTON
Additional Info (). Work Site Location (),

KIEL MORTGAGE STE B103 - DEMOLITION
AND CONSTRUCTION OF PARTITIONS,
DOORS AND RELITES. RELOCATION OF
EXISTING LIGHT FIXTURES. 5,882 SQ FT,

B14006132 Remodel |12/23/2014 |$78,704  |RENTON

A (Nonresidential Alteration) project installing

E13006695 | (Adding or Altering Branch Circuits). Remodel | 12/23/2013 | $5,856 RENTON 1/11/2019
Additional Info (). Work Site Location (),
E110597 |LOW VOLTAGE FOR NW KIDNEY CENTER |Remodel [6/1/2011 |$0 RENTON 1/11/2019

MINOR EXTERIOR CHANGES AND
INTERIOR REMODEL FOR NW KIDNEY
B110056 |CENTER, MODIFY PARKING LAYOUT TO  |Remodel|4/15/2011 |$2,500,000 | RENTON 7/14/2011
PROVIDE DROP OFF AREA. ADD
VESTIBULE TO FRONT OF BUILDING.

BO90176 | lenantimprovement for Jack in the Box Remodel|6/19/2009 |$45,659 |RENTON  |6/30/2010
Corp., first floor.

Tenant improvement for Millenium digital 1st

B070278 (extr door) & 2nd floor.

Remodel |6/7/2007  |$327,000 |RENTON 5/12/2008

B050127 Remodel |4/12/2005 |$45,000 |RENTON 2/24/2006

B010075 Other  |3/27/2001 |$650,000 |RENTON 7/13/2001

B000262 Other  |6/16/2000 |$1,989,663 |RENTON 2/23/2001

B000261 Other 6/16/2000 |$1,317,078 | RENTON 2/23/2001

HOME IMPROVEMENT EXEMPTION

New Search

Property Tax Bill
Map This Property
Glossary of Terms
Area Report

Print Property Detail
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A\ Aldrich +Associates, Inc.

CONSTRUCTION SPECIALISTS

June 28, 2022

Eric Hernandez

Manager — Certificate of Need
Community Health Systems

Washington State Department of Health
PO Box 47852

Olympia, WA 47852

Dear Mr. Hernandez,

On behalf of Northwest Kidney Centers (NKC), | am writing regarding the certificate of need
application proposing the addition of 4 stations at the Northwest Kidney Centers Renton
facility. | am providing the following building construction estimate for the project. The
following costs are estimated.

Building Construction and Engineering Fees $211,000

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or require additional
information.

Sincerely,

Brendon Warme

Project Executive

810 - 240th Street SE, Bothell, WA 98021 | 425.483.1313 | www.aldrich-assoc.com | ALDRIA*202RU
; ' Every Time.
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&= NORTHWEST

=) Kidney Centers

June 30, 2022

Eric Hernandez, Program Manager
Certificate of Need Program
Department of Health

PO Box 47852

Olympia, WA 98504-7852

Dear Mr. Hernandez:

On behalf of Northwest Kidney Centers, I am writing to confirm our commitment to
use reserves for the capital expenditure for the following project:

The construction and equipping of four additional stations at the NKC Renton Kidney
Center. The estimated capital expenditure is $388,969.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or require additional
information.

Sincerely,

T

Julie Peterson
Interim Chief Financial Officer

89
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Payroll Name
Bromstrup, Shelley
Fernandez, Jenny E
Sabino, Caroline
Adajar, Reyjan

Adajar, Reyjan
Allanigue, Mitzelle F
Ang, Mhilz Salvo

Ang, Mhilz Salvo
Azarkhin, Ina
Baldovino Ventura, Mireya
Baldovino Ventura, Mireya
Bayan Jr, Romulo M
Bayan Jr, Romulo M
Brown, Celia

Chai, Ling

Cunanan, Feraida
Cunanan, Feraida

de Jesus, Ria

de Jesus, Ria

Dela Cruz, Justine Axl A
Dela Cruz, Justine Axl A
Elenzano, Ruby Jean J
Espiritu, Mariflor
Espiritu, Mariflor
Faminiano, Jeddah
Faminiano, Jeddah
Garcia, Melissa

Garcia, Melissa
Garibyan, Marta
Garibyan, Marta
Holmgren, Frances
Howard, Amanda
Howard, Amanda

Kye, Jamyn Donne

Kye, Jamyn Donne
Lumauig, Raul
Mangidoyos, Wilma Dar
Montgomery, Maria
Montgomery, Maria
Nguyen, Vy T

Nguyen, Vy T

Oamil, Ruby Divino

Job Title Description
Clinical Director / Interim Nurse Manager
Interim Nurse Supervisor
Interim Nurse Supervisor
PerDiem Dialysis Tech Il
PerDiem Dialysis Tech Il
Registered Nephrology Nurse
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
PerDiem Staff Nurse
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Social Worker Manager
Registered Nephrology Nurse
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
PerDiem Dialysis Tech Il
PerDiem Dialysis Tech Il
PerDiem Staff Nurse
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
PerDiem Dialysis Tech Il
PerDiem Dialysis Tech Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Licensed Practical Nurse
Dietitian, Registered
Dietitian, Registered
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Licensed Practical Nurse
Registered Nephrology Nurse
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
PerDiem Dialysis Tech Il
PerDiem Dialysis Tech Il
Dialysis Technician Il

Locationld
NRSAD
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
SS
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
NUTR
NUTR
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC

License/ Certification Description
Registered Nurse

Registered Nurse

Registered Nurse

Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

Registered Nurse

Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

Registered Nurse

Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

Social Worker

Registered Nurse

Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

Registered Nurse

Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

Licensed Practical Nurse

Registered Dietitian

Dietitian Certification

Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

Licensed Practical Nurse

Registered Nurse

Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

National Certification Test

License/
Certification ID
RN60886825
RN60834118
RN00174630
HT61031997
CCHT
RN60991453
HT61278937

RN61054109
HT61086665

HT61111754
1142854513

LW00009496
RN00175651
HT61088539
HT61037707
HT60973274

RN60236636
HT61005431

HT61028995
HT61026547
HT60372528
LP00047178
86102505
Di61110101
HT60648047
LP60224218
RN00163599
HT60821351

HT61085073

Expiration Date Hire Date

08/24/2022 06/11/2018
07/23/2022 09/24/2018
11/30/2022 07/08/2013
12/19/2022 11/04/2019
08/31/2023 11/04/2019
02/13/2023 08/30/2021
10/19/2022 11/08/2021
04/08/2023 11/08/2021
05/17/2023 11/16/2020
03/13/2023 01/06/2020
03/31/2024 01/06/2020
02/05/2024 08/03/2020
03/31/2025 08/03/2020
08/04/2022 08/16/1999
08/01/2022 05/24/2010
12/15/2023 03/02/2020
09/30/2024 03/02/2020
12/20/2022 09/30/2019
01/31/2024 09/30/2019
01/30/2024 01/27/2020
06/30/2024 01/27/2020
06/08/2023 08/21/2006
08/05/2022 04/22/2019
05/31/2023 04/22/2019
10/23/2022 09/30/2019
02/29/2024 09/30/2019
03/22/2023 08/05/2019
06/30/2024 08/05/2019
03/11/2024 06/02/2003
07/31/2024 06/02/2003
02/12/2023 04/12/1999
03/31/2023 05/31/2022
11/06/2022 05/31/2022
11/30/2022 03/19/2018
01/31/2023 03/19/2018
05/12/2023 10/06/2014
08/15/2022 08/16/2021
06/24/2023 07/24/2017
12/31/2024 07/24/2017
05/04/2023 02/10/2020
06/30/2024 02/10/2020
08/31/2022 05/07/2018
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Payroll Name

Oamil, Ruby Divino
Osorio, Alexa Grace F
Osorio, Alexa Grace F
Osorio, Scott

Osorio, Scott

Pasag, Lailani

Pasag, Lailani

Payne, Katherine Senin
Payne, Katherine Senin

Pelismino, Delia O
Pelismino, Delia O
Perkins, Jeremy
Raynock, Maria |
Raynock, Maria |
Rose, Gary
Safarova, Nargiza R
Safarova, Nargiza R
Sokoloff, Lara
Sokoloff, Lara
Stevens, Alexandria
Stevens, Alexandria
Ta, Loan Hong
Tauane, Gayla
Tauane, Gayla
Terrado, Jirah C
Trinh, Lan

Truong, Tuyet
Ugrai, Diana

Ugrai, Diana

Van, Leanna

Van, Leanna
Yohannes, Muzit
Yohannes, Muzit
Young, Grace
Young, Grace

Job Title Description
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Clinical Unit Coordinator
Clinical Unit Coordinator
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Facility Systems Specialist
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
PerDiem Staff Nurse
PerDiem Dialysis Tech Il
PerDiem Dialysis Tech Il
Dietitian, Registered
Dietitian, Registered
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il

Registered Nephrology Nurse

Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il

Registered Nephrology Nurse
Registered Nephrology Nurse

PerDiem Staff Nurse
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il
Dialysis Technician Il

Locationld
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
FSS
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
NUTR
NUTR
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC
RKC

License/ Certification Description
Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test
Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test
Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test
Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test
Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test

No licensure required
National Certification Test
Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
Registered Nurse
Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test
Registered Dietitian
Dietitian Certification
Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test
Registered Nurse
Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test
Registered Nurse
Registered Nurse
Registered Nurse
Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test
National Certification Test
Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia
National Certification Test
National Certification Test
Medical Assistant Hemodialysis Technicia

License/
Certification ID
HT60896367
HT61244776

HT60377157
HT60781215
61292973

HT60365271

HT60944529
RN60088960
HT60911070

864385
DI60400405
HT60825871

RN60855079
HT60840302

RN61062848

RN60166514
RN61204848

HT60373691
HT61226217

HT60365758

Expiration Date Hire Date

06/22/2023 05/07/2018
12/16/2022 08/16/2021
01/16/2023 08/16/2021
09/08/2022 07/25/2011
02/29/2024 07/25/2011
04/16/2024 03/06/2017
07/31/2024 03/06/2017
04/29/2023 01/03/2022
06/03/2023 01/03/2022
09/22/2022 03/15/2004
02/29/2024 03/15/2004

03/07/2016
08/31/2022 04/15/2020
10/27/2023 04/15/2020
01/20/2023 12/16/2019
02/23/2023 07/09/2018
03/31/2023 07/09/2018
08/31/2022 11/04/2019
07/02/2023 11/04/2019
10/25/2022 07/24/2017
07/28/2023 07/24/2017
08/20/2022 08/13/2018
11/29/2022 06/03/2019
07/31/2024 06/03/2019
10/13/2022 11/02/2020
12/05/2022 03/05/2018
04/09/2023 11/08/2021
08/07/2022 02/07/2022
07/07/2023 02/07/2022
12/31/2023 09/07/2010
02/16/2024 09/07/2010
10/25/2022 07/12/2021
12/12/2022 07/12/2021
02/29/2024 03/17/2008
04/05/2024 03/17/2008
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Exhibit 15
Mutual Aid Plan
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DocuSign Envelope ID- 865F 13E9-CC64-46FD-B302-CABAF2DFD098

Mutual Aid Plan for Provision of Dialysis Services

Introduction and Background

Dialysis providers are susceptible to disasters and either emergencies that could exceed the resources of
any individual dialysis provider in an "all-hazards" disaster planning environment. While dialysis
providers prepare for resource shortages through strategies such as maintaining disaster equipment and
supply stockpiles and creating agreements with vendors to mitigate the impact of resource shortages,
additional approaches may be necessary to respond fully to acute and/or long-term shortages.

The purpose of this Mutual Aid Plan (MAP) is to support resaurce requests and distribution between
dialysis providers during emergencies or disasters of any nature. The resources covered by the MAP
consist of dialysis supplies, equipment, personnel and related items and individuals. The MAP outlines
how participation will occur, routes of communication to implement the MAP, reimbursement
procedures and the voluntary nature of the Plan among other protocols. It is assumed that all dialysis
providers will exhaust internal resources and all normal channels for resupply before activating the MAP
agreement.

WHEREAS, the Signatory Organizations {See Article Il - Definitions} have expressed a mutual
interest in the establishment of a Mutual Aid Plan to facilitate and encourage emergency assistance
among participants; and

WHEREAS, in the event of an emergency, a Signatory Organization who has executed this MAP
may need emergency assistance in the form of supplemental equipment, materials, personnel and/or
other support; and

WHEREAS, each Signatory Organization may own and maintain equipment, stock materials and
employ trained personnel for a variety of services and is willing, under certain conditions, to lend its
supplies, equipment and/or staff to other Signatory Organizations in the event of an emergency; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth in this Mutual Aid Plan, the
undersigned Signatory Organization agrees as follows:

Article | - APPLICABILITY

Execution of this MAP by a Signatory Organization occurs when a Signatory Organization signs an
identical version of this MAP.

Article Il - DEFINITIONS

A. ‘'Assistance Costs' means any direct material costs, equipment rental fees, fuel, and the fully
loaded labor costs that are incurred by the Lender in providing any requested assets or services
{see Article Xll for additional clarity).

B. ‘Borrower' means a Signatory Organization who has adopted, signed and subscribes to this MAP
and has made a request for emergency assistance and has received commitment(s) to fulfill the
request(s) pursuant to the terms of this MAP. Borrower is a facility directly affected by the
disaster.
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Mutual Aid Plan for Provision of Dialysis Services

C. Disaster includes, but is not limited to, a human-caused or natural event or circumstance within
the area of operation of any participating Signatory Organization causing or threatening loss of
life, damage to the environment, injury to person or property, human suffering or financial loss.
Examples include: fire, explosion, flood, severe weather, drought, earthquake, volcanic activity,
spills or releases- of hazardous materials, contamination, utility or transportation emergencies,
disease, infestation, civil disturbance, riots, act of terrorism or sabotage where the event is or
likely will be beyond the capacity of the affected Signatory Organization(s} in terms of
personnel, supplies and/or equipment thereby requiring emergency assistance. The 'Disaster’
may affect an individual facility or several health care facilities at or about the same time. Since
the community is also affected, local vendors may be caught in the same disaster incident.

D. ‘Emergency assistance' means employees, services, equipment, materials and/or supplies
offered during a disaster by the Lender and accepted by the Borrower to assist in maintaining or
restoring normal services affected by the disaster.

E. 'Emergency Contacts' are the persons, in a line of succession, listed in Exhibit 1 for each
Signatory Organization. The list includes names and 24-hour phone numbers of the emergency
contact points of each Signatory Organization. The people listed as Emergency Contacts have (or
can quickly get) the authority of the Signatory Organization to commit available equipment,
services, and personnel for the organization.

F. ‘Emergency Management Agencies' refers to city, county, state and federal agencies that have
responsibility for disaster mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery phases. These
agencies own and staff Emergency Operations Centers (EOCs) / Emergency Coordination
Centers {ECCs) that may provide non-medical resources, if available, to Borrower organizations.

G. 'First Responder Agencles' refers to local fire, EMS and police; typically accessed through 911 or
a non-emergency direct line.

H. 'Healthcare Emergency Coordination Center (HECC)', operated by the Northwest Healthcare
Response Network, functions as a Multi-Agency Coordination Center supporting all healthcare
providers across Western Washington.

I. ’Lender’ means a Signatory Organization who has signed this MAP and has agreed to deliver
emergency assistance to another Signatory Organization pursuant to the terms and conditions
of this MAP.

1. 'Mutual Aid Plan {(MAP)' means this MAP.

K. Northwest Healthcare Response Network is a regional preparedness coalition comprised of
hospitals and other healthcare facilities whose mission is to prepare for and respond to and
recover from emergencies as a collaborative healthcare network.

L. 'Signatory Organization' means the executive governing authority of any public or private
dialysis provider that chooses to subscribe to and sign onto the MAP.

Article lll - PARTICIPATION
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Mutual Aid Plan for Provision of Dialysis Services

A disaster almost always involves the local first responder agencies, local emergency management
agency, and other local, county, and state regulatory and emergency response agencies. The disaster
may be an "external” or "internal” event for facilities and in order to activate the MAP assumes that
each Borrower's internal emergency management and operations plans have been implemented.

It is agreed, acknowledged, and understood that participation in this MAP is purely voluntary and at the
sole discretion of the requested Lender for staff, supplies and equipment. Signatory Organizations are
encouraged to provide full support to the MAP, but no Signatory Organization shall be liable to another
Signatory Organization for, or be considered to be in breach of or default under this MAP on account of
any delay in or failure to perform any obligation under this MAP. Additionally, there are areas where
advance information and participation is expected under this plan:

A. Modifications: Ensure that Exhibit 1 has the Organization's most current Emergency Contacts.
Should any changes occur during the plan year that preclude your facility from participating, it is
required that all parties be notified.

B. Implementation of the MAP: During a disaster, only the authorized Emergency Contacts (or
designee) or Command Center at each Signatory Organization, local or state health department
or Emergency Management Agency and the HECC have the authority to request or offer
assistance through the MAP. Signatory Organizations should coordinate the sharing of resources
directly with each other.

C. If the disaster is widespread and the Mutual Aid Plan is no longer effective between Signatory
Organizations due to the severity of the disaster, the dialysis facility may contact the local health
department, local EOCs or Washington State Department of Health for assistance.

Article IV - ROLE OF EMERGENCY CONTACT FOR SIGNATORY ORGANIZATIONS

Signatory Organizations agree that their Emergency Contacts or their designee can serve as
representatives of the Signatory Organizations in any meeting to work out the language or
implementation issues of this MAP.

The Emergency Contacts from a Signatory Organization shall:

A. Act as a single point of contact for information about the availability of resources when other
Signatory Organizations seek assistance.

B. Take the initiative to obtain and communicate decisions and discussion items of the meeting.

C. Maintain a hard-copy manual containing the MAP including a list of Signatory Organizations who
have executed this MAP.

Article V - TERM AND TERMINATION
A. This MAP is effective upon execution by Signatory Organizations.

B. A Signatory Organization opting to terminate its participation in this MAP shall provide written
termination notification to Signatory Organizations. Any terminating Signatory Organization
shall remain liable for all obligations incurred during its period of participation, until the
obligation is satisfied.
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Mutual Aid Plan for Provision of Dialysis Services

Article VI - PAYMENT FOR SERVICES AND ASSISTANCE

A. Borrower shall pay to the Lender all valid and invoiced Assistance Costs within 60 days of receipt
of the Lender's invoice {unless other date is mutually agreed upon), for all of the Emergency
Assistance services provided by the Lender. in the event the Lender provides supplies or parts,
the Lender shall have the option to accept payment of cash or in kind for the supplies or parts
provided.

B. Reimbursement for Patient Care: The Borrower and the Lender acknowledge that there will be
payment issues to be addressed between the facilities and that revenue will be divided based on
the amount and type equipment, supplies and/or personnel loaned. The facilities agree to:

1. Attempt to work out the division of payment amicably amongst themselves and
incorporate into the discussions, as necessary, the Washington State Department of
Health and the appropriate payer (private, state or federal.)

2. [l the dispute requires Mediation or Arbitration, see Article XIV Section E.

3. If the dispute escalates to require Litigation, see Article XIV Section F.

Article VII - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Lender shall be and operate as an independent contractor of Borrower in the performance of any
Emergency assistance. Employees of Lender shall at all times while performing Emergency assistance
continue to be employees of Lender and shall not be deemed employees of Borrower for any purpose.
Wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment of Lender shall remain applicable to all of
its employees who perform Emergency assistance. Lender shall be solely responsible for payment of its
employees' wages, any required payroll taxes and any benefits or other compensation. Borrower shall
not be responsible for paying any wages, benefits, taxes, or other compensation directly to the Lender's
employees, but shall reimburse Lender for same when invoiced by Lender. The costs associated with
borrowed personnel are subject to the reimbursement process outlined in Article XIi. In no event shail
Lender or its officers, employees, agents, or representatives be authorized (or represent that they are
authorized} to make any representation, enter into any MAP, waive any right or incur any obligation in
the name of, on behalf of or as agent for Borrower under or by virtue of this MAP.

Article VIli- REQUESTS FOR EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE

Requests for Emergency assistance shall be directed to the designated Emergency Contact(s) on the
contact list provided by the Signatory Organizations - Exhibit 1. Those resources will be paid for by the
organization submitting the request for emergency assistance. The extent to which the Lender provides
any Emergency assistance shall be at the Lender's sole discretion.

In the event the emergency impacts a large geographical area that activates State and/or Federal
emergency laws, this MAP shall remain in effect until or unless this MAP conflicts with such laws.
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Mutual Aid Plan for Provision of Dialysis Services

Article IX- GENERAL NATURE OF EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE (Equipment, supplies and personnel)

Emergency Assistance is in the form of resources, such as equipment, supplies, and personnel or the
direct provision of services. The execution of the MAP shall not create any duty to respond on the part
of any Signatory Organization hereto. A Signatory Organization shall not be held liable for failing to
provide Emergency Assistance. A Signatory Organization has the absolute discretion to decline to
provide any requested Emergency Assistance and to withdraw resources it has provided at any time
without incurring any liability. Resources are "borrowed" with reimbursement and terms of exchange
varying with the type of resource as defined in Articles X through XH. The Signatory Organizations
recognize that time is critical during an emergency and diligent efforts are made to respond to a request
for resources as rapidly as possible, including any notification{s} that requested resources are not
available.

Article X - LOANS OF EQUIPMENT

Use of medical and non-medical equipment shall be at the Lender's current equipment rate, or if no
written rates have been established, at the hourly operating costs set forth in an industry standard
publication or as mutually agreed between Borrower and Lender. Equipment loans are subject to the
following conditions:

A. At the option of the Lender, loaned equipment may be loaned with an operator. See Article X}l
for terms and conditions applicable to use of borrowed personnel.

B. Loaned equipment shall be returned to the Lender upon release by the Borrower, or
immediately upon the Borrower's receipt of an oral or written notice from the Lender for the
return of the equipment. When notified to return equipment to a Lender, the Borrower shall
make every effort to return the equipment to the Lender's possession within 24 hours following
notification.

C. Borrower shall, at its own expense, supply all fuel, lubrication and maintenance for loaned
equipment. The Borrower takes proper precaution in its operation, storage and maintenance of
Lender's equipment. Equipment shall be used only by properly trained and supervised
operators. Borrower takes responsibility to assure users are properly trained in the use of any
equipment or supplies. Lender shall endeavor to provide equipment in good working order. All
equipment is provided "as is", with no representations or warranties as to its fitness for
particular purpose.

D. Lender's cost related to the transportation, handling, and loading/unloading of equipment shall
be chargeable to the Borrower. Lender shall provide copies of invoices for such charges where
provided by outside sources and shall provide hourly accounting of charges for Lender's
employees who perform such services.

E. Without prejudice to a Lender's right to indemnification under Article XIV herein, in the event
loaned equipment is lost or damaged while being dispatched to Borrower, or while in the
custody and use of the Borrower, or while being returned to the Lender, Borrower shall
reimburse the Lender for the reasonable cost of repairing said damaged equipment. If the
equipment cannot be repaired within a time period indicated by the Lender, then Borrower shall
reimburse Lender for the cost of replacing such equipment with equipment, which is of equal
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condition and capability. Any determinations of what constitutes “equal condition and
capability" shall be at the discretion of the Lender, If Lender must lease or rent a piece of
equipment while the Lender's equipment is being repaired or replaced, Borrower shall
reimburse Lender for such costs. Borrower shall have the right of subrogation for all claims
against persons other than parties to this MAP who may be responsible in whole or in part for
damage to the equipment. Borrower shall not be liable for damage caused by the sole
negligence of Lender's operator(s}.

Article XI- EXCHANGE OF MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES.

Borrower shall reimburse Lender in kind or at Lender's actual replacement cost, plus handling charges,
for use of partially consumed or non-returnable materials and supplies, as mutually agreed between
Borrower and Lender. Other reusable materials and supplies which are returned to Lender in clean,
damage-free condition shall not be charged to the Borrower and no rental fee is charged. Lender shall
determine whether items returned are "clean and damage- free" and items shall be treated as partially
consumed or non-returnable materials and supplies if item is found to be damaged.

Article Xli - LOANS OF PERSONNEL

Lender may, at its option, make such employees as are willing to participate available to Borrower at
Borrower's expense equal to Lender's full cost, including employee's salary or hourly wages, call back or
overtime costs, benefits and overhead, and consistent with Lender's personnel union contracts, if any,
or other conditions of employment. Costs to feed and house loaned personnel, if necessary, shail be
chargeable to and paid by the Borrower. The Borrower is responsible for assuring such arrangements as
may be necessary te provide for the safety, housing, meals, and transportation to and from job
sites/housing sites (if necessary) for loaned personnel. The Signatory Organizations' Emergency Contacts
or their designees shall develop planning details associated with being a Borrower or Lender under the
terms of this MAP. Lender personnel providing Emergency Assistance shall be under the operational
control of the command structure of the Borrower. Lender shall not be liable for cessation or slowdown
of work if Lender's employees decline or are reluctant to perform any assigned tasks if said employees
judge such task to be unsafe.

A request for loaned personnel to direct the activities of others during a particular response operation
does not relieve the Borrower of any responsibility or create any liability on the part of the Lender for
decisions and/or consequences of the response operation. Loaned personnel may refuse to direct the
activities of others without creating any liability on the part of the Lender. Any valid licenses issued to
Lender personnel by Lender or Lender's state, relating to the skills required for the emergency work,
may be recognized by the Borrower during the period of emergency and for purposes related to the
emergency (interstate actions would require appropriate approvals by the State of Washington). When
notified to return personnel to a Lender, the Borrower shall make every effort to return the personnel to
the Lender immediately after notification.

Article Xili - RECORD KEEPING AND DOCUMENTATION
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Time sheets and/or daily logs showing hours worked and equipment and materials used or provided by
the Lender are recorded on a shift-by-shift basis by the Lender and/or the loaned employee(s) and
provided to the Borrower as needed. If no personnel are loaned, the Lender provides shipping records
for materials and equipment, and the Borrower is responsible for any required documentation of use of
material and equipment for state or federal reimbursement.

The documentation is presented 1o the Administration/Finance Section of the Incident Command
System or appropriate financial officers and materials management personnel when the Incident
Command System is demobilized. All necessary information will be provided to the Borrower to support
reimbursement efforts. Under all circumstances, the Borrower remains responsible for ensuring that the
amount and quality of all documentation is adequate to enable disaster reimbursement.

Article XIV - INDEMNIFICATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

A. INDEMNIFICATION. Except as provided in section B., to the fullest extent permitted by
applicable law, the Borrower releases and shalt indemnify, hold harmless and defend each
Lender and City/County Emergency Management Agencies, their officers, employees and agents
from and against any and all costs, including costs of defense, claims, judgments or awards of
damages asserted or arising directly or indirectly from, on account of, or in connection with
providing Emergency Assistance, resources or patient care to/for the Borrower, whether arising
before, during or after performance of the Emergency Assistance or patient care and whether
suffered by any of the Signatory Organizations or any other person or entity. The Borrower, city
and county emergency management agencies agree that their obligation under this section
extends to any claim, demand and/or cause of action brought by or on behalf of any of its
employees, or agents. For this purpose, the Borrower and emergency management agencies, by
mutual negotiation, hereby waives, as respects any indemnitee only, any immunity that is
otherwise available against such claims under the Industrial Insurance provisions of Title 51 RCW
of the State of Washington and similar laws of other states.

B. ACTIVITIES IN BAD FAITH, NEGLIGENCE OR BEYOND SCOPE. Any Signatory Organizations shall
not be required under this MAP to indemnify, hold harmless and defend any other Signatory
Organization from any claim, loss, harm, liability, damage, cost or expense caused by or resulting
from the activities or negligence of any Signatory Organizations officers, employees, or agents
acting in bad faith or performing activities beyond the scope of their duties.

C. LIABILITY FOR PARTICIPATION. In the event of any liability, claim, demand, action or proceeding,
of whatever kind or nature arising out of rendering of Emergency Assistance through this MAP,
the Borrower agrees, to indemnify, hold harmiess, and defend, to the fullest extent of the law,
each signatory to this MAP, whose only involvement in the transaction or occurrence which is
the subject of such claim, action, demand, or other proceeding, is the execution and approval of
this MAP.

D. DELAY/FAILURE TO RESPOND. No Signatory Organization shall be liable to another Signatory
Organization for, or be considered to be in breach of or default under this MAP on account of
any delay in or failure to perform any obligation under this MAP, except to make payment as
specified in this MAP,
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E. MEDIATION AND ARBITRATION. If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Contract, or the
breach thereof, and if said dispute cannot be settled through direct discussions, the parties
agree to first endeavor to settle the dispute in an amicable manner by mediation. Thereafter,
any unresolved controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this MAP, or breach thereof,
may be settled by arbitration, if they agree to do so, and judgment upon the award rendered by
the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. The parties to this
Contract may seek to resolve disputes pursuant to mediation or arbitration but are not required
to do so.

F. SIGNATORY ORGANIZATION LITIGATION PROCEDURES. Each Signatory Organization seeking to
be released, indemnified, held harmless or defended under this Article with respect to any claim
shall promptly notify the Borrower of such claim and shall not settle such claim without the
prior consent of Borrower, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Such Signatory
Organization shall have the right to participate in the defense of said claim to the extent of its
own interest. Signatory Organization's personnel shall cooperate and participate in legal
proceedings if so requested by the Borrower, and/or required by a court of competent
jurisdiction.

Article XV - SUBROGATION

A. BORROWER'S WAIVER. Borrower expressly waives any rights of subrogation against the Lender,
which it may have on account of, or in connection with, the Lender providing Emergency
Assistance to the Borrower under this MAP,

B. LENDER'S RESERVATION AND WAIVER Lender expressly reserves its right to subrogation against
the Borrower to the extent the Lender incurs any self-insured, self-insured retention or
deductible loss. The Lender expressly waives its rights to subrogation for all insured losses only
to the extent the Lender’s insurance policies, then in force, permit such waiver.

Article XVI - WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYEE CLAIMS

Lender's employees, officers or agents, made available to Borrower, shall remain the general employee,
officer or agents of Lender while engaged in carrying out duties, functions or activities pursuant to this
MAP, and each Signatory Organization shall remain fully responsible as employer for all taxes,
assessments, fees, premiums, wages, withholdings, workers' compensation and other direct and indirect
compensation, benefits, and related obligations with respect to its own employees. Likewise, each
Signatory Organization shall provide worker's compensation in compliance with statutory requirements
of the state of residency.

Article XVII - MODIFICATIONS

No provision of this MAP may be modified, altered, or rescinded by any individual Signatory
Organization without concurrence of the Signatory Organizations. Modifications to this MAP must be in
writing and becomes effective upon approval of the modification by the Signatory Organizations.
Modifications must be signed by an authorized representative of each Signatory Organization.

101



DocuSign Envelope |D: 865F 13E9-CC64-46FD-B302-CASAF20F D0Y8
Mutual Aid Plan for Provision of Dialysis Services

Article XVill - NON-EXCLUSIVENESS AND PRIOR MAPS

This MAP shall not supersede any existing mutual aid MAP or MAPs between Signatory Organizations,
and as to assistance requested by a party to such mutual MAP within the scope of the mutual aid MAP,
such assistance shall be governed by the terms of the mutual aid MAP and not by this MAP.

Article XIX - GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY

This MAP is subject to laws, rules, regulations, orders, and other requirements, now or hereafter in
effect, of all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the emergencies covered by this MAP, the
Signatory Organization or either of them.

Article XX - NO DEDICATION OF FACILITIES

No undertaking by one Signatory Organization to the other Signatory Organizations under any provision
of this MAP shall constitute a dedication of the facilities or assets of such Signatory Organization, or any
portion thereof, to the public or to the other Signatory Organization.

Nothing in this MAP shall be construed to give a Signatory Organization any right of ownership,
possession, use or control of the facilities or assets of the other Signatory Organization.

Article XXI - NO PARTNERSHIP

This MAP shall not be interpreted or construed to. create an association, joint venture or partnership
among the Signatory Organizations or to impase any partnership obligation or liability upon any
Signatory Organization. Further, no Signatory Organization shall have any undertaking for or on behalf
of, or to act as or be an agent or representative of, or to otherwise bind any other Signatory
Organization,

Article XXH - NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY

Nothing in this MAP shall be construed to create any rights in or duties to any Third Party, nor any
liability to or standard of care with reference to any Third Party, This MAP shall not confer any right, or
remedy upon any person other than the Signatory Organizations. This MAP shall not release or
discharge any obligation or liability of any Third Party to any Signatory Organizations.

Article XXil - ENTIRE MAP
This MAP constitutes the entire MAP amongst the Signatory Organizations.
Article XXIV - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

This MAP is not transferable or assignable, in whole or in part, and any Signatory Organization may
terminate its participation in this MAP subject to Article V.

Article XXV - GOVERNING LAW
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This MAP shall be interpreted, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of Washington
State.

Article XXV! - VENUE
Any action which may arise out of this MAP shall be brought in Washington State.
Article XXVII - TORT CLAIMS

{t is not the intention of this MAP to remove from any of the Signatory Organizations any protection
provided by any applicable Tort Claims Act. However, between Borrower and Lender or the Borrower
retains full liability to the Lender for any claims brought against the Lender as described in other
provisions of this MAP,

Article XXVIII - WAIVER OF RIGHTS

Any waiver at any time by any Signatory Organizations of its rights with respect to a default under this
MAP, or with respect to any other matter arising in connection with this MAP, shall not constitute or be
deemed a waiver with respect to any subsequent default or other matter arising in connection with this
MAP. Any delay short of the statutory period of limitations, in asserting or enforcing any right, shall not
constitute or be deemed a waiver.

Article XXIX - INVALID PROVISION

The invalidity or unenforceability of any provisions hereof, and this MAP shall be construed in all
respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provisions were omitted.

Article XXX - NOTICES

Any notice, demand, information, report, or item otherwise required, authorized, or provided for in this
MAP shall be conveyed and facilitated by the Signatory Organizations. Such notices, given in writing, and
shall be deemed properly given if (i} delivered personally, {ii) transmitted and received by telephone
facsimile device and confirmed by telephone, or (iii) sent by United States Mail, postage prepaid.

Article XXX! - PUBLIC RELATIONS

Each Signatory Organization is responsible for developing and coordinating with other Signatory
Organizations and for the media response to the disaster in coordination with other agencies using a
Joint information System {JIS) approach.

10
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Mutual Aid Plan for Provision of Dialysis Services
Signatory Documentation Sheet

IN WHITNESS WHEREOF, the Signatory Organization hereto has caused this Mutual Aid Plan to be
executed by duly authorized representatives as of the date of their signature:

Organization: l?uget Sound Kidney Centers
Signed: - ! g

printed: __AAeuD Kel,

Title: HesSipetr ¢ CED
Date: “31/2‘{// 2/

Organi . Kvest Kidney Centers
Rlnua €op

Rebecca Fox

Signed:

Printed:

Title: president and CEO
3/23/2021

Date:

Organization: Olympic Peninsula Kidney Center
Signed: Lu 4

Printed: /%‘)M Kéll;i/

Title: P R2ES/pEnr ¢ CEOD:

Date: %AZ‘;// 2

Organization: Seattle Children’s Hospital

Signed: m{ﬂ ?ﬂ/ﬁf?//? M\)/(é’\

Printed: /.é ' %-

Title: V/C(/FV/(%C/W /ﬂm«a’f/cﬂ/é £ aNﬂ
Date: 5/3//9/ '

The document will be reconfirmed as needed.

i1
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Exhibit 1 - Contacts

(Refer to NW Renal Network, Medicare.gov, or corresponding organizational websites for current
listings of dialysis locations)

Puget Sound Kidney Centers
Primary Contact Name: Amanda Crain, COO Phone; (Cell) 425-328-6388
Secondary Contact Name: Aaron Herold, CAQ Phone: {Cell) 425-309-2001

Olympic Peninsula Kidney Center
Primary Contact Name: Amanda Crain, COO Phone: (Cell) 425-328-6388
Secondary Contact Name: Aaron Herold, CAQ Phone: (Cell) 425-309-2001

Northwest Kidney Centers
Primary Contact Name: Phone:

Secondary Contact Name: Phone:

Seattle Children’s Hospital

Primary Contact Name: 7},0/')/)/ ¢ [@Z}{L}I\&l Phone: ZO& - 79 7’ Lfg gﬂ

o

Second‘aw Contact Name: CI\/ Phone: W Zﬁ & _ 7717/_‘ 8 3& ?
Kinth e Dona
g 2l - 7897 - 1578
Kk eds ce! O//Wﬂy Cll- 206 - 356 - 7/1).
01 oo

12

105



Mutual Aid Plan for Provision of Dialysis Services

Exhibit 1 — Contacts

(Refer to NW Renal Network, Medicare.gov, or corresponding organizational websites for current
listings of dialysis iocations)

Puget Sound Kidney Centers
Primary Contact Name: Amanda Crain, COO

Secondary Contact Name: Aaron Herold, CAQ

Olympic Peninsula Kidney Center
Primary Contact Name: Amanda Crain, COO

Secondary Contact Name: Aaron Herold, CAQ

Northwest Kidney Centers
Primary Contact Name: Liz McNamara

Secondary Contact Name: Administrator on call

Seattle Children’s Hospital
Primary Contact Name: Bonnie Fryzlewicz, CNO

Secondary Contact Name: Ruth McDonald, CMO

Contacts updated as of 6.8.2021

Phone: (Cell) 425-328-6388

Phone: (Cell) 425-309-2001

Phone: {Cell) 425-328-6388

Phone: {Cell} 425-309-2001

Phone: 253-569-1668

Phone: 206-969-1249

Phone: 206-987-4480
Phone: 206-987-1518

Cell: 206-356-7111

12
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TRANSFER AGREEMENT BETWEEN

NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS AND SWEDISH MEDICAL CENTER

This Transfer Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into this 2" day of October 2013,
(the "Effective Date"), between Swedish Medical Center ("SMC") and Northwest Kidney
Centers, including the dialysis centers listed in the attached Schedule 1, ("NKC"), the transferring
facility. SMC and NKC are sometimes collectively referred to as the “parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement in order to speeify the rights
and duties of each of the parties;

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to facilitate continuity of patient care and
the timely transfer of patients and records betwcen NKC and SMC;

WHEREAS, only a patient’s attending physician at NKC can refer patients to SMC;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises herein contained and for other
good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows:

1. SMC Obligations

In accordance with the policies and procedures as hereinafter provided, and upon the
recommendation of a NKC attending physician, a patient of NKC may be transferred to

SMC.,

)

b)

If a determination is made by the NKC attending physician that a patient requires
transfer from NKC to SMC, SMC agrees to admit the patient as promptly as possible,
as long as it has the available space, qualified personnel, and appropriate services for
the treatment of the patient, and the requirements are met in accordance with Federal
and State laws/regulations.

SMC agrees to accept referrals of NKC patients regardless of age, sex, race, national
origin, or ability to pay.

2. NKC Obligations

a)

b)

NKC will have the responsibility for transferring the patient and agrees to arrange
qualified personnel and equipment as required, including the use of necessary and
medically appropriate life support measures, during the transfer.

NKC agrees to provide appropriate documentation and completed forms of clinical
care in order to ensure continuity of patient care. This information should include, as
needed, appropriate portions of the patient's medical record and relevant transfer
forms. This information will be sent at the time of transfer unless doing so would
jeopardize the patient; in which case, the documentation will be sent as promptly as
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possible after the transfer.
c) To the extent possible, patients will be stabilized prior to transfer.

d) All transfers will be done in accordance with Federal and State laws/regulations and
in accordance with the standards of The Joint Commission.

e) NKC will be responsible for the transfer or other appropriale disposition of personal
effects, particularly money and valuables and information related to those items.

Billing, Payment, and Fees

SMC and NKC each shall be responsible for billing the appropriate payor (s). Charges for
services performed by either party shall be collected by the party rendering the service from the
patient, third party payor, or other sources normally billed by the party. Neither party shall have any
liability to the other for such charges, except to the extent such liability would exist separate from this
Agreement. The parties shall cooperate with each other in the exchange of information about financial
responsibility for services rendered by them to patients who are transferred to SMC.

Indemnification

NKC shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend SMC, its agents and employees from and
against any claim, Joss damage, cost, expense or liability, including reasonable attorney's fees,
arising out of or related to the performance or nonperformance of NKC, its agents and
employees or any services to be performed or provide by NKC under this Agreement.

SMC shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend NKC, its agents and employees from and against
any claim, loss damage, cost, expense or liability, including reasonable attorney's fees, arising out of
or related to the performance or nonperformance of SMC, its agents and employees or any services to
be performed or provide by SMC under this Agreement

Insurance

The parties shall maintain at their own expense comprehensive general and professional liability
insurance and property damage insurance adequate to insure them against risk arising out of this
Agreement, with limits no less than those customarily carried by similar facilities. Upon request, both

parties shall furnish each other with evidence of such insurance.

Medicare and Medicaid Participation

NKC hereby represents and warrants that neither NKC nor its principals (if applicable) are
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or excluded from
participation in any federally funded health care program, including Medicare and Medicaid. NKC
hereby agrees to immediately notify SMC of any threatened, proposed, or actual debarment,
suspension, or exclusion from any federally funded health care program, including Medicare and
Medicaid. In the event that NKC is debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible
or excluded from participation in any federally funded health care program during the term of this
Agreement, or if at any time after the effective date of this Agreement it is determined that NKC
is in breach of this Section, this Agreement shall as of the effective date of such action or breach,
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automatically terminate. NKC further understands that SMC periodically checks contracted
individuals and entities against the Office of the Inspeclor General (OIG) and General Service
Administration (GSA) databases of Excluded Individuals and Entities and will notify NKC if it
discovers a match. SMC will take reasonable measures to verify that the match is the same
individual or entity before taking any action to terminate any underlying agreement(s).

7. Term

a) This Agreement shall be effective for an initial one (1) year term from the Effective Date and
shall continue in effect indefinitely after such initial term, except that either party may
terminate by giving thirty (30) days notice in writing to the other party of its intention to
terminate the Agreement.

b) If either party shall have its license to operate its facility revoked by the State or become
ineligible as a provider of service under Medicare or Medicaid laws, this Agreement shall
automatically terminate on the date such revocation or ineligibility becomes effective.

8. Miscellaneous

a) Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as limiting the rights of either party to contract
with any other facility or entity on a limited or general basis.

b) This Agreement may be modified and amended from time to time by mutual agreement
of both parties.

¢) This Agreement may be signed in counterparts.

SIGNATURES:

SWEDISH MEDICA NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

~ Signed: | QL—Z Qﬂﬁﬁd’b_
Name: TQ a & g‘ﬂumm_&ﬂ_{ 41) Name: Joyce F. hckson
Title: C Wy C‘E E\f\ E?LUL\' N Title: President & CEO

Date: \D\\ "\\\\,f’) Date: _/Q/Z;/Z__S S

Signed:
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NKC Facilities - Transfer Agreement

NOTES

NKC Auburn Kidney Center 1501 W. Valley Highway, N. Auburn WA 98001-1606 | 253-804-8323 206-292-2708 | 253-709-9550 & 253-561-1673 | 253-804-8323
NKC Bellevue Kidney Center 1474 112th Avenue, NE Bellevue WA 98004-3762 | 425-454-0067 | 425-451-2501 | 425-985-9510 & 425-623-5074 | 425-454-0067
NKC Broadway Kidney Center 700 Broadway Seattle WA 98122-4302 | 206-292-2708 206-292-2708 | 206-465-5112 & 206-708-3402 | 206-292-2705
NKC Burien Kidney Center 12901 20th Avenue, South SeaTac WA 98168 206-923-3562 | 206-923-3566 | 206-465-5749 & 206-708-3403 | 206-923-3562
NKC Elliott Bay Kidney Center 600 Broadway, Suite 240 Seattle WA 98122-5371 | 206-292-2515 206-292-2138 | 206-465-9110 & 206-708-3422 | 206-292-2515
NKC Enumclaw 857 Roosevelt Way, E. Enumclaw WA 98022-9239 | 360-825-2050 | 360-825-2103 | 253-397-6506 & 253-397-6046 | 360-397-2050
NKC Everett Kidney Center 1010 SE Everett Mall Way, Suite 104 Everett WA 98208 425-906-5270 425-906-5275 425-903-1640

NKC Federal Way East Kidney Center 33820 Weyerhaeuser Way, So., Suite 100 | Federal Way WA 98001 253-943-6262 253-943-6272 | 253-348-3431 & 253-348-3565

NKC Federal Way West Campus 501 S. 336th Street, Suite 110 Federal Way WA 98003 253-943-6312 253-943-6322 | 253-341-6131 & 253-341-6299

NKC Fife Kidney Center 6021 12th Street, East - Suite 100 Fife WA 98424 253-943-6335 | 253-943-6272 | 253-341-0364 & 253-341-5439

NKC Kent Kidney Center 25316 74th Avenue, So. - Suite 101 Kent WA 98032-6022 | 253-850-6810 253-850-6815 | 253-508-7140 & 253-397-0131 | 253-850-6810

405 Corporate Center Bldg.

NKC Kirkland Kidney Center 11327 NE 120th Street Kirkland WA 98034 425-821-8785 | 206-823-9667 | 425-985-9556 & 425-809-2271 | 425-821-8785
NKC Lake City Kidney Center 14524 Bothell Way, NE Lake Forest Park | WA 98155-7606 | 206-365-5543 206-365-5543 | 206-465-9466 & 206-708-3431 | 206-365-0775
NKC Port Angeles Kidney Center 809 Georgiana Street Port Angeles WA 98362-3511 | 360-565-1440 | 360-565-1440 | 360-808-3091 & 360-912-1153 | 360-5651435
NKC Rainier Beach Kidney Center 4401 S. Trenton Street Seattle WA 98118 206-720-8807 206-720-8737 | 206-584-7295 & 206-584-7382

NKC Renton Kidney Center 602 Oakesdale Avenue, SW Renton WA 98057-5224 | 425-251-0647 | 425-251-0713 | 425-985-9515 & 425-681-3372 | 425-251-0647
NKC Scribner Kidney Center 2150 N. 107th, Suite 160 Seattle WA 98133-5609 | 206-363-5090 206-363-6146 | 206-465-7828 & 206-708-3418 | 206-363-5090
NKC SeaTac Kidney Center 17900 International Blvd. Suite 301 SeaTac WA 98188-4232 | 206-901-8700 | 206-901-8722 | 206-465-9325 & 206-708-3427 | 206-901-8700
NKC Seattle Kidney Center 548 15th Avenue Seattle WA 98122-5609 | 206-720-3940 206-720-3945 | 206-465-4955 & 206-708-3394 | 206-292-2774
NKC Snoqualmie Ridge Kidney Center | 5131 SE Douglas Street - Suite 113 Snoqualmie WA 98065-9233 | 425-396-7090 | 425-396-4328 | 425-766-7261 & 425-736-3301 | 425-396-7090
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Clark Nuber s

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees
Northwest Kidney Centers
Seattle, Washington

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Northwest Kidney
Centers (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

clarknuber.com




Clark Nuber

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Effect of Adopting New Accounting Standard

As discussed in Note 1, the Organization adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board'’s
Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) - Presentation
of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization’s 2018 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated
September 27, 2018.

In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2018, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements
from which it has been derived.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The consolidating statement of financial position on page 25 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

(ke ushen PS

Certified Public Accountants
September 26, 2019



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Current portion of receivables, net (Note 2)
Third party settlements receivable (Note 3)
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Investments (Note 4)

Assets limited as to use:
Pledges for the acquisition of long-term assets (Note 2)
Board-designated endowment investments
Donor-restricted endowment investments

Deposits

Deferred compensation investments (Note 9)

Beneficial interest in split-interest agreements (Notes 4 and 5)

Property and equipment, net (Note 6)

Total Assets
Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Construction payables

Current portion of pledge to the University of Washington (Note 11)
Accrued expenses

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7)

Total Current Liabilities

Deferred compensation (Note 9)

Deferred tenant leasehold allowance (Note 10)

Deferred rent (Note 10)

Long-term pledge to the University of Washington, net of current portion (Note 11)
Interest rate swap contract (Note 8)

Long-term debt, net (Note 7)

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions-
Undesignated
Board designated (Note 12)

Total net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets with donor restrictions
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See accompanying notes.

2019 2018
6,892,040 S 7,836,424
20,917,074 22,002,417
1,509,387 2,298,750
1,286,177 1,283,182
1,017,347 477,412
31,622,025 33,898,185
59,131,354 59,693,599
1,564,190 1,691,853
3,590,629 3,557,611
3,169,703 2,927,143
170,680 170,680
897,255 807,478
1,582,084 1,836,172
92,204,342 51,547,425
193,932,262 $ 156,130,146
4,189,619 S 4,724,128
9,196,188 5,704
1,400,041 1,584,872
7,742,891 7,565,470
2,714,626 486,792
25,243,365 14,366,966
897,255 807,478
1,893,761 972,754
1,459,554 1,426,939
2,600,000 3,600,000
3,659,538 814,404
34,702,968 11,964,156
70,456,441 33,952,697
111,674,831 110,951,172
3,590,629 3,557,611
115,265,460 114,508,783
8,210,361 7,668,666
123,475,821 122,177,449
193,932,262 $ 156,130,146




NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidated Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

2019

Without Donor
Restrictions

With Donor
Restrictions

Total

2018 Total

Revenues and Support:

Net patient service revenue (Note 2) S 129,547,705 S - S 129,547,705 S 126,393,026
Contributions 1,009,240 1,451,392 2,460,632 1,734,192
Gain on disposition of fixed assets 27,011 27,011 22,451
Investment income and realized gains

on investments, net (Note 5) 2,067,766 2,067,766 7,121,878
Net assets released from restrictions

for program purposes 1,452,151 (1,452,151)
Total Revenues and Support 134,103,873 (759) 134,103,114 135,271,547
Expenses:
Program services 115,347,895 115,347,895 106,858,934
Management and general 15,855,703 15,855,703 18,995,295
Fundraising 1,068,358 1,068,358 1,074,277
Total Expenses 132,271,956 132,271,956 126,928,506
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and

Support Over (Under) Expenses 1,831,917 (759) 1,831,158 8,343,041
Other:
Contributions for capital purchases

or endowment 889,897 889,897 1,202,297
Change in value of split-interest

agreements (Note 5) (254,088) (254,088) 24,467
Change in value of interest

rate swap contract (Note 8) (2,845,134) (2,845,134) (814,404)
Unrealized gains (losses)

on investments (Note 5) 1,603,561 170,918 1,774,479 (3,208,548)
Other (97,940) (97,940)
Net assets released from restrictions

for capital purchases 166,333 (166,333)
Total Other (1,075,240) 542,454 (532,786) (2,796,188)
Change in Net Assets 756,677 541,695 1,298,372 5,546,853
Net assets, beginning of year 114,508,783 7,668,666 122,177,449 116,630,596
Net Assets, End of Year $ 115,265,460 $ 8,210,361 $ 123,475,821 $ 122,177,449

See accompanying notes.



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Program Management
Services and General Fundraising 2019 Total 2018 Total

Salaries, wages and contracted services $ 49,634,409 S 8,520,854 S 453,572 $ 58,608,835 S 55,069,317

Employee benefits and taxes 11,465,494 1,597,599 84,854 13,147,947 12,351,433
Supplies and drugs 26,725,101 216,695 150,524 27,092,320 28,792,281
Purchased services and lab fees 7,930,040 2,204,455 259,990 10,394,485 10,377,624
Depreciation and amortization 5,643,224 1,406,165 16,794 7,066,183 6,582,670
Rent 5,472,023 343,192 3,611 5,818,826 5,171,517
Utilities and other 3,775,623 1,365,032 87,749 5,228,404 5,048,375
Gifts and grants 3,556,939 3,556,939 2,711,135
Insurance 347,076 175,784 354 523,214 455,569
Bad debt expense 696,841 8,075 704,916 230,289
Interest 101,125 25,927 2,835 129,887 138,296
Total Expenses $ 115,347,895 $ 15,855,703 $ 1,068,358 $ 132,271,956 $ 126,928,506

See accompanying notes.



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities-
Depreciation and amortization
Debt issuance cost amortization
Gain on disposition of fixed assets
Contributions restricted for long-term purposes
Net unrealized (gain) loss on investments
Net loss (gain) on split-interest agreements
Change in value of interest rate swap contract
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in receivables
Increase in inventories
Increase in prepaid expenses
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable
Decrease in pledge to the University of Washington
Increase in accrued expenses
Increase in deferred tenant leasehold allowance
Increase in deferred rent

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Cash proceeds from contributions restricted
for acquisition of long-term assets
Cash proceeds from contributions restricted for endowment
Cash proceeds from long-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Cash paid for bond issuance costs

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Supplementary Disclosures of Transactions:
Construction in progress in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Cash paid during the year for interest

See accompanying notes.

2019 2018

$ 1,298,372 5,546,853
7,066,183 6,582,670
128,438 8,250
(27,011) (22,451)
(889,897) (1,160,287)
(1,774,479) 3,208,548
254,088 (24,467)
2,845,134 814,404
1,874,706 (3,361,897)
(2,995) (126,382)
(539,935) (30,251)
(534,509) 848,430
(1,184,831) (411,902)
177,421 638,530
921,007 272,545
32,615 62,035
9,644,307 12,844,628
(12,268,891) (93,804,231)
14,330,037 91,201,437
(38,509,705) (16,234,243)
4,100 50,058
(36,444,459) (18,786,979)
745,354 739,420
272,206 42,011
25,325,000 5,270,000
(486,792) (478,381)
(369,337)

25,855,768 5,203,713
(944,384) (738,638)
7,836,424 8,575,062
$ 6,892,040 7,836,424
$ 9,196,188 5,704
$ 129,887 138,296



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 1 - Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization - Northwest Kidney Centers (NKC) is a Washington not-for-profit organization comprised of kidney dialysis
centers, with 17 locations in King County, 1 location in Clallam County, and 1 location in Pierce County of Western
Washington. NKC provides kidney dialysis services to in-center, home and hospital patients and operates an outpatient
pharmacy. In addition to patient care, NKC supports education and research, including support of the Kidney Research
Institute and the Center for Dialysis Innovation, both operated by the University of Washington.

NKC has joined with several other members to form Northwest Kidney Care Alliance, a Washington nonprofit miscellaneous
corporation. This entity is consolidated with NKC for reporting purposes due to NKC having control and economic interest.

Principles of Consolidation - These financial statements include the financial statements of Northwest Kidney Centers and
Northwest Kidney Care Alliance (collectively, the Organization). All intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

Basis of Presentation - The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting.

Net assets and revenues, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.
Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets which are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations;

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations which may or will be met by
actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time.

Contributions, which include unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period received. Conditional
promises to give are not recognized until such time as the conditions are substantially met. Contributions of noncash assets
are recognized at their estimated fair market value on the date of contribution. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, total contributions were $3,350,529 and $2,936,489, respectively.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless the use of the related assets is limited by
donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses
on investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions
unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law. Expirations of temporary donor restrictions on net
assets (i.e. the donor-stipulated purpose has been fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) result in the
reclassification of net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions and are reported in the
consolidated statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates include the patient
receivable allowances, fair value of beneficial interests in split-interest agreements, third-party payor revenue settlements,
government payor revenue settlements, fair value of interest rate swap contracts, depreciation useful lives and
methodologies, and the functional allocation of expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 1 - Continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents include investments with original maturities at the date of purchase
of three months or less, except cash and cash equivalents held as a part of the Organization’s investment portfolio.

Inventories - Inventories of drugs and other supplies are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the
average cost method.

Investments - Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities
are measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Organization has elected to measure and
report its investment in a private real estate fund at net asset value (NAV). Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
NAV is a practical expedient alternative to fair value for investments in qualifying investment companies that do not have a
readily determinable fair value.

Investment income or loss (including realized gains and losses on investments, interest and dividends, and investment fees)
is included in the excess (deficiency) of revenues and support over (under) expenses unless the income or loss is restricted
by donor or by law. Unrealized gains and losses on investments are excluded from the excess (deficiency) of revenues and
support over (under) expenses, but are included in the total change in net assets.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the instance of donated properties, at fair
value as of the date of gift. The Organization capitalizes expenditures for property and equipment that cost over $1,000 and
have a service life of greater than two years. The Organization provides for depreciation and amortization using the
straight-line method over the following estimated lives:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 10 to 40 years
Medical, office and other equipment 4 to 20 years
Computer and telecommunications equipment 3 years

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Support Over (Under) Expenses - The consolidated statement of activities includes
excess (deficiency) of revenues and support over (under) expenses. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions which
are excluded from excess (deficiency) of revenues and support over (under) expenses, consistent with industry practice,
include unrealized gains and losses on investments other than trading securities, unrealized change in value of interest rate
swap contracts, contributions with donor restrictions, and contributions of long-lived assets, including assets acquired using
contributions restricted by donors for the acquisition of such assets and the related releases.

Patient Accounts Receivable - The Organization reviews patient accounts receivable balances on a regular basis to assess
potential risk of credit loss. Patient balances are reviewed in conjunction with current economic conditions to determine
the need for an allowance for doubtful accounts. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a
charge to patient revenues and an increase to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of
individual accounts. Balances still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off
through a charge to the valuation allowance and a decrease to patient accounts receivable.

Financing Costs - Financing costs are recorded as a deduction to the related debt liability on the consolidated statement of
financial position. Financing costs are amortized over the term of the applicable debt using the straight-line method which
is not materially different from the results that would have been obtained under the effective yield method. Amortization
of financing costs are included as a component of interest expense on the consolidated statement of activities.
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 1 - Continued

Methods Used for Allocation of Expenses Among Program and Supporting Services - The consolidated financial
statements report the direct expenses of program, management and general and fundraising functions. All expenses that
can be assigned are assigned to each function as incurred. Certain buildings house both clinical departments and
administrative departments. The depreciation associated with those buildings is allocated on the basis of square footage of
the functional departments. Information technology is allocated based on department personnel count.

Medical Malpractice Claims - The Organization is insured with respect to medical malpractice on a claims-made basis. The
Organization has not experienced a history of significant malpractice claims. Based on its past experience and a review of
recent incidents, management has not recorded a liability for possible malpractice losses, as the probability that such claims
would have a material adverse effect on the Organization’s financial condition or activities is remote.

Federal Income Tax - The Internal Revenue Service has recognized Northwest Kidney Centers as exempt from federal
income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). Northwest Kidney Care Alliance is a taxable
nonprofit miscellaneous corporation. Northwest Kidney Care Alliance has recognized no revenue for the years ended
June 30, 2019 or 2018. Accordingly, no provision has been made for federal income tax in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Financial instruments that subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk include
cash, investments and accounts receivable. The Organization maintains cash and investment deposits with major financial
institutions. The Organization has established guidelines relative to diversification and maturities in its investment portfolio
that seek to maintain safety and liquidity. In most cases, amounts in the investment portfolios and the bank accounts are in
excess of federally insured limits.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and all of whom are
eligible to be insured under third-party payor agreements. The health programs are dependent upon continued funding
from government agencies and the legislative acts that impact the programs. The fee for service revenues from these
programs are subject to periodic audit and review by the governmental agencies. See Note 2 for the Organization’s mix of
gross receivables from third-party payors and net patient service revenue.

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement - For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization adopted the Financial
Accounting Standards Board's Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14 - Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958):
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. This update addresses the complexity and understandability
of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of
consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and investment return amongst not-for-profit entities. The
changes required by the update have been applied retrospectively to all periods presented. A key change required by ASU
2016-14 are the net asset classes used in these consolidated financial statements. Amounts previously reported as
unrestricted net assets are now reported as net assets without donor restrictions and amounts previously reported as
temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets, if applicable, are now reported as net assets with
donor restrictions.



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 1 - Continued

New Accounting Pronouncements - In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue From Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606). The objective of the ASU is to standardize the revenue recognition practices across entities,
industries, jurisdictions, and capital markets by providing a framework for entities to apply to recognize revenue. This new
framework provides a five-step approach for recognizing revenue. In addition to consideration on recognizing revenue
based on existing customer contract terms and features, entities will be required to enhance qualitative and quantitative
disclosures in financial statements to describe how revenue is recognized under the ASU. The guidance in this ASU is
effective for the Organization's year ending June 30, 2020.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions
Received and Contributions Made (Topic 958). The objective of this ASU is to assist organizations in evaluating whether
transactions should be accounted for as contributions or as exchange transactions subject to other guidance, and
determining whether a contribution is conditional. The guidance in this ASU is effective for the Organization’s year ending
June 30, 2020.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. This amends ASC Topic 825 and redefines public business entities
along with disclosure and reporting requirements for certain types of investments and debt obligations. This amendment
requires that equity securities be treated as trading securities and that changes in the fair value of equity securities will be
reported as part of investment income within the operating indicator excess {deficiency) of revenue over expenses. The
amendment also eliminated the requirement for nonprofit organizations to disclose the fair value of assets and liabilities
that are measured at unamortized cost in the financial statements, including the fair value of fixed-rate debt. The guidance
in this ASU is effective for the Organization's year ending June 30, 2020.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The objective of this ASU is to assist organizations
in recognizing the right to the use of an asset and its related liability or obligation when there is a contract in place that
includes the right to control or direct the use of an identifiable asset. This ASU also includes provisions whereby the
majority of leases that have lease terms greater than one year are to be recorded as capital leases on the statement of
financial position, whereas in the past, these leases might have been recorded as either capital leases or operating leases.
The guidance in this ASU is effective for the Organization's year ending June 30, 2021.

Summarized Information for 2018 - The consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation
in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 from which the summarized information was derived.

Reclassifications - Certain reclassifications were made to the 2018 financial statements to conform to the 2019 presentation.
The reclassifications have no effect on the previously reported total assets, liabilities, net assets, and change in net assets.

-10 -



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 2 - Receivables, Revenues and Discounted Services

Receivables at June 30 consisted of the following:

2019 2018
Patient service receivables S 24,484,471 S 24,185,836
Less allowance for contractual adjustments (3,887,245) (3,610,389)
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (761,857) (314,515)
Patient service receivables, net 19,835,369 20,260,932
Unconditional promises to give 2,066,341 1,841,535
Other receivables 579,554 1,591,803

S 22,481,264 S 23,694,270

Patient Service Receivables - The mix of patient service receivables, not including the allowance for doubtful accounts and
contractual adjustments from third-party payors at June 30 was as follows:

2019 2018
Medicare and Medicaid 38% 39%
Other third-party payors and hospitals 62% 61%
100% 100%
The mix of patient service revenue for the years ended June 30 was as follows:
2019 2018
Medicare and Medicaid 74% 72%
Other third-party payors and hospitals 26% 28%
100% 100%

The Organization has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Organization at amounts
different from its established rates. Net patient service revenue is reported at estimated net realizable amounts from
patients, third-party payors and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. See Note 3 for
further discussion.

Contractual adjustments amounted to $422,870,537 and $355,871,708 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Patient service revenues are reported in the consolidated financial statements net of these contractual
adjustments. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material
amount in the near term.
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 2 - Continued

As is consistent with the nonprofit mission of the Organization, the Organization provides access to all patients residing in
Washington, regardless of their health care insurance coverage or their ability to pay, including patients who meet certain
criteria under its charity care policy. As the Organization does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as
charity care, they are not reported as revenue. The Organization determines the costs associated with providing charity
care by calculating a ratio of cost to charges and then multiplying by charity care gross charge adjustments for the period.
The Organization solicits contributions restricted for providing charity care support and services. Donor restricted charity
care contributions amounted to approximately $275,000 and $141,000 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The Organization incurred $533,740 and $453,335 of costs related to charity care services for the years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

In addition to the cost of services provided as charity, the Organization provides treatments to patients covered by
Medicare and Medicaid at a cost that significantly exceeds the payment provided by these government funded programs
resulting in payment shortfalls. The cost of these unfunded services represents a significant benefit provided by the
Organization to the community.

Unconditional Promises to Give - Unconditional promises to give are summarized as follows at June 30:

2019 2018
Receivable in less than one year S 1,695,509 S 1,157,736
Receivable in one to five years 370,832 683,799

S 2,066,341 S 1,841,535

All pledges restricted to a facility capital campaign are considered long-term on the consolidated statement of financial
position, regardless of when they are expected to be collected, because they will be expended for long-term purposes.
Discounts to present value for the long-term promises are immaterial and have not been applied.

Note 3 - Third Party Settlements Receivable

Cost Reports - Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) allow for the reimbursements of uncollectible deductibles
and co-insurance from Medicare recipients if an acceptable collections methodology is followed and the amounts are
claimed on the annual cost report in the year the balance is written off the accounts receivable ledgers.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, an estimated amount of $1,588,828, less a reserve of approximately $79,000, has been
recorded as an increase to net patient service revenue. The third party settlements receivable relating to the fiscal year
2019 cost reports is anticipated to be received in the normal course of filing and settling during fiscal year 2020. As such,
that amount has been recorded as a current asset at June 30, 2019.

Third-Party Insurance Receivable - During the year ended June 30, 2018, management determined there were a number of

claims that had been inappropriately underpaid by a third-party payor. The claims were rebilled prior to year end, and
payments were received during fiscal year 2019. As such, $1,279,102 was recorded as a current asset at June 30, 2018.
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 4 - Investments and Fair Value Measurements

U.S. GAAP defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and requires certain disclosures about fair
value measurements. To increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements, U.S. GAAP uses a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation approaches into three broad levels.

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3).

Valuation Techniques - Financial assets and liabilities valued using Level 1 inputs are based on unadjusted quoted market
prices within active markets for identical assets and liabilities. Financial assets and liabilities valued using Level 2 inputs are
based primarily on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active or inactive markets. Financial assets and liabilities
using Level 3 inputs are primarily valued using management’s assumptions about the assumptions market participants
would utilize in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques utilized to determine fair value are consistently applied.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. There have been no
changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Cash - Valued at cost plus accrued interest which approximates fair value.

Mutual and Equity Funds - Valued at quoted market prices in active markets, which represent the NAV of shares
held by the Organization at year end.

Beneficial Interest in Split-Interest Agreements - Valued at the Organization’s beneficial interest in the fair value of
the trust assets.

Interest Rate Swap Contract - Value is derived from proprietary or other pricing models based on assumptions
regarding past, present and future market conditions.

In accordance with the Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Subtopic 820-10, certain investments that were measured
at fair value using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value
hierarchy. They are included in the following tables, however, to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the line
items presented in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 4 - Continued

Fair Values Measured on a Recurring Basis - Fair values of assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis were as follows:

Cash
Mutual funds-

Large cap

Small cap

International

Fixed income

Emerging markets
Equity funds-

Collective equity funds
Beneficial interest in split-

interest agreements (Note 4)

Interest rate swap contract (Note 8)

Total Investments at Fair Value

Nonmarketable securities at
net asset value-
Private real estate fund

Total Investments, June 30, 2019

Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
188,676 S $ - S 188,676
16,440,375 16,440,375
4,488,152 4,488,152
8,079,309 8,079,309
22,945,647 22,945,647
8,374,958 8,374,958
1,715,102 1,715,102
1,582,084 1,582,084

(3,659,538) (3,659,538)

$ 62,232,219  _$ S  (2,077,454) 60,154,765
3,659,467

S 63,814,232

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances, by each major category of assets and liabilities, for fair value
measurements made using significant unobservable inputs follows (Level 3) at June 30 is as follows:

Beginning balance at July 1, 2017
Unrealized gains (losses)

Balance at June 30, 2018
Unrealized losses

Balance at June 30, 2019

Beneficial
Interest in Interest
Split Interest Rate Swap Total
Agreements  Contract (Note 8) Level 3
S 1,811,705 S - S 1,811,705
24,467 (814,404) (789,937)
1,836,172 (814,404) 1,021,768
(254,088) (2,845,134) (3,099,222)
S 1,582,084 S (3,659,538) _$ (2,077,454)
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 5 - Investment Return

Return on investments is presented in the consolidated statement of activities as follows:

2019 2018

Operating investment income, interest income
and realized gains S 2,067,766 S 7,121,878
Nonoperating unrealized gains (losses) 1,774,479 (3,208,548)
Total Return on Investments, Net S 3,842,245 S 3,913,330

Beneficial Interest in Split-Interest Agreements - The Organization is a beneficiary in a perpetual trust held by a third party.
The trust provides that the Organization receive annual income in the amount of the minimum investment return (as
defined in IRC section 4942) or $10,000, whichever is greater.

The Organization is also named as a 13.33% beneficiary of assets held by a foundation for the benefit of various nonprofit
agencies. The principal, which is held in perpetuity, is administered by the trustee of the foundation and provides for annual
earnings distributions to the Organization.

There are no restrictions associated with the income on either split-interest agreement. The split-interest agreements are
recorded at market value, and changes in market value are recognized in the consolidated statement of activities as a donor
restricted change in the value of the split-interest agreements.

Note 6 - Property and Equipment

Cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization of property and equipment are summarized as follows at June 30:

2019 2018
Cost-
Land S 11,309,141 S 9,799,208
Buildings and improvements 29,746,569 29,062,179
Leasehold improvements 45,745,096 40,166,311
Medical, office equipment, software and other 38,934,833 36,035,132
Projects in progress 42,027,141 5,854,163
167,762,780 120,916,993
Accumulated depreciation and amortization-
Buildings and improvements (20,537,498) (19,446,194)
Leasehold improvements (26,444,079) (23,560,566)
Medical, office equipment, software and other (28,576,861) (26,362,808)
(75,558,438) (69,369,568)
Total Property and Equipment, Net S 92,204,342 S 51,547,425
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 6 - Continued

As of June 30, 2018, projects in progress include multiple projects associated with incremental expansion of capacity for
select facilities, or property improvement initiatives. As of June 30, 2019, projects in progress also include property
improvements for two new clinic locations.

Note 7 - Long-Term Debt

2012 Bonds - In December 2012, the Organization entered into a $10.4 million tax-exempt financing through the private
placement of bonds that were issued by the Washington Health Care Facilities Authority (WHCFA). In connection with this
financing, the Organization signed a promissory note with a bank. The note bears fixed interest at 1.72% through the reset
date of January 1, 2020, at which point the interest rate may be reset.

2018 Bonds - In June 2018, the Organization entered into a tax-exempt financing of up to $43.175 million through the
private placement of bonds that were issued by WHCFA. The bond indenture allows for a 15-month interest-only draw
down period. In connection with this financing, the Organization signed a promissory note with a bank. The note bears
variable interest based on the LIBOR Index Rate. The interest resets monthly. The rate was 2.7119% on the date of issuance.
The future principal payments on the note are based on the fixed payment under the swap agreement (Note 8). The debt is
collateralized by the land and future construction of the Rainier Beach Kidney Center, and the land and future construction
of the Burien campus. The note matures on June 1, 2048, but has a bank repurchase date of June 1, 2028. The carrying
value of the pledged collateral as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, was $41,206,504 and $5,270,000, respectively.

2019 Bonds - Subsequent to year end, in August 2019, the Organization entered into a tax-exempt financing of up to $9.525
million through the private placement of bonds that were issued by WHCFA. The bond indenture allows for a 15-month
interest-only draw down period. In connection with this financing, the Organization signed a promissory note with a bank.
The note bears variable interest based on the LIBOR Index Rate. The interest resets monthly. The rate was 3.06% on the
date of issuance. The debt is collateralized by the Renton Kidney Center, and the Bellevue Kidney Center. The note matures
on August 1, 2044, but has a bank repurchase date of August 1, 2029. The initial bond draw was $6.255 million. The carrying
value of the pledged collateral as of August 2019 was $7.163 million.

2019 Loan - Subsequent to year end, in August 2019, the Organization entered into a $6,650,677 five-year taxable term
loan agreement with a bank to refund the 2012 tax-exempt financing. The loan bears a fixed annual interest rate of 2.85%.
The debt is collateralized by the 700 Broadway property and the Lake City property. After the refinancing, the note requires
monthly principal and interest payments of $118,160. The carrying value of the pledged collateral as of June 30, 2019 and
2018, was $11,403,761 and $11,611,745, respectively.

Long-term debt consisted of the following at June 30:

2019 2018

WHCFA Series 2012 Bonds 7,183,797 7,670,589
WHCFA Series 2018 Bonds 30,595,000 5,270,000
Less unamortized financing costs (361,203) (489,641)
37,417,594 12,450,948

Less current portion (2,714,626) (486,792)
Noncurrent Portion of Long-Term Debt 34,702,968 11,964,156
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 7 - Continued

The future principal payments on the notes outstanding at June 30, 2019 are based on the debt instruments in place as of
the date of the auditor’s report:

For the Year Ending June 30,

2020 S 2,714,626
2021 2,712,890
2022 2,749,645
2023 2,787,462
2024 2,826,370
Thereafter 23,987,804
Total maturities 37,778,797
Less unamortized debt issuance costs (361,203)
Total Long-Term Debt S 37,417,594

The notes include various loan covenants including financial covenants such as the maintenance of specified working
capital and debt service coverage measurements, and other affirmative and negative covenants. At June 30, 2019 and
2018, the Organization was in compliance with such loan covenants.

Note 8 - Interest Rate Swap Contract

In June 2018, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap contract as a cash flow hedge to reduce the impact of
changes in the 2018 tax-exempt bond’s variable rates. The swap contract was purchased with a 15 month forward to coincide
with the bond drawdown period. The swap contract fixes the variable rate interest rate at 3.63% beginning September 1,
2019. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the notional amount was $43,175,000.

The fair value of the interest rate swap contract is shown as a liability on the consolidated statement of financial position in
the amount of $3,659,538 and $814,404 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, the Organization recognized unrealized losses of $2,845,134 and $814,404, respectively, related to the swap contract
due to interest rate fluctuations, which is included in other activities on the consolidated statement of activities.

Note 9 - Employee Benefit and Deferred Compensation Plans

401(k) Plan - The Organization has a tax-deferred 401(k) plan (the Plan) covering all eligible employees who meet
prescribed service requirements. The Plan is subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974 (ERISA), as amended. Participants may contribute to the Plan through voluntary deferrals of eligible compensation.
Eligible employees may contribute from 1% to 100% of their eligible compensation to the Plan, not to exceed annual
limitations prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). Participants who have attained age 50 before the end of the
Plan year are eligible to make catch-up contributions.
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 9 - Continued

The Organization makes safe harbor matching contributions of an amount equal to 100% of the first 4% of each
participant’s contribution to the Plan. The Organization also has the option to make a discretionary contribution as a
percentage of each participant’s eligible compensation to the Plan, including those participants who chose not to make
voluntary deferral contributions to the Plan. In addition to the matching contribution discussed above, the Organization
contributed 1% of each participant’s respective compensation to the Plan for both calendar years 2018 and 2019. Plan
expense totaled $2,514,736 and $2,696,907 in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

457(b) Plan - The Organization sponsors a deferred compensation plan for the benefit of certain employees in accordance
with Section 457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. Participating employees are permitted to defer a portion of their salary
until termination, retirement, death, or in the event of an unforeseen emergency.

Under the terms of the plan, all deferred compensation, along with all property and rights purchased with those amounts
and income attributable to those amounts, remain the property of the Organization until paid or made available to the
employee or his or her beneficiary. Such amounts are subject to the claims of the Organization’s general creditors.
Participants’ rights are equal to those of general creditors in an amount equal to the fair value of the deferred amount for
each participant. Assets associated with this plan are $897,255 and $807,478 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
assets consisted of mutual funds measured at fair value using Level 1 inputs as further described in Note 4.

The Organization has no liability for losses under the plan, but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an
ordinary prudent investor. Management believes it is unlikely that the assets will need to be used to satisfy the claims of
general creditors.

Note 10 - Operating Lease Commitments and Deferred Rent

Deferred Tenant Leasehold Allowance - The Organization has entered into lease contracts in which the lessor agreed to pay
for the costs of improvements made to the sites being leased. The balances paid to the Organization will be amortized
against rent expense over the remaining life of the related leases. The unamortized balance of the reimbursed costs totaled
$1,893,761 and $972,754 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and are reported as a deferred tenant leasehold
allowance in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Deferred Rent - The Organization leases dialysis centers under the terms of several operating lease agreements expiring in
various years through 2032. Lease payments during the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, totaled $4,517,234 and
$3,947,236, respectively.

The leases have escalation clauses which, under lease accounting standards, have resulted in deferred rent expense
liabilities recognized for the leases. The deferred rent is being amortized against rent expense using the straight-line
method over the remaining term of the related leases. The difference between the cash outlay and expense recognized was
($32,615) and ($165,122) for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The cumulative difference at June 30,
2019 and 2018, was $1,459,554 and $1,426,939, respectively.
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 10 - Continued

Future minimum lease payments for the property leases are as follows:

Yearly Straight-Line Cumulative

For the Year Ending June 30, Cash Outlay Expense Adjustment Difference
2020 $ 4,126,891 S 4,166,666 S (39,775)  §$ (39,775)
2021 4,214,400 4,054,462 159,938 120,163
2022 4,089,932 3,840,276 249,656 369,819
2023 3,499,584 3,270,726 228,858 598,677
2024 2,624,952 2,441,048 183,904 782,581
Thereafter 7,187,127 6,510,154 676,973 1,459,554

Total Minimum Lease Payments § 25,742,886 S 24,283,332 S 1,459,554 S 3,291,019

Note 11 - Commitments and Contingencies

Promises to Give - As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization had unconditional promises to give to the University of
Washington (the University) of $4,000,041 and $5,184,872, respectively, for the funding of the Kidney Research Institute
and stipends for four fellows in the University’s Division of Nephrology. Of the outstanding commitments as of June 30,
2019, the Organization has promised to pay $1,400,041 during the year ending June 30, 2020, with the remaining amounts
to be paid thereafter. Discounts to present value are immaterial and have not been applied.

In June 2017, the Organization committed to a grant of up to $15 million to the University’s Center for Dialysis Innovation
for research and development of a prototype wearable, miniaturized dialysis medical device. The grant is payable in five
annual $3 million award increments, upon approval by the Organization of an annual project research plan for the following
year. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization had unconditional promises to give to the University’s Center for
Dialysis Innovation of $487,465 and $766,137, respectively, included in accounts payable, each to be paid in the following
year.

Construction Commitments - As of June 30, 2019, the Organization has entered into construction commitments for the
construction of Rainier Beach Kidney Center, Bellevue Kidney Center, and Burien campus. The expected construction costs
and expenditures to date are as follows:

Expected Expenditures Future

Construction Costs To Date Commitment

Rainier Beach Kidney Center S 12,550,000 S 8,131,692 S 4,418,308
Bellevue Kidney Center 8,000,000 980,330 7,019,670
Burien campus 42,450,000 31,313,878 11,136,122
Total Construction Commitments S 63,000,000 S 40,425,900 S 22,574,100
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 11 - Continued

Litigation - In the normal course of business, the Organization has various claims in process, matters in litigation or other
contingencies. In management’s opinion, the outcome from these matters will not materially impact the Organization’s
financial position or results of activities.

Industry Regulations - The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state and local
governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, matters such as licensure,
accreditations, government health care program participation requirements, reimbursements for patient services, and
Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse. Government activity continues with respect to investigations and allegations
concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by health care providers. Violations of these laws
and regulations could result in expulsion from government health care programs together with the imposition of significant
fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services previously billed. Management believes that the
Organization is in compliance with fraud and abuse statutes as well as other applicable government laws and regulations.
Compliance with such laws and regulations is subject to future government review and interpretations as well as regulatory
actions known or unasserted as this time.

Note 12 - Board Designated Net Assets

Board designated net assets are available for the following purposes at June 30:

2019 2018
Quasi endowments (Note 14)-

Blagg rehabilitation scholarship S 8,295 S 8,046
Gervais rehabilitation scholarship 30,306 29,409
Haviland scholarship 30,063 29,379
Nordstrom emergency transportation 99,701 96,730
Scribner clinical research 74,985 73,469
Thomas E. Melang greatest need endowment 1,724,948 1,698,247
Dominick V. Driano patient care endowment 1,622,331 1,622,331

S 3,590,629 S 3,557,611
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Note 13 - Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods at June 30:

2019 2018
Subject to the Passage of Time or Expenditure for Specified Purpose:
Program services S 610,487 S 658,622
Acquisition of fixed assets 2,848,087 2,246,729
Total Subject to the Passage of Time or Expenditure for
Specified Purpose 3,458,574 2,905,351
Endowment Funds:
Original gifts and required retained funds (corpus)-
General endowments 1,049,999 1,135,999
Patient support endowments 484,818 479,668
Research endowments 676,803 406,822
Employee scholarships 258,845 258,845
Patient services endowments 104,814 104,631
Patient emergency endowments 45,814 45,814
2,621,093 2,431,779
Accumulated endowment earnings (Note 14) 548,610 495,364
Total Endowment Funds 3,169,703 2,927,143
Beneficial Interest in Split-Interest Agreements (Notes 4 and 5) 1,582,084 1,836,172
Total Net Assets With Donor Restrictions S 8,210,361 S 7,668,666

Note 14 - Endowments

The Organization’s endowments consist of 23 funds established for a variety of purposes. Its endowments include both
donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments (quasi-
endowments). Net assets associated with endowment funds, including quasi-endowments, are classified and reported
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Law - Management of the Organization has reviewed the Washington State Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (PMIFA) and, having considered its rights and obligations thereunder, has
determined that it is desirable to preserve, on a long-term basis, the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this determination, the
Organization classifies as net assets with donor restrictions - endowment corpus (a) the original value of gifts donated to
the endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulations to the endowment
made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the
fund.
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Note 14 - Continued

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as net assets with donor restrictions -
accumulated endowment earnings until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a manner
consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by PMIFA. In accordance with PMIFA, the Organization considers the
following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

- The duration and preservation of the fund;

- The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund;
- General economic conditions;

- The possible effect of inflation and deflation;

- The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
- Other resources of the Organization; and

- The investment policies of the Organization.

As of June 30, endowment net assets consisted of the following:

With Donor Restrictions Total
Without Donor Endowment Accumulated With Donor
Restrictions Corpus Earnings Restrictions 2019 Total 2018 Total
Donor restricted
endowment funds S - S 2,621,093 S 548,610 S 3,169,703 S 3,169,703 S 2,927,143
Board designated quasi-
endowment funds 3,590,629 3,590,629 3,557,611
Endowment Net Assets S 3,590,629 $ 2,621,093 S 548,610 S 3,169,703 $ 6,760,332 S 6,484,754

Changes to endowment net assets for the years ended June 30 are as follows:

With Donor Restrictions Total
Without Donor Endowment Accumulated With Donor
Restrictions Corpus Earnings Restrictions 2019 Total 2018 Total
Endowment net assets,
beginning of year S 3,557,611 S 2,431,779 S 495,364 S 2,927,143 S 6,484,754 S 6,471,445
Endowment investment return 111,256 3,108 167,825 170,933 282,189 129,702
Contributions and designations 272,206 272,206 272,206 42,010
Appropriation of endowment
for expenditure and transfer (78,238) (86,000) (114,579) (200,579) (278,817) (158,403)
Endowment Net Assets,
End of Year $ 3,590,629 $ 2,621,093 S 548,610 $ 3,169,703 $ 6,760,332 S 6,484,754

Funds With Deficiencies - From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted
endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or PMIFA requires the Organization to retain as a fund of
perpetual duration. There were no deficiencies of this nature as of June 30, 2019 and 2018.
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Note 14 - Continued

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters - The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment
assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds
that the Organization must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period. Under this policy, as approved by the Board
of Trustees, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that the Organization expects to provide an average return of
8%. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives - To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Organization relies on
a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized)
and current yield (interest and dividends). The Organization defines a total return strategy based on an asset mix of 17.5%-
50% fixed income securities, 25%-65% equity holdings, and 0-47% alternative investments.

Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy - The Organization has a policy of
appropriating 4.5% of its endowment funds’ average fair value over the prior three years through June preceding the fiscal
year in which the distribution is planned. Appropriations are made in September of the fiscal year in which they are to be
used. In establishing this policy, the Organization considered the long-term expected return on its endowment. Accordingly,
over the long term, the Organization expects the current spending policy to allow its endowment to grow at an average of
3.5% annually. This is consistent with the Organization’s objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment
assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term as well as to provide additional real growth through new gifts and
investment return.

Note 15 - Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual commitments,
while also striving to maximize the investment of its available funds. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its
disposal, including cash, cash equivalents, and marketable debt and equity securities.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Organization

considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities of kidney dialysis services and supporting kidney research as well
as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.
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Note 15 - Continued

As of June 30, the following table shows the financial assets held by the Organization that could readily be made available
within 12 months of the date of the consolidated statement of financial position to meet general expenditures.

2019 2018
Financial Assets at Year End:
Cash and cash equivalents S 6,892,040 S 7,836,424
Receivables, net 23,990,651 25,993,020
Investments 65,891,686 66,178,353
Deferred compensation investments 897,255 807,478
Total Financial Assets 97,671,632 100,815,275
Less amounts not available for general expenditure within 12 months-
Long-term receivables (1,564,190) (1,691,853)
Board-designated and donor-restricted endowments (6,760,332) (6,484,754)
Deferred compensation investments (897,255) (807,478)
Plus budgeted appropriation from endowment earnings 231,210 180,877

Financial Assets Available For General Expenditure Within 12 Months _$ 88,681,065 S 92,012,067

Note 16 - Subsequent Events
Subsequent to year end, the Organization has entered into a purchase and sale agreement for the acquisition of
development property in Kent, Washington for $1.8 million. The Organization intends to use a two-year fixed rate

commercial loan to purchase the property.

Subsequent to year end, the Organization sold property in Seattle, Washington for $3.65 million. The net book value of the
property at June 30, 2019 was approximately $800,000.

Financing activities subsequent to year end are disclosed in Note 7.

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through September 26, 2019, the date on which the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued.
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Current portion of receivables, net
Third party settlements receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Intercompany due (to) from

Total Current Assets

Investments

Assets limited as to use - pledges for the acquisition of long-term assets
Assets limited as to use - board-designated endowment investments
Assets limited as to use - donor-restricted endowment investments
Deposits

Deferred compensation investments

Beneficial interest in split-interest agreements

Property and equipment, net

Total Assets
Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Construction payables

Current portion of pledge to the University of Washington
Accrued expenses

Current portion of long-term debt

Total Current Liabilities

Deferred compensation

Deferred tenant leasehold allowance

Deferred rent

Long-term pledge to the University of Washington, net
Interest rate swap contract

Long-term debt, net

Total Liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 8 and 9)

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions-
Undesignated
Board designated

Total net assets without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions:

Restricted for program purposes

Beneficial interest in split-interest agreements
Endowment corpus

Endowment accumulated appreciation

Total net assets with donor restrictions
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See independent auditor’s report.
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Northwest Northwest
Kidney Kidney Care Total
Centers Alliance Eliminations 2019
S 6,892,040 S - S - S 6,892,040
20,916,074 1,000 20,917,074
1,509,387 1,509,387
1,286,177 1,286,177
1,017,347 1,017,347

1,184,374 (1,184,374)
32,805,399 (1,183,374) 31,622,025
59,131,354 59,131,354
1,564,190 1,564,190
3,590,629 3,590,629
3,169,703 3,169,703
170,680 170,680
897,255 897,255
1,582,084 1,582,084
92,204,342 92,204,342
$ 195,115,636 $ (1,183,374) $ - $ 193,932,262
S 4,189,619 S - S - S 4,189,619
9,196,188 9,196,188
1,400,041 1,400,041
7,742,891 7,742,891
2,714,626 2,714,626
25,243,365 25,243,365
897,255 897,255
1,893,761 1,893,761
1,459,554 1,459,554
2,600,000 2,600,000
3,659,538 3,659,538
34,702,968 34,702,968
70,456,441 70,456,441
112,858,205 (1,183,374) 111,674,831
3,590,629 3,590,629
116,448,834 (1,183,374) 115,265,460
3,458,574 3,458,574
1,582,084 1,582,084
2,621,093 2,621,093
548,610 548,610
8,210,361 8,210,361
124,659,195 (1,183,374) 123,475,821
$ 195,115,636 $ (1,183,374) $ - $ 193,932,262
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Clark Nuber s

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees
Northwest Kidney Centers
Seattle, Washington

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Northwest Kidney
Centers (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2020, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Clark Nuber

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization’s 2019 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated

September 26, 2019. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, is consistent, in all material respects, with the
audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The consolidating statement of financial position on page 27 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

(hode N PS

Certified Public Accountants
September 24, 2020
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash - provider relief funds to be returned (Note 17)
Current portion of receivables, net (Note 2)

Third party settlements receivable, net (Note 3)
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Investments (Note 4)

Assets limited as to use:
Pledges for the acquisition of long-term assets (Note 2)
Board-designated endowment investments (Note 4)
Donor-restricted endowment investments (Note 4)

Deposits

Deferred compensation investments (Note 10)

Beneficial interest in split-interest agreements (Note 6)

Property and equipment, net (Note 7)

Total Assets
Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Construction payables

Current portion of pledge to the University of Washington (Note 12)
Unearned provider relief funds (Note 17)

Provider relief funds to be returned (Note 17)

Accrued expenses

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8)

Total Current Liabilities

Deferred compensation (Note 10)

Deferred tenant leasehold allowance (Note 11)

Deferred rent (Note 11)

Long-term pledge to the University of Washington, net of current portion (Note 12)
Interest rate swap contract (Note 9)

Long-term debt, net (Note 8)

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions-
Undesignated
Board designated (Note 13)

Total net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets with donor restrictions (Note 14)
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See accompanying notes.

2020

2019

S 5,082,091

S 6,892,040

5,103,157
20,494,402 20,917,074
1,500,456 1,509,387
1,594,430 1,286,177
1,222,392 1,017,347
34,996,928 31,622,025
59,106,565 59,131,354
820,537 1,564,190
3,864,417 3,590,629
3,225,564 3,169,703
138,915 170,680
717,798 897,255
1,656,181 1,582,084
113,666,567 92,204,342

$ 218,193,472

$ 193,932,262

S 3,491,285

S 4,189,619

1,233,553 9,196,188
1,393,248 1,400,041
496,228
5,103,157
8,345,733 7,742,891
2,935,640 2,714,626
22,998,844 25,243,365
717,798 897,255
1,399,937 1,893,761
1,323,234 1,459,554
1,600,000 2,600,000
6,851,099 3,659,538
54,777,252 34,702,968
89,668,164 70,456,441
114,388,541 111,674,831
3,864,417 3,590,629
118,252,958 115,265,460
10,272,350 8,210,361
128,525,308 123,475,821

$ 218,193,472

$ 193,932,262




NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidated Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Revenues and Support From Operations:
Net patient service revenue (Note 2)
Contributions
Federal provider relief funding (Note 17)
Other
Gain on disposition of fixed assets
Investment income and realized gains

on investments, net (Note 5)
Net assets released from restrictions

for program purposes other than grants

Total Revenues and Support From Operations

Expenses From Operations:
Program services
Management and general
Fundraising expenses

Total Expenses From Operations
Operating Income

Other Revenues, Support and Expenses
Gifts and grants to others

Net assets released from restriction for grants

Unrealized (losses) gains
on investments, net (Note 5)

Excess of Revenues and
Support Over Expenses

Other:

Contributions for capital purchases
or endowment

Change in value of split-interest
agreements (Note 6)

Change in value of interest
rate swap contract (Note 9)

Other

Net assets released from restrictions
for capital purchases

Total Other
Change in Net Assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net Assets, End of Year

See accompanying notes.

2020
Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions 2020 Total 2019 Total
S 125,474,304 - S 125,474,304 S 129,547,705
665,768 3,220,954 3,886,722 2,426,078
2,172,368 2,172,368
795,772 795,772 34,554
2,667,722 2,667,722 27,011
5,402,405 5,402,405 2,067,766
1,117,079 (1,117,079)
138,295,418 2,103,875 140,399,293 134,103,114
107,058,850 107,058,850 111,790,956
18,938,326 18,938,326 15,855,703
1,159,055 1,159,055 1,068,358
127,156,231 127,156,231 128,715,017
11,139,187 2,103,875 13,243,062 5,388,097
(3,374,361) (3,374,361) (3,556,939)
681,553 (681,553)
(2,509,115) 151,532 (2,357,583) 1,774,479
5,937,264 1,573,854 7,511,118 3,605,637
768,749 768,749 889,897
74,097 74,097 (254,088)
(3,191,561) (3,191,561) (2,845,134)
(112,916) (112,916) (97,940)
354,711 (354,711)
(2,949,766) 488,135 (2,461,631) (2,307,265)
2,987,498 2,061,989 5,049,487 1,298,372
115,265,460 8,210,361 123,475,821 122,177,449
$ 118,252,958 10,272,350 $ 128,525,308 $ 123,475,821
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Program Management
Services and General Fundraising 2020 Total 2019 Total

Salaries, wages and contracted services $ 47,464,824 S 9,061,580 S 460,596 S 56,987,000 S 58,608,835

Employee benefits and taxes 11,456,491 1,816,977 87,406 13,360,874 13,147,947
Supplies and drugs 25,039,659 150,981 105,647 25,296,287 27,092,320
Purchased services and lab fees 6,070,397 4,279,307 208,007 10,557,711 10,394,485
Depreciation and amortization 6,221,728 2,024,088 81,057 8,326,873 7,066,183
Rent 5,161,502 1,261 2,841 5,165,604 5,818,826
Utilities and other 4,159,859 1,028,764 199,475 5,388,098 5,228,404
Interest 773,508 269,991 13,681 1,057,180 129,887
Insurance 285,279 295,075 345 580,699 523,214
Bad debt expense 425,603 10,302 435,905 704,916
Total expenses from operations 107,058,850 18,938,326 1,159,055 127,156,231 128,715,017
Gifts and grants to others 3,374,361 3,374,361 3,556,939
Total Expenses $ 110,433,211 $ 18,938,326 $ 1,159,055 $ 130,530,592 $ 132,271,956

See accompanying notes.



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities-
Depreciation and amortization
Debt issuance cost amortization
Gain on disposition of fixed assets
Contributions restricted for long-term purposes
Net unrealized loss (gain) on investments
Net (gain) loss on split-interest agreements
Change in value of interest rate swap contract
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in receivables
Increase in inventories
Increase in prepaid expenses
Decrease in accounts payable
Decrease in pledge to the University of Washington
Increase in unearned provider relief funds
Increase in provider relief funds to be returned
Increase in accrued expenses
(Decrease) increase in deferred tenant leasehold allowance
(Decrease) increase in deferred rent

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Cash proceeds from contributions restricted
for acquisition of long-term assets
Cash proceeds from contributions restricted for endowment
Cash proceeds from long-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Cash paid for bond issuance costs

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash at End of Year

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported within the
statement of financial position that sums to the total of the same such amounts shown in the statement of cash flows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash - provider relief funds to be returned

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash Shown
in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Supplementary Disclosures of Transactions:
Construction in progress in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Cash paid during the year for interest

See accompanying notes.

2020 2019
$ 5049487 S 1,298,372
8,326,873 7,066,183
16,487 128,438
(2,667,722) (27,011)
(768,749) (889,897)
2,357,583 (1,774,479)
(74,097) 254,088
3,191,561 2,845,134
463,368 1,874,706
(308,253) (2,995)
(205,045) (539,935)
(698,334) (534,509)
(1,006,793) (1,184,831)
496,228
5,103,157
602,842 177,421
(493,824) 921,007
(136,320) 32,615
19,248,449 9,644,307
(44,641,232) (12,268,891)
41,978,789 14,330,037
(38,700,006) (38,509,705)
3,615,995 4,100
(37,746,454) (36,444,459)
1,501,199 745,354
11,203 272,206
29,785,340 25,325,000
(9,194,966) (486,792)
(311,563)
21,791,213 25,855,768
3,293,208 (944,384)
6,892,040 7,836,424
$ 10,185248 $ 6,892,040
$ 5082091 $ 6,892,040
5,103,157
$ 10,185248 $ 6,892,040
$ 1,428342 S 9,196,188
S 1,057,181  $ 129,887



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Note 1 - Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization - Northwest Kidney Centers (NKC) is a Washington not-for-profit organization comprised of kidney dialysis
centers, with 17 locations in King County, 1 location in Clallam County, 1 location in Snohomish County, and 1 location in
Pierce County of Western Washington. NKC provides kidney dialysis services to in-center, home and hospital patients and
operates an outpatient pharmacy. In addition to patient care, NKC supports education and research, including support of
the Kidney Research Institute and the Center for Dialysis Innovation, both operated by the University of Washington.

NKC has joined with several other members to form Northwest Kidney Care Alliance, a Washington nonprofit miscellaneous
corporation. This entity is consolidated with NKC for reporting purposes due to NKC having control and economic interest.

Principles of Consolidation - These financial statements include the financial statements of Northwest Kidney Centers and
Northwest Kidney Care Alliance (collectively, the Organization). All intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

Basis of Presentation - The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting.

Net assets and revenues, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.
Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets which are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations;

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations which may or will be met by
actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time, or net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that
will be maintained permanently by the Organization.

Contributions, which include unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period received. Conditional
promises to give are not recognized until such time as the conditions are met. Contributions of noncash assets are
recognized at their estimated fair value on the date of contribution. For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, total
contributions were approximately $4,655,000 and $3,351,000, respectively.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless the use of the related assets is limited by
donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses
on investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions
unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law. Expirations of temporary donor restrictions on net
assets (i.e. the donor-stipulated purpose has been fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) result in the
reclassification of net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions and are reported in the
consolidated statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Assets restricted to the acquisition of long-
term assets are released when the related long-term assets are placed into service.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates include the patient
receivable allowances, fair value of beneficial interests in split-interest agreements, third-party payer revenue settlements,
government payer revenue settlements, fair value of interest rate swap contracts, depreciation useful lives and
methodologies, and the functional allocation of expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Note 1 - Continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents include investments with original maturities at the date of purchase
of three months or less, except cash and cash equivalents held as a part of the Organization’s investment portfolio.

Inventories - Inventories of drugs and other supplies are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the
average cost method.

Investments - Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities
are measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Organization has elected to measure and
report its investment in a private real estate fund at net asset value (NAV). Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
NAV is a practical expedient alternative to fair value for investments in qualifying investment companies that do not have a
readily determinable fair value.

Investment income or loss (including realized gains and losses on investments, interest and dividends, unrealized gains and
losses on equity securities and debt securities classified as trading securities and investment fees) is included in the excess
of revenues and support over expenses unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or by law.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the instance of donated properties, at fair
value as of the date of gift. The Organization capitalizes expenditures for property and equipment that cost over $1,000 and
have a service life of greater than two years. The Organization provides for depreciation and amortization using the
straight-line method over the following estimated lives:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 10 to 40 years
Medical, office and other equipment 4 to 20 years
Computer and telecommunications equipment 3 years

Grant Expense - Grant expense is recognized in the period the grant is signed, provided the grant is not subject to future
conditions. Conditional grants are recognized as grant expense and as a payable in the period in which the grantee meets
the terms of the conditions. Grants payable that are expected to be paid in future years are recorded at the present value
of expected future payments. However, discounts to present value have not been material, and have not been recognized
in the consolidated financial statements.

Operating Income - The consolidated statement of activities includes operating income which reflects the program,
fundraising and administration costs associated with the direct operating activities of the Organization. Gifts and grants
provided to others in support of the Organization’s mission of research activities and unrealized gains and losses on
investments are excluded from operating income.

Excess of Revenues and Support Over Expenses - The consolidated statement of activities includes excess of revenues and
support over expenses. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from excess of revenues and
support over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include unrealized change in value of interest rate swap contracts,
contributions with donor restrictions, and contributions of long-lived assets, including assets acquired using contributions
restricted by donors for the acquisition of such assets and the related releases.
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Note 1 - Continued

Patient Accounts Receivable - The Organization reviews patient accounts receivable balances on a regular basis to assess
potential risk of credit loss. Patient balances are reviewed in conjunction with current economic conditions to determine
the need for an allowance for doubtful accounts. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a
charge to patient revenues and an increase to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of
individual accounts. Balances still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off
through a charge to the valuation allowance and a decrease to patient accounts receivable.

Financing Costs - Financing costs are recorded as a deduction to the related debt liability on the consolidated statement of
financial position. Financing costs are amortized over the term of the applicable debt using the straight-line method which
is not materially different from the results that would have been obtained under the effective yield method. Amortization
of financing costs are included as a component of interest expense on the consolidated statement of activities.

Methods Used for Allocation of Expenses Among Program and Supporting Services - The consolidated financial
statements report the direct expenses of program, management and general and fundraising functions. All expenses that
can be assigned are assigned to each function as incurred. Certain buildings house both clinical departments and
administrative departments. The depreciation associated with those buildings is allocated on the basis of square footage of
the functional departments. Information technology is allocated based on department personnel count.

Medical Malpractice Claims - The Organization is insured with respect to medical malpractice on a claims-made basis. The
Organization has not experienced a history of significant malpractice claims. Based on its past experience and a review of
recent incidents, management has not recorded a liability for possible malpractice losses, as the probability that such claims
would have a material adverse effect on the Organization’s financial condition or activities is remote.

Federal Income Tax - The Internal Revenue Service has recognized Northwest Kidney Centers as exempt from federal
income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). Northwest Kidney Care Alliance is a taxable
nonprofit miscellaneous corporation. Northwest Kidney Care Alliance recognized approximately $796,000 of revenue for
the year ended June 30, 2020. No revenue was recognized for the year ended June 30, 2019. Management has determined
that no provision for federal income tax was necessary in the accompanying consolidated financial statements due to
calculated loss carryforwards.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Financial instruments that subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk include
cash, investments and accounts receivable. The Organization maintains cash and investment deposits with major financial
institutions. The Organization has established guidelines relative to diversification and maturities in its investment portfolio
that seek to maintain safety and liquidity. In most cases, amounts in the investment portfolios and the bank accounts are in
excess of federally insured limits.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and all of whom are
eligible to be insured under third-party payor agreements. The health programs are dependent upon continued funding
from government agencies and the legislative acts that impact the programs. The fee for service revenues from these
programs are subject to periodic audit and review by the governmental agencies. See Note 2 for the Organization’s mix of
gross receivables from third-party payors and net patient service revenue.
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Note 1 - Continued

New Accounting Pronouncements - In June 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standard Update (ASU) No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and
Contributions Made (Topic 958). The objective of this ASU is to assist organizations in evaluating whether transactions
should be accounted for as contributions or as exchange transactions subject to other guidance, and determining whether a
contribution is conditional. During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Organization adopted ASU No. 2018-08 on a modified
prospective basis.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. This amends ASC Topic 825 and redefines public business entities
along with disclosure and reporting requirements for certain types of investments and debt obligations. This amendment
requires that changes in the fair value of equity securities be reported as part of investment income within the operating
indicator excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses. The amendment also eliminated the requirement for nonprofit
organizations to disclose the fair value of assets and liabilities that are measured at unamortized cost in the financial
statements, including the fair value of fixed-rate debt. During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Organization adopted ASU
No. 2016-01.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue From Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The objective of the
ASU is to standardize the revenue recognition practices across entities, industries, jurisdictions, and capital markets by
providing a framework for entities to apply to recognize revenue. This new framework provides a five-step approach for
recognizing revenue. In addition to consideration of recognizing revenue based on existing customer contract terms and
features, entities will be required to enhance qualitative and quantitative disclosures in financial statements to describe
how revenue is recognized under the ASU. Management has elected the deferral option for this new standard and will
apply the standard effective July 1, 2020. Management does not anticipate the adoption of the new ASU to have a material
impact on the Organization’s consolidated financial statements although certain disclosures and presentation items will be
impacted.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The objective of this ASU is to assist organizations
in recognizing the right to the use of an asset and its related liability or obligation when there is a contract in place that
includes the right to control or direct the use of an identifiable asset. This ASU also includes provisions whereby the
majority of leases that have lease terms greater than one year are to be recorded as an asset and lease obligation on the
statement of financial position, whereas in the past, these leases might have been recorded as either capital leases which
were presented on the statement of financial position or operating leases which were not presented on the statement of
financial position. Management is evaluating the effect that ASU No. 2016-02 will have on its consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures. Management has not yet selected a transition method, nor has it determined the effect
of the standard on its ongoing financial reporting. The guidance in this ASU is effective for the Organization's year ending
June 30, 2023.

Summarized Information for 2019 - The consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation
in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019 from which the summarized information was derived.

Subsequent Events - The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through September 24, 2020, the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Note 2 - Receivables, Revenues and Discounted Services

Receivables at June 30 consisted of the following:

2020 2019
Patient service receivables S 25,471,757 S 24,484,471
Less allowance for contractual adjustments (5,126,671) (3,887,245)
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (852,786) (761,857)
Patient service receivables, net 19,492,300 19,835,369
Unconditional promises to give 1,278,122 2,066,341
Other receivables 544,517 579,554

$ 21,314,939 S 22,481,264

2020 2019
Rollforward of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:
Beginning balance S 761,857 S 314,515
Write-offs (334,674) (249,499)
Provision for bad debt 425,603 696,841
Ending Balance of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts S 852,786 S 761,857

Patient Service Receivables - The mix of patient service receivables, not including the allowance for doubtful accounts and
contractual adjustments from third-party payors at June 30 was as follows:

2020 2019
Medicare and Medicaid 41% 38%
Other third-party payors and hospitals 59% 62%
100% 100%
The mix of patient service revenue for the years ended June 30 was as follows:
2020 2019
Medicare and Medicaid 73% 74%
Other third-party payors and hospitals 27% 26%
100% 100%




NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Note 2 - Continued

The Organization has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Organization at amounts
different from its established rates. Net patient service revenue is reported at estimated net realizable amounts from
patients, third-party payors and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. See Note 3 for
further discussion.

Patient service revenues are reported in the consolidated financial statements net of contractual adjustments. Laws and
regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is
at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near term.

As is consistent with the nonprofit mission of the Organization, the Organization provides access to all patients residing in
Washington, regardless of their health care insurance coverage or their ability to pay, including patients who meet certain
criteria under its charity care policy. As the Organization does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as
charity care, they are not reported as revenue. The Organization determines the costs associated with providing charity
care by calculating a ratio of cost to charges and then multiplying by charity care gross charge adjustments for the period.
The Organization solicits contributions restricted for providing charity care support and services. Donor restricted charity
care contributions amounted to approximately $110,000 and $275,000 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. The Organization incurred approximately $700,000 and $534,000 of costs related to charity care services for
the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

In addition to the cost of services provided as charity, the Organization provides treatments to patients covered by
Medicare and Medicaid at a cost that significantly exceeds the payment provided by these government funded programs
resulting in payment shortfalls. The cost of these unfunded services represents a significant benefit provided by the
Organization to the community.

Unconditional Promises to Give - Unconditional promises to give are summarized as follows at June 30:

2020 2019
Receivable in less than one year S 592,378 S 1,695,509
Receivable in one to five years 685,744 370,832

S 1,278,122 S 2,066,341

All pledges restricted to a facility capital campaign are considered long-term on the consolidated statement of financial
position, regardless of when they are expected to be collected, because they will be expended for long-term purposes.
Discounts to present value for the long-term promises are immaterial and have not been applied.



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Note 3 - Third Party Settlements Receivable

Cost Reports - Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) allow for the reimbursements of uncollectible deductibles
and co-insurance from Medicare recipients if an acceptable collections methodology is followed and the amounts are
claimed on the annual cost report in the year the balance is written off the accounts receivable ledgers.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, an estimated amount of approximately $1,579,000, less a reserve of approximately
$79,000, has been recorded as an increase to net patient service revenue. The third party settlements receivable relating to
the fiscal year 2020 cost reports is anticipated to be received in the normal course of filing and settling during fiscal year
2021. As such, that amount has been recorded as a current asset at June 30, 2020.

At June 30, 2019, the third party settlements receivable represented an estimated amount of approximately $1,589,000,
less a reserve of approximately $79,000.

Note 4 - Investments and Fair Value Measurements

U.S. GAAP defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and requires certain disclosures about fair
value measurements. To increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements, U.S. GAAP uses a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation approaches into three broad levels.

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3).

Valuation Techniques - Financial assets and liabilities valued using Level 1 inputs are based on unadjusted quoted market
prices within active markets for identical assets and liabilities. Financial assets and liabilities valued using Level 2 inputs are
based primarily on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active or inactive markets. Financial assets and liabilities
using Level 3 inputs are primarily valued using management’s assumptions about the assumptions market participants
would utilize in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques utilized to determine fair value are consistently applied.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. There have been no
changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Cash - Valued at cost plus accrued interest which approximates fair value.

Mutual and Equity Funds - Valued at quoted market prices in active markets, which represent the NAV of shares
held by the Organization at year end.

Beneficial Interest in Split-Interest Agreements - Valued at the Organization’s beneficial interest in the fair value of
the trust assets.

Interest Rate Swap Contract - Value is derived from proprietary or other pricing models based on assumptions
regarding past, present and future market conditions.




NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Note 4 - Continued

In accordance with the Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Subtopic 820-10, certain investments that were measured
at fair value using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value
hierarchy. They are included in the following tables, however, to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the line
items presented in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Fair Values Measured on a Recurring Basis - Fair values of assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis were as follows:

Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash S 208,021 S - S - S 208,021
Mutual funds-

Large cap 13,718,946 13,718,946

Mid cap 2,079,929 2,079,929

Small cap 1,548,366 1,548,366

International 3,571,296 3,571,296

Fixed income 25,447,245 25,447,245

Emerging markets 6,289,202 6,289,202
Equity funds-

Collective equity funds 3,936,223 3,936,223
Beneficial interest in split-

interest agreements (Note 6) 1,656,181 1,656,181
Interest rate swap contract (Note 8) (6,851,099) (6,851,099)
Total 56,799,228 _$ - S (5194918) _$ 51,604,310
Nonmarketable securities at

net asset value-
Private real estate fund 9,397,318

Total Investments, June 30, 2020 $ 66,196,546

P,



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Note 4 - Continued

Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash S 188,676 S - S - S 188,676
Mutual funds-

Large cap 16,440,375 16,440,375

Small cap 4,488,152 4,488,152

International 8,079,309 8,079,309

Fixed income 22,945,647 22,945,647

Emerging markets 8,374,958 8,374,958
Equity funds-

Collective equity funds 1,715,102 1,715,102
Beneficial interest in split-

interest agreements (Note 6) 1,582,084 1,582,084
Interest rate swap contract (Note 8) (3,659,538) (3,659,538)
Total 62,232,219 § - $ (2,077454) _$ 60,154,765
Nonmarketable securities at

net asset value-
Private real estate fund 3,659,467

Total Investments, June 30, 2019 S 65,891,686

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances, by each major category of assets and liabilities, for fair value
measurements made using significant unobservable inputs follows (Level 3) at June 30 is as follows:

Beneficial
Interest in Interest
Split Interest Rate Swap Total
Agreements  Contract (Note 8) Level 3
Beginning balance at July 1, 2018 S 1,836,172 S (814,404) S 1,021,768
Unrealized losses (254,088) (2,845,134) (3,099,222)
Balance at June 30, 2019 1,582,084 (3,659,538) (2,077,454)
Unrealized gains (losses) 74,097 (3,191,561) (3,117,464)
Balance at June 30, 2020 S 1,656,181 S (6,851,099) S (5,194,918)




NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Note 4 - Continued

Investments are presented as follows on the consolidated statement of financial position at June 30:

2020 2019
Investments S 59,106,565 59,131,354
Board-designated endowment investments 3,864,417 3,590,629
Donor-restricted endowment investments 3,225,564 3,169,703
Total Investments S 66,196,546 65,891,686
Note 5 - Investment Return
Return on investments is presented in the consolidated statement of activities as follows:
2020 2019
Operating returns-
Interest and dividends S 1,382,599 1,658,418
Net realized gains on sales of securities 4,191,064 470,166
Net unrealized (losses) gains (2,357,583) 1,774,479
Investment fees (171,258) (60,818)
Total Return on Investments, Net S 3,044,822 3,842,245

Note 6 - Beneficial Interest in Split-Interest Agreements

The Organization is a beneficiary in a perpetual trust held by a third party. The trust provides that the Organization receive
annual income in the amount of the minimum investment return (as defined in IRC section 4942) or $10,000, whichever is

greater.

The Organization is also named as a 13.33% beneficiary of assets held by a foundation for the benefit of various nonprofit
agencies. The principal, which is held in perpetuity, is administered by the trustee of the foundation and provides for annual

earnings distributions to the Organization.

There are no restrictions associated with the income on either split-interest agreement. The split-interest agreements are
recorded at market value, and changes in market value are recognized in the consolidated statement of activities as a donor

restricted change in the value of the split-interest agreements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Note 7 - Property and Equipment

Cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization of property and equipment are summarized as follows at June 30:

2020 2019
Cost-
Land S 14,297,031 S 11,309,141
Buildings and improvements 79,133,780 29,746,569
Leasehold improvements 46,018,038 45,745,096
Medical, office equipment, software and other 45,559,383 38,934,833
Projects in progress 10,936,832 42,027,141
195,945,064 167,762,780
Accumulated depreciation and amortization-
Buildings and improvements (20,861,976) (20,537,498)
Leasehold improvements (29,635,081) (26,444,079)
Medical, office equipment, software and other (31,781,440) (28,576,861)
(82,278,497) (75,558,438)
Total Property and Equipment, Net S 113,666,567 S 92,204,342

As of June 30, 2019, projects in progress included multiple projects associated with incremental expansion of capacity for
select facilities, or property improvement initiatives and included property improvements for two clinic locations.

As of June 30, 2020, projects in progress include improvements for two additional clinic locations.
Note 8 - Long-Term Debt

2012 Bonds - In December 2012, the Organization entered into a $10,400,000 tax-exempt financing through the private
placement of bonds that were issued by the Washington Health Care Facilities Authority (WHCFA). In connection with this
financing, the Organization signed a promissory note with a bank. The note bears fixed interest at 1.72% through the reset
date of January 1, 2020, at which point the interest rate may be reset. This bond was paid off during the year ended June
30, 2020.

2018 Bonds - In June 2018, the Organization entered into a tax-exempt financing of up to $43,175,000 through the private
placement of bonds that were issued by WHCFA. The bond indenture allows for a 15-month interest-only draw down
period. In connection with this financing, the Organization signed a promissory note with a bank. The note bears variable
interest based on the LIBOR Index Rate. The interest resets monthly. The rate was 2.7119% on the date of issuance, and
1.12% at June 30, 2020. The future principal payments on the note are based on the fixed payment under the swap
agreement (Note 9). The debt is collateralized by the land and future construction of the Rainier Beach Kidney Center, and
the land and future construction of the Burien campus. The note matures on June 1, 2048, but has a bank repurchase date
of June 1, 2028. The carrying value of the pledged collateral as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, was approximately $49,479,000
and $41,207,000, respectively.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(With Comparative Totals for 2019)

Note 8 - Continued

2019 Bonds - In August 2019, the Organization entered into a tax-exempt financing of up to $9,525,000 through the private
placement of bonds that were issued by WHCFA. The bond indenture allows for a 15-month interest-only draw down
period. In connection with this financing, the Organization signed a promissory note with a bank. The note bears variable
interest based on the LIBOR Index Rate. The interest resets monthly. The rate was 3.06% on the date of issuance, and 1.38%
at June 30, 2020. The debt is collateralized by the Renton Kidney Center, and the Bellevue Kidney Center. The note matures
on August 1, 2044, but has a bank repurchase date of August 1, 2029. The carrying value of the pledged collateral as of June
30, 2020 was approximately $12,609,000.

2019 Loan - In August 2019, the Organization entered into a five-year taxable term loan agreement with a bank for
approximately $6,651,000 to refund the 2012 tax-exempt financing. The loan bears a fixed annual interest rate of 2.85%.
The debt is collateralized by the 700 Broadway property and the Lake City property. After the refinancing, the note requires
monthly principal and interest payments of $118,160. The carrying value of the pledged collateral as of June 30, 2020, was
approximately $10,768,000.

Long-term debt consisted of the following at June 30:

2020 2019

WHCFA Series 2012 Bonds S - S 7,183,797

WHCFA Series 2018 Bonds 42,095,000 30,595,000
WHCFA Series 2019 Bonds 9,525,000
Term loans 6,749,170

Less unamortized financing costs (656,278) (361,203)

57,712,892 37,417,594

Less current portion (2,935,640) (2,714,626)

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion S 54,777,252 S 34,702,968

The future principal payments on the notes outstanding at June 30, 2020 are based on the debt instruments in place as of
the date of the auditor’s report:

For the Year Ending June 30,

2021 S 2,935,640
2022 4,210,645
2023 3,168,462
2024 3,207,370
2025 2,173,803
Thereafter 42,673,250
Total maturities 58,369,170
Less unamortized debt issuance costs (656,278)
Total Long-Term Debt S 57,712,892
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Note 8 - Continued

The notes include various loan covenants including financial covenants such as the maintenance of specified working
capital and debt service coverage measurements, and other affirmative and negative covenants. At June 30, 2020 and
2019, management believes the Organization was in compliance with such loan covenants.

Note 9 - Interest Rate Swap Contract

In June 2018, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap contract as a cash flow hedge to reduce the impact of
changes in the 2018 tax-exempt bond’s variable rates. The swap contract was purchased with a 15 month forward to
coincide with the bond drawdown period. The swap contract fixed the variable rate interest rate at 2.65% beginning
September 1, 2019. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the notional amount was $42,095,000 and $43,175,000, respectively.

The fair value of the interest rate swap contract is shown as a liability on the consolidated statement of financial position in
the amount of approximately $6,851,000 and $3,660,000 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. For the years ended June
30, 2020 and 2019, the Organization recognized unrealized losses of approximately $3,192,000 and $2,845,000,
respectively, related to the swap contract due to interest rate fluctuations, which is included in other activities on the
consolidated statement of activities.

Note 10 - Employee Benefit and Deferred Compensation Plans

401(k) Plan - The Organization has a tax-deferred 401(k) plan (the Plan) covering all eligible employees who meet
prescribed service requirements. The Plan is subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974 (ERISA), as amended. Participants may contribute to the Plan through voluntary deferrals of eligible compensation.
Eligible employees may contribute from 1% to 100% of their eligible compensation to the Plan, not to exceed annual
limitations prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). Participants who have attained age 50 before the end of the
Plan year are eligible to make catch-up contributions.

The Organization makes safe harbor matching contributions of an amount equal to 100% of the first 4% of each
participant’s contribution to the Plan. The Organization also has the option to make a discretionary contribution as a
percentage of each participant’s eligible compensation to the Plan, including those participants who chose not to make
voluntary deferral contributions to the Plan. In addition to the matching contribution discussed above, the Organization
contributed 1% of each participant’s respective compensation to the Plan for both calendar years 2019 and 2020. Plan
expense totaled approximately $2,302,000 and $2,515,000 in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

457(b) Plan - The Organization sponsors a deferred compensation plan for the benefit of certain employees in accordance
with Section 457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. Participating employees are permitted to defer a portion of their salary
until termination, retirement, death, or in the event of an unforeseen emergency.

Under the terms of the plan, all deferred compensation, along with all property and rights purchased with those amounts
and income attributable to those amounts, remain the property of the Organization until paid or made available to the
employee or his or her beneficiary. Such amounts are subject to the claims of the Organization’s general creditors.
Participants’ rights are equal to those of general creditors in an amount equal to the fair value of the deferred amount for
each participant. Assets associated with this plan are approximately $718,000 and $897,000 at June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. The assets consisted of mutual funds measured at fair value using Level 1 inputs as further described in Note
4,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 10 - Continued

The Organization has no liability for losses under the plan, but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an
ordinary prudent investor. Management believes it is unlikely that the assets will need to be used to satisfy the claims of
general creditors.

Note 11 - Operating Lease Commitments and Deferred Rent

Deferred Tenant Leasehold Allowance - The Organization has entered into lease contracts in which the lessor agreed to pay
for the costs of improvements made to the sites being leased. The balances paid to the Organization will be amortized
against rent expense over the remaining life of the related leases. The unamortized balance of the reimbursed costs totaled
approximately $1,400,000 and $1,894,000 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and are reported as a deferred
tenant leasehold allowance in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Deferred Rent - The Organization leases dialysis centers under the terms of several operating lease agreements expiring in
various years through 2032. Lease payments during the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, totaled approximately
$3,917,000 and $4,517,000, respectively.

The leases have escalation clauses which, under lease accounting standards, have resulted in deferred rent expense
liabilities recognized for the leases. The deferred rent is being amortized against rent expense using the straight-line
method over the remaining term of the related leases. The difference between the cash outlay and expense recognized was
approximately (540,000) and ($33,000) for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The cumulative difference
at June 30, 2020 and 2019, was approximately $1,323,000 and $1,460,000, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments for the property leases are as follows:

Yearly Straight-Line Cumulative

For the Year Ending June 30, Cash Outlay Expense Adjustment Difference
2021 S 3,699,242 S 3,596,004 S 103,238 S 103,238
2022 3,590,601 3,405,192 185,409 288,647
2023 3,319,833 3,092,752 227,081 515,728
2024 2,440,677 2,263,074 177,603 693,331
2025 1,655,276 1,554,942 100,334 793,665
Thereafter 4,950,858 4,421,289 529,569 1,323,234

Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 19,656,487 $ 18,333,253 $ 1,323,234 S 3,717,843

Note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies

Promises to Give - As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Organization had unconditional promises to give to the University of
Washington (the University) of approximately $2,993,000 and $4,000,000, respectively, for the funding of the Kidney
Research Institute and stipends for four fellows in the University’s Division of Nephrology. Of the outstanding commitments
as of June 30, 2020, the Organization has promised to pay approximately $1,393,000 during the year ending June 30, 2021,
with the remaining amounts to be paid thereafter. Discounts to present value are immaterial and have not been applied.
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Note 12 - Continued

In June 2017, the Organization committed to a grant of up to $15,000,000 to the University’s Center for Dialysis Innovation
for research and development of a prototype wearable, miniaturized dialysis medical device. The grant is payable in five
annual $3,000,000 award increments, upon approval by the Organization of an annual project research plan for the
following year. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Organization had unconditional promises to give to the University’s
Center for Dialysis Innovation of approximately $304,000 and $487,000, respectively, included in accounts payable, each to
be paid in the following year. The Organization’s outstanding commitments for conditional grants were up to approximately
$6,342,000 and $9,423,000 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Litigation - In the normal course of business, the Organization has various claims in process, matters in litigation or other
contingencies. In management’s opinion, the outcome from these matters will not materially impact the Organization’s
financial position or results of activities.

Industry Regulations - The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state and local
governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, matters such as licensure,
accreditations, government health care program participation requirements, reimbursements for patient services and
Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse. Government activity continues with respect to investigations and allegations
concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by health care providers. Violations of these laws
and regulations could result in expulsion from government health care programs together with the imposition of significant
fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services previously billed. Management believes that the
Organization is in compliance with fraud and abuse statutes as well as other applicable government laws and regulations.
Compliance with such laws and regulations is subject to future government review and interpretations as well as regulatory
actions known or unasserted as this time.

Note 13 - Board Designated Net Assets

Board designated net assets are available for the following purposes at June 30:

2020 2019
Quasi endowments (Note 15)-
General endowments S 1,733,260 S 1,724,948
Patient support endowments 1,622,331 1,622,331
Research endowments 75,839 74,985
Employee scholarships 261,184
Patient services endowments 171,803 168,365

S 3,864,417 S 3,590,629
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Note 14 - Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods at June 30:

2020 2019
Subject to the Passage of Time or Expenditure for Specified Purpose:
Program services S 2,068,295 S 610,487
Acquisition of fixed assets 3,322,310 2,848,087
Total Subject to the Passage of Time or Expenditure for
Specified Purpose 5,390,605 3,458,574
Endowment Funds:
Original gifts and required retained funds (corpus)-
General endowments 1,049,999 1,049,999
Patient support endowments 490,833 484,818
Research endowments 681,803 676,803
Employee scholarships 258,845 258,845
Patient services endowments 105,002 104,814
Patient emergency endowments 45,814 45,814
2,632,296 2,621,093
Accumulated endowment earnings (Note 15) 593,268 548,610
Total Endowment Funds 3,225,564 3,169,703
Beneficial Interest in Split-Interest Agreements (Note 6) 1,656,181 1,582,084
Total Net Assets With Donor Restrictions S 10,272,350 S 8,210,361

Note 15 - Endowments

The Organization’s endowments consist of 23 funds established for a variety of purposes. Its endowments include both
donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments (quasi-

endowments). Net assets associated with endowment funds, including quasi-endowments, are classified and reported

based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Law - Management of the Organization has reviewed the Washington State Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (PMIFA) and, having considered its rights and obligations thereunder, has
determined that it is desirable to preserve, on a long-term basis, the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this determination, the
Organization classifies as net assets with donor restrictions - endowment corpus (a) the original value of gifts donated to
the endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulations to the endowment
made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the
fund.
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Note 15 - Continued

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as net assets with donor restrictions -
accumulated endowment earnings until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a manner
consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by PMIFA. In accordance with PMIFA, the Organization considers the
following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

- The duration and preservation of the fund;

- The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund;
- General economic conditions;

- The possible effect of inflation and deflation;

- The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
- Other resources of the Organization; and

- The investment policies of the Organization.

As of June 30, endowment net assets consisted of the following:

With Donor Restrictions Total
Without Donor Endowment Accumulated With Donor
Restrictions Corpus Earnings Restrictions 2020 Total 2019 Total
Donor restricted
endowment funds S - S 2,632,296 S 593,267 S 3,225,563 S 3,225,563 S 3,169,703
Board designated quasi-
endowment funds 3,864,417 3,864,417 3,590,629
Endowment Net Assets S 3,864,417 S 2,632,296 S 593,267 S 3,225,563 S 7,089,980 S 6,760,332

Changes to endowment net assets for the years ended June 30 are as follows:

With Donor Restrictions Total
Without Donor Endowment Accumulated With Donor
Restrictions Corpus Earnings Restrictions 2020 Total 2019 Total
Endowment net assets,
beginning of year S 3,590,629 S 2,621,093 S 548,610 S 3,169,703 S 6,760,332 S 6,484,754
Endowment investment return 99,685 151,532 151,532 251,217 282,189
Contributions and designations 255,000 11,203 11,203 266,203 272,206
Appropriation of endowment
for expenditure and transfer (80,897) (106,875) (106,875) (187,772) (278,817)
Endowment Net Assets,
End of Year S 3,864,417 S 2,632,296 S 593,267 S 3,225,563 S 7,089,980 S 6,760,332

Funds With Deficiencies - From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted
endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or PMIFA requires the Organization to retain as a fund of
perpetual duration. There were no deficiencies of this nature as of June 30, 2020 and 2019.
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Note 15 - Continued

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters - The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment
assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds
that the Organization must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives - To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Organization relies on
a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized)
and current yield (interest and dividends). The Organization defines a total return strategy based on an asset mix of 17.5%-
50% fixed income securities, 25%-65% equity holdings, and 0-47% alternative investments.

Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy - The Organization has a policy of
appropriating 4.5% of its endowment funds’ average fair value over the prior three years through June preceding the fiscal
year in which the distribution is planned. Appropriations are made in September of the fiscal year in which they are to be
used. In establishing this policy, the Organization considered the long-term expected return on its endowment. Accordingly,
over the long term, the Organization expects the current spending policy to allow its endowment to maintain the
purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term as well as to provide additional real
growth through new gifts and investment return.

Note 16 - Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual commitments,
while also striving to maximize the investment of its available funds. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its
disposal, including cash, cash equivalents, and marketable debt and equity securities.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Organization

considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities of kidney dialysis services and supporting kidney research as well
as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.
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Note 16 - Continued

As of June 30, the following table shows the financial assets held by the Organization that could readily be made available
within 12 months of the date of the consolidated statement of financial position to meet general expenditures.

2020 2019

Financial Assets at Year End:
Cash and cash equivalents S 5,082,091 S 6,892,040
Cash - provider relief funds to be returned 5,103,157
Receivables, net 22,815,395 23,990,651
Investments 66,196,546 65,891,686
Deferred compensation investments 717,798 897,255
Total Financial Assets 99,914,987 97,671,632
Less amounts not available for general expenditure within 12 months-

Cash - provider relief funds to be returned (5,103,157)

Long-term receivables (820,537) (1,564,190)

Board-designated and donor-restricted endowments (7,089,981) (6,760,332)

Deferred compensation investments (717,798) (897,255)
Plus budgeted appropriation from endowment earnings 267,268 260,777

Financial Assets Available For General Expenditure Within 12 Months S 86,450,782 S 88,710,632

Note 17 - Risks and Uncertainties

In March 2020, the World Health Organization categorized COVID-19 as a global pandemic, prompting many national,
regional, and local governments to implement preventative or protective measures, such as travel and business restrictions,
temporary store closures, and wide-sweeping quarantines and stay-at-home orders. Dialysis treatments are deemed
essential services and thus all clinics have remained open and fully operational, however the Organization did experience a
decrease in referrals due to physician practices temporarily limiting access. As a result, the Organization has experienced
limited negative impacts to its operating revenues. As of the date these financial statements were available to be issued,
the COVID-19 pandemic was ongoing and the related governmental preventive and protective measures continued, and as
a result, the related financial impact and duration of the pandemic cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.
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Note 17 - Continued

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Organization received Provider Relief Funds of approximately $7,772,000 from
the Federal Government to be used to “prevent, prepare for and respond to coronavirus.” The Organization believes that it
had met the conditions to entitlement and recognized revenue for approximately $2,172,000 of the amount received,
based on the available guidance from the Federal Government. The amount received but not yet recognized as revenue as
of June 30, 2020 is approximately $496,000, which is reflected as unearned grant funds on the consolidated statement of
financial position at June 30, 2020. The Organization anticipates meeting the conditions and recognizing the revenue during
fiscal year 2021. Subsequent to year end, the Organization returned approximately $5,103,000 of the funds received. This is
included in provider relief funds to be returned on the consolidated statement of financial position at June 30, 2020.
Revenue from this grant is subject to audit required by the granting agency, which could result in adjustments to revenue.
Any adjustments would be recorded at the time that such amounts could first be reasonably determined, normally upon
notification by the government agency.
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash - provider relief funds to be returned
Current portion of receivables, net

Third party settlements receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Intercompany due (to) from

Total Current Assets

Investments

Assets limited as to use - pledges for the acquisition of long-term assets
Assets limited as to use - board-designated endowment investments
Assets limited as to use - donor-restricted endowment investments
Deposits

Deferred compensation investments

Beneficial interest in split-interest agreements

Property and equipment, net

Total Assets
Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Construction payables

Current portion of pledge to the University of Washington
Unearned provider relief funds

Provider relief funds to be returned

Accrued expenses

Current portion of long-term debt

Total Current Liabilities

Deferred compensation

Deferred tenant leasehold allowance

Deferred rent

Long-term pledge to the University of Washington, net
Interest rate swap contract

Long-term debt, net

Total Liabilities
Commitments and contingencies

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions-
Undesignated
Board designated

Total net assets without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions:

Restricted for program purposes

Beneficial interest in split-interest agreements
Endowment corpus

Endowment accumulated appreciation

Total net assets with donor restrictions
Total Net Assets
Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See independent auditor’s report.

Northwest Northwest

Kidney Kidney Care
Centers Alliance Eliminations 2020 Total
$ 5082091 S -8 - $ 5,082,091
5,103,157 5,103,157
20,493,402 1,000 20,494,402
1,500,456 1,500,456
1,594,430 1,594,430
1,222,392 1,222,392

1,031,681 (1,031,681)
36,027,609 (1,030,681) 34,996,928
59,106,565 59,106,565
820,537 820,537
3,864,417 3,864,417
3,225,564 3,225,564
138,915 138,915
717,798 717,798
1,656,181 1,656,181
113,666,567 113,666,567
$ 219,224,153 $ (1,030,681) $ - $ 218,193,472
S 3,491,285 S - S - S 3,491,285
1,233,553 1,233,553
1,393,248 1,393,248
496,228 496,228
5,103,157 5,103,157
8,345,733 8,345,733
2,935,640 2,935,640
22,998,844 22,998,844
717,798 717,798
1,399,937 1,399,937
1,323,234 1,323,234
1,600,000 1,600,000
6,851,099 6,851,099
54,777,252 54,777,252
89,668,164 89,668,164
115,419,222 (1,030,681) 114,388,541
3,864,417 3,864,417
119,283,639 (1,030,681) 118,252,958
5,390,605 5,390,605
1,656,181 1,656,181
2,632,296 2,632,296
593,268 593,268
10,272,350 10,272,350
129,555,989 (1,030,681) 128,525,308
$ 219,224,153 $ (1,030,681 $ - $ 218,193,472
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Clark Nuber s

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees
Northwest Kidney Centers
Seattle, Washington

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Northwest Kidney
Centers (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2021, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets,
functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

clarknuber.com




Clark Nuber

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2021, and the consolidated
results of its operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization’s 2020 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated

September 24, 2020. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, is consistent, in all material respects, with the
audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The consolidating statement of financial position on page 31 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

(ke Tkien S

Certified Public Accountants
October 18, 2021



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash - provider relief funds to be returned (Note 2)
Current portion of receivables, net (Note 2)

Third party settlements receivable, net (Note 3)
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Investments (Note 4)
Assets limited as to use-

Pledges for the acquisition of long-term assets (Note 2)
Board-designated endowment investments (Note 4)
Donor-restricted endowment investments (Note 4)

Deposits
Deferred compensation investments (Note 10)

Beneficial interest in split-interest agreements (Note 6)

Property and equipment, net (Note 7)
Total Assets
Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Construction payables

Current portion of pledge to the University of Washington (Note 12)

Unearned provider relief funds (Note 2)
Provider relief funds to be returned (Note 2)
Current portion of deferred rent (Note 11)
Accrued expenses

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8)

Total Current Liabilities

Deferred compensation (Note 10)
Deferred tenant leasehold allowance (Note 11)
Deferred rent, net of current portion (Note 11)

Long-term pledge to the University of Washington, net of current portion (Note 12)

Interest rate swap contract (Note 9)
Long-term debt, net (Note 8)

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions-
Undesignated
Board designated (Note 13)

Total net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets with donor restrictions (Note 14)
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See accompanying notes.

2021 2020
$ 6162638 $ 5,082,091
5,103,157

21,211,453 20,494,402
1,586,563 1,500,456
1,540,374 1,594,430
1,169,720 1,222,392
31,670,748 34,996,928
65,056,302 59,106,565
1,165,968 820,537
4,535,190 3,864,417
3,824,131 3,225,564
163,370 138,915
452,488 717,798
1,848,862 1,656,181
112,135,623 113,666,567

$ 220,852,682

$ 218,193,472

S 3,823,837

S 3,491,285

406,420 1,233,553
1,393,248 1,393,248
496,228

5,103,157

99,086 103,237
7,224,529 8,345,733
1,542,092 2,935,640
14,489,212 23,102,081
452,488 717,798
1,229,475 1,399,937
1,092,644 1,219,997
600,000 1,600,000
6,851,099

55,258,943 54,777,252
73,122,762 89,668,164
134,207,363 114,388,541
4,535,190 3,864,417
138,742,553 118,252,958
8,987,367 10,272,350
147,729,920 128,525,308

$ 220,852,682

$ 218,193,472




NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Revenues and Support From Operations:
Net patient service revenue (Note 2)
Contributions
Federal provider relief funding (Note 2)
CMS cost savings revenue
(Loss) or gain on disposition of fixed assets
Investment income and realized gains

on investments, net (Note 5)
Net assets released from restrictions

for program purposes other than grants

Total Revenues and Support From Operations

Expenses From Operations:
Program services
Management and general
Fundraising expenses

Total Expenses From Operations

Operating Income

Other Revenues, Support and Expenses:
Gifts and grants to others

Net assets released from restriction for grants
Loss on debt extinguishment

Unrealized gains (losses)

on investments, net (Note 5)

Excess of Revenues and Support Over Expenses

See accompanying notes.

2021 2020
125,495,952 S 125,474,304
813,726 665,768
496,228 2,172,368
2,049,338 795,772
(136,743) 2,667,722
5,968,491 5,402,405
2,003,726 1,117,079
136,690,718 138,295,418
105,658,986 107,058,850
20,071,109 18,938,326
756,761 1,159,055
126,486,856 127,156,231
10,203,862 11,139,187
(3,272,962) (3,374,361)
334,821 681,553
(624,106)
8,446,143 (2,509,115)
15,087,758 $ 5,937,264




NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Without Donor
Restrictions

With Donor
Restrictions

2021 Total

2020 Total

Net Assets, Beginning S 118,252,958 S 10,272,350 S 128,525,308 S 123,475,821

Excess of revenues and support over expenses 15,087,758 15,087,758 5,937,264

Contributions 2,525,528 2,525,528 3,220,954

Contributions for capital purchases or endowment 940,450 940,450 768,749

Unrealized gains on investments 693,751 693,751 151,532

Change in value of interest rate swap contract (Note 9) 2,412,599 2,412,599 (3,191,561)
Other (309,608) (309,608) (112,916)
Net assets released from restrictions for programs (2,338,547) (2,338,547) (1,798,632)
Net assets released from restrictions for capital purchases 3,298,846 (3,298,846)

Change in value of split-interest agreements (Note 6) 192,681 192,681 74,097

Change in net assets 20,489,595 (1,284,983) 19,204,612 5,049,487

Net Assets, Ending $ 138,742,553 S 8,987,367 S 147,729,920 $ 128,525,308

See accompanying notes.



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Salaries, wages and contracted services
Employee benefits and taxes

Supplies and drugs

Purchased services and lab fees
Depreciation and amortization

Rent

Utilities and other

Interest

Insurance

Bad debt expense

Total expenses from operations
Gifts and grants to others

Total Expenses

See accompanying notes.

Program Management
Services and General Fundraising 2021 Total 2020 Total
S 44,316,364 S 9,696,576 350,084 54,363,024 56,987,000
10,998,662 1,839,356 76,414 12,914,432 13,360,874
26,426,161 287,466 9,402 26,723,029 25,296,287
4,717,748 4,986,501 180,625 9,884,874 10,557,711
7,473,186 1,614,335 23,572 9,111,093 8,326,873
5,491,572 5,491,572 5,165,604
4,396,542 921,741 91,630 5,409,913 5,388,098
1,460,775 391,771 24,111 1,876,657 1,057,180
377,976 333,363 923 712,262 580,699
435,905
105,658,986 20,071,109 756,761 126,486,856 127,156,231
3,272,962 3,272,962 3,374,361
$ 108,931,948 $ 20,071,109 756,761 129,759,818 $ 130,530,592




NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities-
Depreciation and amortization
Debt issuance cost amortization
Loss (gain) on disposition of fixed assets
Contributions restricted for long-term purposes
Net unrealized (gain) loss on investments
Net gain on split-interest agreements
Change in value of interest rate swap contract
Loss on debt extinguishment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Decrease in pledge to the University of Washington
(Decrease) increase in unearned provider relief funds
(Decrease) increase in provider relief funds to be returned
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses
Decrease in deferred tenant leasehold allowance
Decrease in deferred rent

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Cash proceeds from contributions restricted
for acquisition of long-term assets
Cash proceeds from contributions restricted for endowment
Cash proceeds from long-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Cash paid for bond issuance costs
Cash paid to terminate interest rate swap contract

Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Financing Activities
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash at End of Year

2021

2020

$ 19,204,612

S 5,049,487

9,111,093 8,326,873
39,373 16,487
136,743 (2,667,722)
(2,525,528) (768,749)
(9,139,894) 2,357,583
(192,681) (74,097)
(2,412,599) 3,191,561
624,106
820,356 463,368
54,056 (308,253)
52,672 (205,045)
332,552 (698,334)
(1,000,000) (1,006,793)
(496,228) 496,228
(5,103,157) 5,103,157
(1,121,204) 602,842
(170,462) (493,824)
(131,504) (136,320)
8,082,306 19,248,449
(35,355,785) (44,641,232)
37,276,602 41,978,789
(8,544,025) (38,700,006)
3,615,995
(6,623,208) (37,746,454)
515,107 1,501,199
17,021 11,203
58,065,000 29,785,340
(58,369,170) (9,194,966)
(1,271,166) (311,563)
(4,438,500)
(5,481,708) 21,791,213
(4,022,610) 3,293,208
10,185,248 6,892,040

$ 6,162,638

S 10,185,248

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported within the
statement of financial position that sums to the total of the same such amounts shown in the statement of cash flows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash - provider relief funds to be returned

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash Shown
in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Supplementary Disclosures of Transactions:
Construction in progress in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Cash paid during the year for interest

See accompanying notes.

S 6,162,638

S 5,082,091
5,103,157

S 6,162,638

$ 10,185,248

S 696,863
S 1,678,342

1,428,342
1,057,181

w0



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Note 1 - Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization - Northwest Kidney Centers (NKC) is a Washington not-for-profit organization comprised of kidney dialysis
centers, with 17 locations in King County, and one location each in Clallam County, Snohomish County, and Pierce County of
Western Washington. NKC provides kidney dialysis services to in-center, home and hospital patients and operates an
outpatient pharmacy. In addition to patient care, NKC supports education and research, including support of the Kidney
Research Institute and the Center for Dialysis Innovation, both operated by the University of Washington.

NKC has joined with several other members to form Northwest Kidney Care Alliance, a Washington nonprofit miscellaneous
corporation. This entity is consolidated with NKC for reporting purposes due to NKC having control and economic interest.

Principles of Consolidation - These financial statements include the financial statements of Northwest Kidney Centers and
Northwest Kidney Care Alliance (collectively, the Organization). All intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

Basis of Presentation - The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

Net assets and revenues, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.
Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets which are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations;

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations which may or will be met by
actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time, or net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that
will be maintained permanently by the Organization.

Contributions, which include unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period received. Conditional
promises to give are not recognized until such time as the conditions are met. Contributions of noncash assets are
recognized at their estimated fair value on the date of contribution. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, total
contributions were approximately $4,280,000 and $4,655,000, respectively.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless the use of the related assets is limited by
donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses
on investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions
unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law. Expirations of temporary donor restrictions on net
assets (i.e. the donor-stipulated purpose has been fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) result in the
reclassification of net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions and are reported in the
consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. Assets restricted to
the acquisition of long-term assets are released when the related long-term assets are placed into service.

Revenue Recognition - Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing dialysis and pharmaceuticals. These amounts are due from
patients, third-party payors (including health insurers and government programs), and others and includes variable
consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews, and investigations. Generally, the
Organization bills the patients and third-party payors on a monthly basis, several days after the end of the month when the
services are performed. Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied.

-8-



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Note 1 - Continued

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the Organization. Revenue for
performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on actual charges incurred in relation to total expected
charges for services performed during dialysis or other service performed. The Organization believes that this method
provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of services over the term of the performance obligation based on the remaining
services needed to satisfy the obligation.

The performance obligation for dialysis is either providing dialysis services within the Organization’s clinics, a participating
hospital, or at the patient’s home. The performance obligation for pharmaceuticals is providing the medications by shipping
them to patients, directly providing medications to patients through the Organization’s pharmacy, or by administering the
medications to patients in the course of dialysis. The Organization measures the performance obligation for dialysis from
the start of dialysis to the completion of the dialysis within one day for dialysis revenue. Revenue for performance
obligations satisfied at a point in time, such as pharmacy, is recognized when the pharmaceuticals are provided.

In assessing collectability of dialysis service revenue, management has elected the portfolio approach. This portfolio
approach is being used as the Organization has a large volume of similar contracts with similar classes of customers.
Management reasonably expects that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a group of contracts would not differ
materially from considering each contract separately. Management’s judgment to group the contracts by portfolio is based
on the payment behavior expected in each portfolio category. As a result, aggregating all of the contracts (which are at the
patient level) by the particular payor or group of payors, will result in the recognition of the same amount of revenue as
applying the analysis at the individual patient level.

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors follows:

Medicare - Dialysis services rendered, and medications given to Medicare program beneficiaries are paid at
prospectively determined rates per identified service. These rates vary according to a patient classification system
that is based on clinical and diagnostic factors. The Organization is reimbursed for cost reimbursable items at a
tentative rate, with final settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports and audits thereof by the
Medicare fiscal intermediary. The estimated settlement for the Medicare cost report for the years ending June 30,
2021 and 2020 has been recorded as estimated third-party payor settlements on the accompanying consolidated
statement of financial position.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare program are extremely complex and subject to interpretation. As a
result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded third-party payor settlement estimates will change by
a material amount in the near term as cost report adjustments become known or as cost report years are no
longer subject to such audit.

Medicaid - Dialysis services rendered, and medications given to Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid at
prospectively determined rates per identified service.



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Note 1 - Continued

The Organization screens patients and determines if certain patients would qualify for Presumptive Medicaid eligibility
which provides temporary coverage. Applications are processed within 2 working days of submission and the patient is then
classified under a Presumptive Eligible code on the patient accounting system and revenue is recognized under the
Medicaid Payor source. If the patient does not qualify for Presumptive Eligibility (i.e. their temporary coverage is
exhausted), but they could qualify for traditional Medicaid, they would be classified Medicaid Pending as their payor source
and included in the Self Pay revenue portfolio. Once Medicaid eligibility is obtained, the patient’s payor source would be
changed to Medicaid. Although the patient’s ultimate eligibility determination may result in adjustments to net revenues,
these adjustments did not have a material impact on the results of operations in 2021 or 2020 since the Organization makes
estimates at each financial reporting period to adjust revenue based on historical collections. Under ASC 605, these
estimates were reported in the provision for doubtful accounts.

Other Third-Party Payors - The Organization has entered into payment agreements with certain commercial
insurance carriers. The basis for payment under these agreements includes prospectively determined rates per
service and discounts from established charges.

Self-Pay - Self-pay includes patients without insurance. For self-pay patients who do not qualify for charity care,
the Organization recognizes revenue on the basis of uninsured discounted or standard rates. The initial estimate of
revenue is determined by reducing the Organization’s standard charges by any contractual adjustments, discounts,
and implicit price concessions. Subsequent changes to the estimated revenue, if any, are generally recorded as an
adjustment to patient services revenue in the period of the change.

The Organization groups revenues into categories based on payment behaviors. Each component has its own
reimbursement structure which allows the Organization to disaggregate the revenue into categories that share the nature
and timing of payments.

The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) cost savings revenue consists of payments made to the Organization
based on cost savings realized through innovative payment and service delivery models to reduce Medicare, Medicaid, or
Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP) expenditures while maintaining or improving quality of care for Medicare
beneficiaries. The performance obligation for CMS cost savings revenue is to enhance the quality of care for Medicare,
Medicaid, or CHIP patients in their dialysis and pharmacy programs and is satisfied over time as the cost savings are realized
by CMS. CMS cost savings are not estimable until calculated by CMS and are not recognized as revenue until the
Organization is informed by CMS of the amount.

The following is a disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers for the year ended June 30, 2021:

Over Time Point-in-Time Total
Dialysis service revenue S 120,383,158 S - S 120,383,158
CMS cost-savings revenue 2,049,338 2,049,338
Pharmacy revenue 5,112,794 5,112,794

S 122,432,496 $ 5,112,794 $ 127,545,290

-10 -



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Note 1 - Continued

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Estimates include the patient receivable allowances and price concessions, fair value of beneficial interests in split-
interest agreements, third-party payor revenue, government payor revenue, fair value of interest rate swap contracts,
depreciation useful lives and methodologies, revenue related to provider relief funds, and the functional allocation of
expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents include investments with original maturities at the date of purchase
of three months or less, except cash and cash equivalents held as a part of the Organization’s investment portfolio.

Inventories - Inventories of drugs and other supplies are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the
average cost method.

Investments - Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities
are measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Organization has elected to measure and
report its investment in a private real estate fund at net asset value (NAV). Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

NAV is a practical expedient alternative to fair value for investments in qualifying investment companies that do not have a
readily determinable fair value.

Investment income or loss (including realized gains and losses on investments, interest and dividends, unrealized gains and
losses on equity securities and debt securities classified as trading securities and investment fees) is included in the excess
of revenues and support over expenses unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or by law.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the instance of donated properties, at fair
value as of the date of gift. The Organization capitalizes expenditures for property and equipment that cost over $1,000 and
have a service life of greater than two years. The Organization provides for depreciation and amortization using the
straight-line method over the following estimated lives:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 10 to 40 years
Medical, office and other equipment 4 to 20 years
Computer and telecommunications equipment 3 years

Grant Expense - Grant expense is recognized in the period the grant is signed, provided the grant is not subject to future
conditions. Conditional grants are recognized as grant expense and as a payable in the period in which the grantee meets
the terms of the conditions. Grants payable that are expected to be paid in future years are recorded at the present value
of expected future payments. However, discounts to present value have not been material, and have not been recognized
in the consolidated financial statements.

-11 -



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Note 1 - Continued

Operating Income - The consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets includes operating income which
reflects the program, fundraising and administration functions associated with the direct operating activities of the
Organization. Gifts and grants provided to others in support of the Organization’s mission of research activities and releases
of restrictions for grants, unrealized gains and losses on investments, and losses on debt extinguishment are excluded from
operating income.

Excess of Revenues and Support Over Expenses - The consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets
includes excess of revenues and support over expenses. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions which are
excluded from excess of revenues and support over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include unrealized change
in value of interest rate swap contracts, contributions with donor restrictions, and contributions of long-lived assets,
including assets acquired using contributions restricted by donors for the acquisition of such assets and the related
releases.

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements - During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Organization adopted the
provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 606, Revenue From Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”),
which supersedes most existing revenue recognition guidance, including industry specific healthcare guidance, using the
modified retrospective approach. ASC 606 provides for a single comprehensive standard that requires an entity’s
recognized revenue to depict the transfer of goods and services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
the entity expects in exchange for those goods and services. The expected consideration includes an estimate of implicit
price concessions historically provided to self-pay clients. The adoption of ASC 606 had no impact on the Organization’s
current or historical financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. It is not anticipated that ASC 606 will impact the
timing or amount of future revenues recognized by the Organization.

The information in the prior year comparative period has not been restated and continues to be reported under the
accounting standards in effect for that period. In accordance with the new revenue standard requirements, the disclosure
of the impact of the adoption on the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets was as follows:

Balances
Without Adoption Effect
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 of ASC 606 As Reported of Change
Net patient service revenue S 125,876,403 S 125,495,952 S (380,451)
Bad debt expense S (380,451) S - S 380,451

-12 -



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Note 1 - Continued

Patient Accounts Receivable - Patient accounts receivable include amounts owed under client fee-for-service
arrangements, which are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances based on
contractual rates and explicit and implicit price concessions for services rendered. These estimated amounts are subject to
further adjustments upon review by third party payors. After satisfaction of amounts due from third party payors, the
Organization follows established guidelines for collecting client balances. Subsequent changes in the estimate of
collectability due to a change in the financial status of a payor, for example a bankruptcy, will be recognized as bad debt
expense. Otherwise the changes will be reflected in revenue. Prior to the adoption of ASC 606, the Organization reviewed
patient accounts receivable balances on a regular basis to assess potential risk of credit loss. Patient balances were
reviewed in conjunction with current economic conditions to determine the need for an allowance for doubtful accounts.
Management provided for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to patient revenues and an increase to a
valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances still outstanding after
management had used reasonable collection efforts were written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a
decrease to patient accounts receivable.

Financing Costs - Financing costs are recorded as a deduction to the related debt liability on the consolidated statement of
financial position. Financing costs are amortized over the term of the applicable debt using the straight-line method which
is not materially different from the results that would have been obtained under the effective yield method. Amortization
of financing costs are included as a component of interest expense on the consolidated statement of operations and
changes in net assets.

Methods Used for Allocation of Expenses Among Program and Supporting Services - The consolidated financial
statements report the direct expenses of program, management and general and fundraising functions. All expenses that
can be assigned are assigned to each function as incurred. Certain buildings house both clinical departments and
administrative departments. The depreciation associated with those buildings is allocated on the basis of square footage of
the functional departments. Information technology is allocated based on department personnel count.

Medical Malpractice Claims - The Organization is insured with respect to medical malpractice on a claims-made basis. The
Organization has not experienced a history of significant malpractice claims. Based on its past experience and a review of
recent incidents, management has not recorded a liability for possible malpractice losses, as the probability that such claims
would have a material adverse effect on the Organization’s financial condition or activities is remote.

Federal Income Tax - The Internal Revenue Service has recognized Northwest Kidney Centers as exempt from federal
income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). Northwest Kidney Care Alliance is a taxable
nonprofit miscellaneous corporation. Northwest Kidney Care Alliance recognized approximately $2.05 million and $796,000
of revenue for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Management has determined that no provision for
federal income tax was necessary in the accompanying consolidated financial statements due to calculated loss
carryforwards.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Financial instruments that subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk include
cash, investments and accounts receivable. The Organization maintains cash and investment deposits with major financial
institutions. The Organization has established guidelines relative to diversification and maturities in its investment portfolio
that seek to maintain safety and liquidity. In most cases, amounts in the investment portfolios and the bank accounts are in
excess of federally insured limits.
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Note 1 - Continued

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and most of whom are
eligible to be insured under third-party payor agreements. The health programs are dependent upon continued funding
from government agencies and the legislative acts that impact the programs. The fee for service revenues from these
programs are subject to periodic audit and review by the governmental agencies. See Note 2 for the Organization’s mix of
gross receivables from third-party payors and net patient service revenue.

New Accounting Pronouncements - In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The objective
of this ASU is to assist organizations in recognizing the right to the use of an asset and its related liability or obligation when
there is a contract in place that includes the right to control or direct the use of an identifiable asset. This ASU also includes
provisions whereby the majority of leases that have lease terms greater than one year are to be recorded as an asset and
lease obligation on the statement of financial position, whereas in the past, these leases might have been recorded as
either capital leases which were presented on the statement of financial position or operating leases which were not
presented on the statement of financial position. Management is evaluating the effect that ASU No. 2016-02 will have on its
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. Management has not yet selected a transition method, nor has it
determined the effect of the standard on its ongoing financial reporting. The guidance in this ASU is effective for the
Organization's year ending June 30, 2023.

Summarized Information for 2020 - The consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation
in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 from which the summarized information was derived.

Note 2 - Receivables, Revenues and Discounted Services

Receivables at June 30 consisted of the following:

2021 2020
Patient service receivables, net S 20,184,756 S 19,492,300
Unconditional promises to give 1,486,691 1,278,122
Other receivables 705,974 544,517

S 22,377,421 $ 21,314,939

-14 -



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Note 2 - Continued

2021 2020
Rollforward of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:
Beginning balance S 852,786 761,857
Write-offs (334,674)
Effect of adopting Topic 606 (852,786)
Provision for bad debt 425,603
Ending Balance of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts S - 852,786

Patient Service Receivables - The mix of patient service receivables, not including the allowance for doubtful accounts and

contractual adjustments from third-party payors at June 30 was as follows:

2021 2020
Medicare and Medicaid 49% 41%
Other third-party payors and hospitals 51% 59%
100% 100%
The mix of patient service revenue for the years ended June 30 was as follows:
2021 2020
Medicare and Medicaid 68% 73%
Other third-party payors and hospitals 32% 27%
100% 100%

The Organization has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Organization at amounts
different from its established rates. Net patient service revenue is reported at estimated net realizable amounts from
patients, third-party payors and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under

reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. See Note 3 for

further discussion.

Patient service revenues are reported in the consolidated financial statements net of contractual adjustments, and explicit

and implicit price concessions. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a

material amount in the near term.
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Note 2 - Continued

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Organization received Provider Relief Funds of approximately $7,772,000 from
the Federal Government to be used to “prevent, prepare for and respond to coronavirus.” The Organization believes that it
had met the conditions to entitlement and recognized revenue for approximately $496,000 and $2,172,000 of the amount
received during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, based on the available guidance from the Federal
Government. During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Organization returned approximately $5,103,000 of the funds
received. This is included in provider relief funds to be returned on the consolidated statement of financial position at June
30, 2020. Revenue from this grant is subject to audit required by the granting agency, which could result in adjustments to
revenue. Any adjustments would be recorded at the time that such amounts could first be reasonably determined, normally
upon notification by the government agency.

As is consistent with the nonprofit mission of the Organization, the Organization provides access to all patients residing in
Washington, regardless of their health care insurance coverage or their ability to pay, including patients who meet certain
criteria under its charity care policy. As the Organization does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as
charity care, they are not reported as revenue. The Organization determines the costs associated with providing charity
care by calculating a ratio of cost to charges and then multiplying by charity care gross charge adjustments for the period.
The Organization solicits contributions restricted for providing charity care support and services. Contributions with donor
restrictions to be used for charity care amounted to approximately $97,000 and $110,000 for the years ended June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively. The Organization incurred approximately $1,100,000 and $700,000 of costs related to charity
care services for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

In addition to the cost of services provided as charity, the Organization provides treatments to patients covered by
Medicare and Medicaid at a cost that significantly exceeds the payment provided by these government funded programs
resulting in payment shortfalls. The cost of these unfunded services represents a significant benefit provided by the
Organization to the community.

Unconditional Promises to Give - Unconditional promises to give are summarized as follows at June 30:

2021 2020
Receivable in less than one year S 1,184,568 S 592,378
Receivable in one to five years 302,123 685,744

S 1,486,691 S 1,278,122

All pledges restricted to a facility capital campaign are considered long-term on the consolidated statement of financial
position, regardless of when they are expected to be collected, because they will be expended for long-term purposes.
Discounts to present value for the long-term promises are immaterial and have not been applied.
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Note 3 - Third Party Settlements Receivable

Cost Reports - Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) allow for the reimbursements of uncollectible deductibles
and co-insurance from Medicare recipients if an acceptable collections methodology is followed and the amounts are
claimed on the annual cost report in the year the balance is written off the accounts receivable ledgers.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, an estimated amount of approximately $1,670,000, less a reserve of approximately
$84,000, has been recorded as an increase to net patient service revenue. The third-party settlements receivable relating to
the fiscal year 2021 cost reports is anticipated to be received in the normal course of filing and settling during fiscal year
2022. As such, that amount has been recorded as a current asset at June 30, 2021.

At June 30, 2020, the third party settlements receivable represented an estimated amount of approximately $1,579,000,
less a reserve of approximately $79,000.

Note 4 - Investments and Fair Value Measurements

U.S. GAAP defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and requires certain disclosures about fair
value measurements. To increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements, U.S. GAAP uses a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation approaches into three broad levels.

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3).

Valuation Techniques - Financial assets and liabilities valued using Level 1 inputs are based on unadjusted quoted market
prices within active markets for identical assets and liabilities. Financial assets and liabilities valued using Level 2 inputs are
based primarily on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active or inactive markets. Financial assets and liabilities
using Level 3 inputs are primarily valued using management’s assumptions about the assumptions market participants
would utilize in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques utilized to determine fair value are consistently applied.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. There have been no
changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Cash - Valued at cost plus accrued interest which approximates fair value.

Mutual and Equity Funds - Valued at quoted market prices in active markets, which represent the NAV of shares
held by the Organization at year end.

Beneficial Interest in Split-Interest Agreements - Valued at the Organization’s beneficial interest in the fair value of
the trust assets.

Interest Rate Swap Contract - Value is derived from proprietary or other pricing models based on assumptions
regarding past, present and future market conditions.

In accordance with the Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Subtopic 820-10, certain investments that were measured
using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. They are
included in the following tables, however, to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the line items presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

-17 -



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Note 4 - Continued

Fair Values Measured on a Recurring Basis - Fair values of assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis were as follows:

Mutual funds-
Large cap
Mid cap
Small cap
International
Fixed income
Emerging markets
Equity funds-
Collective equity funds

Deferred compensation investments

Beneficial interest in split-

interest agreements (Note 6)

Total

Cash held in investment portfolio

Nonmarketable securities at
net asset value-
Private real estate fund

Total Investments, June 30, 2021

Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2021

Level 1 Level 2

Level 3 Total

S 11,049,079 S - S - S 11,049,079
2,082,517 2,082,517
4,444,239 4,444,239
4,345,630 4,345,630

22,061,991 22,061,991
7,945,132 7,945,132
10,434,456 10,434,456
452,488 452,488
1,848,862 1,848,862
62,815,532 S - ) 1,848,862 S 64,664,394
235,190
10,817,389
S 73,868,111
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Note 4 - Continued

Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Mutual funds-

Large cap S 13,718946 S - S - S 13,718,946

Mid cap 2,079,929

Small cap 1,548,366 1,548,366

International 3,571,296 3,571,296

Fixed income 25,447,245 25,447,245

Emerging markets 6,289,202 6,289,202
Equity funds-

Collective equity funds 3,936,223 3,936,223
Deferred compensation investments 717,798 717,798
Beneficial interest in split-

interest agreements (Note 6) 1,656,181 1,656,181
Interest rate swap contract (Note 8) (6,851,099) (6,851,099)
Total 57,309,005 $ - $ (5194,918) _$ 52,114,087
Cash held in investment portfolio 208,021
Nonmarketable securities at

net asset value-
Private real estate fund 9,397,318

Total Investments, June 30, 2020 S 66,914,344

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances, by each major category of assets and liabilities, for fair value
measurements made using significant unobservable inputs follows (Level 3) at June 30 is as follows:

Beneficial
Interest in Interest
Split Interest Rate Swap Total
Agreements  Contract (Note 8) Level 3
Beginning balance at July 1, 2019 S 1,582,084 S (3,659,538) § (2,077,454)
Unrealized gains (losses) 74,097 (3,191,561) (3,117,464)
Balance at June 30, 2020 1,656,181 (6,851,099) (5,194,918)
Cash paid to terminate interest rate swap contract 4,438,500 4,438,500
Unrealized/realized gains 192,681 2,412,599 2,605,280
Balance at June 30, 2021 S 1,848,862 S - S 1,848,862
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Note 4 - Continued

Investments are presented as follows on the consolidated statement of financial position at June 30:

Investments

Deferred compensation investments
Board-designated endowment investments
Donor-restricted endowment investments

Total Investments

Note 5 - Investment Return

Return on investments is presented in the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets as follows:

Interest and dividends

Net realized gains on sales of securities
Net unrealized gains (losses) without donor restrictions
Net unrealized gains with donor restrictions

Investment fees

Total Return on Investments, Net

Note 6 - Beneficial Interest in Split-Interest Agreements

2021 2020
65,056,302 59,106,565
452,488 717,798
4,535,190 3,864,417
3,824,131 3,225,564
73,868,111 66,914,344
2021 2020
1,125,308 1,382,599
5,041,664 4,191,064
8,446,143 (2,509,115)
693,751 151,532
(198,481) (171,258)
15,108,385 3,044,822

The Organization is a beneficiary in a perpetual trust held by a third party. The trust provides that the Organization receive
annual income in the amount of the minimum investment return (as defined in IRC section 4942) or $10,000, whichever is

greater.

The Organization is also named as a 13.33% beneficiary of assets held by a foundation for the benefit of various nonprofit
agencies. The principal, which is held in perpetuity, is administered by the trustee of the foundation and provides for annual

earnings distributions to the Organization.

There are no restrictions associated with the income on either split-interest agreement. The split-interest agreements are
recorded at market value, and changes in market value are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations and
changes in net assets as a change in the value of the split-interest agreements with donor restrictions.
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Note 7 - Property and Equipment

Cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization of property and equipment are summarized as follows at June 30:

Cost-
Land
Buildings and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Medical, office equipment, software and other
Projects in progress

Accumulated depreciation and amortization-
Buildings and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Medical, office equipment, software and other

2021 2020
14,391,003 14,297,031
86,531,783 79,133,780
49,751,484 46,018,038
48,512,699 45,559,383

4,209,465 10,936,832
203,396,434 195,945,064

(23,264,749)
(32,859,882)
(35,136,180)

(20,861,976)
(29,635,081)
(31,781,440)

(91,260,811)

(82,278,497)

Total Property and Equipment, Net $ 112,135,623 S 113,666,567

As of June 30, 2021, projects in progress included multiple projects associated with incremental expansion of capacity for
select facilities, or property improvement initiatives and included additions for three clinic locations.

As of June 30, 2020, projects in progress include improvements for two additional clinic locations.
Note 8 - Long-Term Debt

2018 Bonds - In June 2018, the Organization entered into a tax-exempt financing of up to $43,175,000 through the private
placement of bonds that were issued by the Washington Health Care Facilities Authority (WHCFA). The bond indenture
allowed for a 15-month interest-only draw down period. In connection with this financing, the Organization signed a
promissory note with a bank. The note bore variable interest based on the LIBOR Index Rate. The interest reset monthly.
The rate was 2.7119% on the date of issuance. The future principal payments on the note are based on the fixed payment
under the swap agreement (Note 9). The debt was collateralized by the land and future construction of the Rainier Beach
Kidney Center, and the land and future construction of the Burien campus. The note was to matures on June 1, 2048, but
had a bank repurchase date of June 1, 2028. This bond was paid off during the year ended June 30, 2021.

2019 Bonds - In August 2019, the Organization entered into a tax-exempt financing of up to $9,525,000 through the private
placement of bonds that were issued by WHCFA. The bond indenture allowed for a 15-month interest-only draw down
period. In connection with this financing, the Organization signed a promissory note with a bank. The note bore variable
interest based on the LIBOR Index Rate. The interest reset monthly. The rate was 3.06% on the date of issuance, and 1.38%
at June 30, 2020. The debt was collateralized by the Renton Kidney Center, and the Bellevue Kidney Center. The note was to
mature on August 1, 2044, but had a bank repurchase date of August 1, 2029. This bond was paid off during the year ended
June 30, 2021.
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Note 8 - Continued

2019 Loan - In August 2019, the Organization entered into a five-year taxable term loan agreement with a bank for
approximately $6,651,000 to refund the 2012 tax-exempt financing. The loan bore a fixed annual interest rate of 2.85%. The
debt is collateralized by the 700 Broadway property and the Lake City property. After the refinancing, the note required
monthly principal and interest payments of $118,160. This loan was paid off during the year ended June 30, 2021.

2021A Bonds - In May 2021, the Organization entered into a tax-exempt financing of up to $51,300,000 through the private
placement of bonds that were issued by WHCFA to refinance the 2018 and 2019 bonds. The bond indenture allows for a
three-year interest-only draw down period, after which, the note requires monthly principal and interest payments of
$236,367 until maturity where a balloon payment of $24,409,979 will be made. In connection with this financing, the
Organization signed a promissory note with a bank. The note bears a fixed annual interest based on the maximum federal
tax rate. The rate was 3.16% on the date of issuance. The note matures on July 1, 2041.

2021B Bonds - In May 2021, the Organization entered into a tax-exempt financing of up to $28,600,000 through the private
placement of bonds that were issued by WHCFA. The bond requires monthly payments of $122,329 beginning July 1, 2021
with a balloon payment of $18,357,090 due upon maturity. The note bears a fixed annual interest based on the maximum
federal tax rate, until May 21, 2036, at which point the interest rate may reset. The rate was 2.58% on the date of issuance.
The note matures on May 21, 2036.

2021C Loan - In May 2021, the Organization entered into a three-year taxable term loan agreement with a bank for
approximately $4,700,000 to refinance the 2019 Loan. The loan bears a fixed annual interest rate of 1.49%. After the

refinancing, the note requires monthly principal and interest payments of $133,631. The note matures on June 1, 2024.

Long-term debt consisted of the following at June 30:

2021 2020
WHCFA Series 2021A Bonds S 51,300,000 S -
WHCFA Series 2021B Bonds 2,065,000
WHCFA Series 2018 Bonds 42,095,000
WHCFA Series 2019 Bonds 9,525,000
Term loans 4,700,000 6,749,170
Less unamortized financing costs (1,263,965) (656,278)
56,801,035 57,712,892
Less current portion (1,542,092) (2,935,640)
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion S 55,258,943 S 54,777,252
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Note 8 - Continued
The future principal payments on the notes outstanding at June 30, 2021 are as follows:

For the Year Ending June 30,

2022 S 1,542,092
2023 1,567,198
2024 1,651,644
2025 1,951,898
2026 2,010,581
Thereafter 49,341,587
Total maturities 58,065,000
Less unamortized debt issuance costs (1,263,965)
Total Long-Term Debt $ 56,801,035

The notes include various loan covenants including financial covenants such as the maintenance of specified working
capital, liquid unrestricted assets, debt service coverage measurements, and other affirmative and negative covenants. If
certain financial covenants are not met, certain properties become collateral in relation to these borrowings. At June 30,
2021 and 2020, management believes the Organization was in compliance with such loan covenants.

Note 9 - Interest Rate Swap Contract

In June 2018, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap contract as a cash flow hedge to reduce the impact of
changes in the 2018 tax-exempt bond’s variable rates. The swap contract was purchased with a 15 month forward to
coincide with the bond drawdown period. The swap contract fixed the variable rate interest rate at 2.65% beginning
September 1, 2019. As of June 30, 2020 the notional amount was $42,095,000. As of June 30, 2021, this interest rate swap
contract was terminated.

The fair value of the interest rate swap contract is shown as a liability on the consolidated statement of financial position in
the amount of approximately $6,851,000 at June 30, 2020. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Organization
recognized unrealized (gains) or losses of approximately ($2,413,000) and $3,192,000, respectively, related to the swap
contract due to interest rate fluctuations and termination of the related contract which are included in other activities on
the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets.

Note 10 - Employee Benefit and Deferred Compensation Plans

401(k) Plan - The Organization has a tax-deferred 401(k) plan (the Plan) covering all eligible employees who meet
prescribed service requirements. The Plan is subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974 (ERISA), as amended. Participants may contribute to the Plan through voluntary deferrals of eligible compensation.
Eligible employees may contribute from 1% to 100% of their eligible compensation to the Plan, not to exceed annual
limitations prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). Participants who have attained age 50 before the end of the
Plan year are eligible to make catch-up contributions.

-23-



NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

Note 10 - Continued

The Organization makes safe harbor matching contributions of an amount equal to 100% of the first 4% of each
participant’s contribution to the Plan. The Organization also has the option to make a discretionary contribution as a
percentage of each participant’s eligible compensation to the Plan, including those participants who chose not to make
voluntary deferral contributions to the Plan. In addition to the matching contribution discussed above, the Organization
contributed 1% of each participant’s respective compensation to the Plan for both calendar years 2021 and 2020. Plan
expense totaled approximately $2,145,000 and $2,302,000 in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

457(b) Plan - The Organization sponsors a deferred compensation plan for the benefit of certain employees in accordance
with Section 457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. Participating employees are permitted to defer a portion of their salary
until termination, retirement, death, or in the event of an unforeseen emergency.

Under the terms of the plan, all deferred compensation, along with all property and rights purchased with those amounts
and income attributable to those amounts, remain the property of the Organization until paid or made available to the
employee or his or her beneficiary. Such amounts are subject to the claims of the Organization’s general creditors.
Participants’ rights are equal to those of general creditors in an amount equal to the fair value of the deferred amount for
each participant. Assets associated with this plan are approximately $452,000 and $718,000 at June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The assets consisted of mutual funds measured at fair value using Level 1 inputs as further described in Note
4.

The Organization has no liability for losses under the plan, but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an
ordinary prudent investor. Management believes it is unlikely that the assets will need to be used to satisfy the claims of
general creditors.

Note 11 - Operating Lease Commitments and Deferred Rent

Deferred Tenant Leasehold Allowance - The Organization has entered into lease contracts in which the lessor agreed to pay
for the costs of improvements made to the sites being leased. The balances paid to the Organization will be amortized
against rent expense over the remaining life of the related leases. The unamortized balance of the reimbursed costs totaled
approximately $1,229,000 and $1,400,000 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are reported as a deferred
tenant leasehold allowance in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Deferred Rent - The Organization leases dialysis centers under the terms of several operating lease agreements expiring in
various years through 2032. Lease payments during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, totaled approximately
$4,096,000 and $3,917,000, respectively.

The leases have escalation clauses which, under lease accounting standards, have resulted in deferred rent expense
liabilities recognized for the leases. The deferred rent is being amortized against rent expense using the straight-line
method over the remaining term of the related leases. The difference between the cash outlay and expense recognized was
approximately $103,000 and ($40,000) for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The cumulative difference
at June 30, 2021 and 2020, was approximately $1,192,000 and $1,323,000, respectively.
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Note 11 - Continued

Future minimum lease payments for the property leases are as follows:

Yearly Straight-Line Cumulative

For the Year Ending June 30, Cash Outlay Expense Adjustment Difference
2022 S 3,860,878 S 3,761,792 S 99,086 S 99,086
2023 3,642,183 3,499,198 142,985 242,071
2024 3,123,976 2,991,443 132,533 374,604
2025 2,355,543 2,283,312 72,231 446,835
2026 2,383,964 2,254,037 129,927 576,762
Thereafter 6,562,764 5,947,796 614,968 1,191,730

Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 21,929,308 $ 20,737,578 $ 1,191,730 S 2,931,088

Note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies

Promises to Give - As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Organization had unconditional promises to give to the University of
Washington (the University) of approximately $1,993,000 and $2,993,000, respectively, for the funding of the Kidney
Research Institute and stipends for four fellows in the University’s Division of Nephrology. Of the outstanding commitments
as of June 30, 2021, the Organization has promised to pay approximately $1,393,000 during the year ending June 30, 2022,
with the remaining amounts to be paid thereafter. Discounts to present value are immaterial and have not been applied.

In June 2017, the Organization committed to a grant of up to $15,000,000 to the University’s Center for Dialysis Innovation
for research and development of a prototype wearable, miniaturized dialysis medical device. The grant is payable in five
annual $3,000,000 award increments, upon approval by the Organization of an annual project research plan for the
following year. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Organization had unconditional promises to give to the University’s
Center for Dialysis Innovation of approximately $268,000 and $304,000, respectively, included in accounts payable, each to
be paid in the following year. The Organization’s outstanding commitments for conditional grants were up to approximately
$4,099,000 and $6,342,000 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Litigation - In the normal course of business, the Organization has various claims in process, matters in litigation or other
contingencies. In management’s opinion, the outcome from these matters will not materially impact the Organization’s
financial position or results of activities.

Industry Regulations - The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state and local
governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, matters such as licensure,
accreditations, government health care program participation requirements, reimbursements for patient services and
Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse. Government activity continues with respect to investigations and allegations
concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by health care providers. Violations of these laws
and regulations could result in expulsion from government health care programs together with the imposition of significant
fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services previously billed. Management believes that the
Organization is in compliance with fraud and abuse statutes as well as other applicable government laws and regulations.
Compliance with such laws and regulations is subject to future government review and interpretations as well as regulatory
actions known or unasserted as this time.
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Note 12 - Continued

Construction Commitments - As of June 30, 2021, the Organization has entered into construction commitments for the
construction and expansion of certain current and future kidney center sites to be funded with draws on existing debt

instruments. The expected construction costs and expenditures to date are as follows:

Panther Lake Kidney Center

Port Angeles Kidney Center
Kirkland Kidney Center Expansion
Future Kidney Center

Total Construction Commitments

Note 13 - Board Designated Net Assets

Commitments

Expenditures

Future

Board designated net assets are available for the following purposes at June 30:

Quasi-endowments (Note 15)-
General endowments
Patient support endowments
Research endowments
Employee scholarships
Patient services endowments

to Date To Date Commitment

S 12,112,989 2,656,592 S 9,456,397
8,720,000 867,406 7,852,594
1,263,632 1,263,632
2,486,365 193,287 2,293,078

S 24,582,986 3,717,285 S 20,865,701
2021 2020

2,028,719 S 1,733,260

1,895,512 1,622,331

89,410 75,839

317,362 261,184

204,187 171,803

4,535,190 S 3,864,417
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Note 14 - Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods at June 30:

2021 2020
Subject to the Passage of Time or Expenditure for Specified Purpose:
Program services S 2,367,672 S 2,068,295
Acquisition of fixed assets 946,702 3,322,310
Total Subject to the Passage of Time or Expenditure for
Specified Purpose 3,314,374 5,390,605
Endowment Funds:
Original gifts and required retained funds (corpus)-
General endowments 1,049,999 1,049,999
Patient support endowments 506,028 490,833
Research endowments 683,278 681,803
Employee scholarships 258,845 258,845
Patient services endowments 105,353 105,002
Patient emergency endowments 45,814 45,814
2,649,317 2,632,296
Accumulated endowment earnings (Note 15) 1,174,814 593,268
Total Endowment Funds 3,824,131 3,225,564
Beneficial interest in split-interest agreements (Note 6) 1,848,862 1,656,181
Total Net Assets With Donor Restrictions S 8,987,367 S 10,272,350

Note 15 - Endowments

The Organization’s endowments consist of 23 funds established for a variety of purposes. Its endowments include both
donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments (quasi-
endowments). Net assets associated with endowment funds, including quasi-endowments, are classified and reported
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Law - Management of the Organization has reviewed the Washington State Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (PMIFA) and, having considered its rights and obligations thereunder, has
determined that it is desirable to preserve, on a long-term basis, the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this determination, the
Organization classifies as net assets with donor restrictions - endowment corpus (a) the original value of gifts donated to
the endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulations to the endowment
made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the
fund.
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Note 15 - Continued

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as net assets with donor restrictions -

accumulated endowment earnings until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a manner
consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by PMIFA. In accordance with PMIFA, the Organization considers the

following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

- The duration and preservation of the fund;

- The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund;

- General economic conditions;
- The possible effect of inflation and deflation;

- The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;

- Other resources of the Organization; and
- The investment policies of the Organization.

As of June 30, endowment net assets consisted of the following:

With Donor Restrictions Total
Without Donor Endowment Accumulated With Donor
Restrictions Corpus Earnings Restrictions 2021 Total 2020 Total
Donor restricted
endowment funds S - S 2,649,317 S 1,174,814 S 3,824,131 S 3,824,131 S 3,225,563
Board designated quasi-
endowment funds 4,535,190 4,535,190 3,864,417
Endowment Net Assets $ 4,535,190 S 2,649,317 S 1,174,814 S 3,824,131 S 8,359,321 S 7,089,980
Changes to endowment net assets for the years ended June 30 are as follows:
With Donor Restrictions Total
Without Donor Endowment Accumulated With Donor
Restrictions Corpus Earnings Restrictions 2021 Total 2020 Total
Endowment net assets,
beginning of year S 3,864,417 S 2,632,296 S 593,267 S 3,225,563 S 7,089,980 S 6,760,332
Endowment investment return 826,593 693,751 693,751 1,520,344 251,217
Contributions and designations 200 17,021 17,021 17,221 266,203
Appropriation of endowment
for expenditure and transfer (156,020) (112,204) (112,204) (268,224) (187,772)
Endowment Net Assets,
End of Year S 4,535,190 S 2,649,317 S 1,174,814 S 3,824,131 S 8,359,321 S 7,089,980

Funds With Deficiencies - From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted

endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or PMIFA requires the Organization to retain as a fund of
perpetual duration. There were no deficiencies of this nature as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.
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Note 15 - Continued

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters - The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment
assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds
that the Organization must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives - To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Organization relies on
a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized)
and current yield (interest and dividends). The Organization defines a total return strategy based on an asset mix of 17.5%-
50% fixed income securities, 25%-65% equity holdings, and 0-47% alternative investments.

Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy - The Organization has a policy of
appropriating 4.5% of its endowment funds’ average fair value over the prior three years through June preceding the fiscal
year in which the distribution is planned. Appropriations are made in September of the fiscal year in which they are to be
used. In establishing this policy, the Organization considered the long-term expected return on its endowment. Accordingly,
over the long term, the Organization expects the current spending policy to allow its endowment to maintain the
purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term as well as to provide additional real
growth through new gifts and investment return.

Note 16 - Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual commitments,
while also striving to maximize the investment of its available funds. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its
disposal, including cash, cash equivalents, and marketable debt and equity securities.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Organization

considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities of kidney dialysis services and supporting kidney research as well
as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.
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Note 16 - Continued

As of June 30, the following table shows the financial assets held by the Organization that could readily be made available
within 12 months of the date of the consolidated statement of financial position to meet general expenditures.

2021 2020
Financial Assets at Year End:
Cash and cash equivalents S 6,162,638 S 5,082,091
Cash - provider relief funds to be returned 5,103,157
Receivables, net 23,963,984 22,815,395
Investments 73,415,623 66,196,546
Deferred compensation investments 452,488 717,798
Total Financial Assets 103,994,733 99,914,987
Less amounts not available for general expenditure within 12 months-
Cash - provider relief funds to be returned (5,103,157)
Long-term receivables (1,165,968) (820,537)
Board-designated and donor-restricted endowments (8,359,321) (7,089,981)
Deferred compensation investments (452,488) (717,798)
Plus budgeted appropriation from endowment earnings 277,715 267,268

Financial Assets Available For General Expenditure Within 12 Months _$ 94,294,671 S 86,450,782

Note 17 - Subsequent Events

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through October 18, 2021, the date on which the consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued.

In October 2021, the Organization consummated the sale of its owned properties at 700 Broadway and 920 East Cherry
Street, Seattle, Washington for gross proceeds of $42,500,000 and concurrently entered into an agreement to lease these
properties from the buyer for a term of five years. The agreement is cancellable by the Organization at its sole discretion
after four years of the term have elapsed.

Future noncancellable minimum lease payments for the property lease are as follows:

For the Year Ending June 30,

2022 S 1,287,861
2023 1,755,874
2024 1,808,386
2025 1,862,678
2026 469,094

S 7,183,892
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NORTHWEST KIDNEY CENTERS

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Northwest Northwest
Kidney Kidney Care
Centers Alliance Eliminations 2021 Total
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents S 6,162,638 S - S - S 6,162,638
Cash - provider relief funds to be returned
Current portion of receivables, net 21,211,453 21,211,453
Third party settlements receivable 1,586,563 1,586,563
Inventories 1,540,374 1,540,374
Prepaid expenses 1,169,720 1,169,720
Intercompany due (to) from 120,642 (120,642)
Total Current Assets 31,791,390 (120,642) 31,670,748
Investments 65,056,302 65,056,302
Assets limited as to use - pledges for the acquisition of long-term assets 1,165,968 1,165,968
Assets limited as to use - board-designated endowment investments 4,535,190 4,535,190
Assets limited as to use - donor-restricted endowment investments 3,824,131 3,824,131
Deposits 163,370 163,370
Deferred compensation investments 452,488 452,488
Beneficial interest in split-interest agreements 1,848,862 1,848,862
Property and equipment, net 112,135,623 112,135,623
Total Assets $ 220,973,324 S (120,642) $ - $ 220,852,682
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable S 3,823,837 S - S - S 3,823,837
Construction payables 406,420 406,420
Current portion of pledge to the University of Washington 1,393,248 1,393,248
Current portion of deferred rent 99,086 99,086
Accrued expenses 7,224,529 7,224,529
Current portion of long-term debt 1,542,092 1,542,092
Total Current Liabilities 14,489,212 14,489,212
Deferred compensation 452,488 452,488
Deferred tenant leasehold allowance 1,229,475 1,229,475
Deferred rent, net of current portion 1,092,644 1,092,644
Long-term pledge to the University of Washington, net 600,000 600,000
Long-term debt, net 55,258,943 55,258,943
Total Liabilities 73,122,762 73,122,762
Commitments and contingencies
Net Assets:
Without donor restrictions-
Undesignated 134,328,005 (120,642) 134,207,363
Board designated 4,535,190 4,535,190
Total net assets without donor restrictions 138,863,195 (120,642) 138,742,553
With donor restrictions-
Restricted for program purposes 3,314,374 3,314,374
Beneficial interest in split-interest agreements 1,848,862 1,848,862
Endowment corpus 2,649,317 2,649,317
Endowment accumulated appreciation 1,174,814 1,174,814
Total net assets with donor restrictions 8,987,367 8,987,367
Total Net Assets 147,850,562 (120,642) 147,729,920
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 220,973,324 S (120,642) $ - $ 220,852,682

See independent auditor’s report.
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